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Independent Auditor’s Report

D.H.S.Z.[2023]000189

To the Shareholders of FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.:

I.Audit Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FIYTA Precision
Technology Co.. Ltd. (herein after “FIYTA Ltd.” or the C ompany) . which comprise
the consolidated and the parent company’s balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, the
consolidated and the parent company’s statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated and the parent company’s cash flow statements and the consolidated and
the parent company’s statement of changes in equity for the year then ended. and notes
to the financial statements.

In our opinion. the accompanying financial statements present in all material
respects in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises. and fairly reflect FIYTA Ltd. s financial position at 31 December 2021 and
the financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

IL.Basis for Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with CICPA Standards on Auditing
(“CSAs”) . In ‘Certified Public Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Financial Statements’ of this report, our responsibilities under these standards are
described. Those standards require that we comply with CICPA professional ethical
requirements, that we are independent from FIYTA Ltd. and have fulfilled all other
ethical obligations. We believe that we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence as basis of for our opinion.

ITI.Key Audit Matters
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

We have determined the following key audit matters that need to be communicated
in audit report.

(I) Existence of inventory and its net realizable value

1. Description

As at 31 December 2022, the book balance. provision for decline in value. and
carrying amount of inventory were RMB2.255.18million. RMB113.86 million and
RMB2.141.32 million respectively. The carrving amount of inventory accounts for
52.01% of the total assets of the Company.

(1) As the main business of FIYTA Ltd is selling FIYTA brand watches and other
branded watches. the main inventory of FIYTA Ltd are finished watches and watch
components. The inventories are distributed in stores. regional warehouses. resellers’
warehouses and the Company’s warehouses which caused difficulty in mventory
physical observation;

(i1) The management of FIYTA Ltd measures inventory at lower of cost and net
realizable value (NRV) at balance sheet date. Where the cost of an inventory exceeds
its NRV. the difference is recognized as provision for decline in value. The
determination of NRV involves significant judgment and estimates by the Management.

Inventory value is significant to the Company’s assets and it requires significant
Judgement by the Management. as a result. we identified existence of inventory and its
net realizable value as key audit matters.

2. How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Major audit procedures we have conducted include:

(1) Understanding. evaluating and testing the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls of procurement and payment, production and storage, and the
provision for decline in value of inventory:

(11) Using the work of experts to conduct IT audit to information system and
evaluating the authenticity and accuracy of business data which related to financial

statements.
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(111) Understanding and evaluating the appropriateness of the Company’s policy in
provision for decline in value;

(iv) Understanding and inquiring the locations of inventory storage, measurement
method of inventory so as to determining the scope of inventory physical observation;

(v) Discussing physical inventory count status with the Management and attending
the physical inventory count and conducting observation and test count on site to check
the quantity of the inventories and observe their condition.

(vi) Obtaining the ageing report of inventory and taking into consideration of
inventory condition in order to perform analytical review on the ageing as well as
analyze the reasonableness of provision for decline in value:

(vii) Reviewing and evaluating the appropriateness of significant estimates made
by the Management in determining the NRV of inventory;

(vii) Obtaining the calculation of provision for decline in value of inventory.
reviewing whether the provision was made in compliance with relevant accounting
policies and performing recalculation of provision. Checking the movements of prior
year's provision and analyzing whether the provision was adequately accrued in prior
period.

(1x) Tracing samples of large purchases in current period to their corresponding
contracts and tax invoices. and inspecting their purchase requisition form and goods
receipt notes.

Based on audit work conducted above, we believe that the inventory exists and the
mmeasurement is reasonable stated according to the Company’s policies.

(II) Revenue recognition

1. Description

In 2022. the Company’s income from main business was RMB4.354.10 million.
The Company’'s revenue mainly comes from sales of FIYTA brand watches and
distribution of other branded watches. Except for small amount of sales by direct sales
and consignment sales of FIYTA brand watches, most of the sales of FIYTA brand
watches and other branded watches are sold through shops in department store and on-
line shops. Refer to Note III 31 for accounting policy relating to revenue recognition.

Operating revenue represents major line item in income statement and is main
source of profit, the accuracy and completeness of revenue recognition have significant

impact to the Company’s profit, as a result, we identified revenue recognition as a key
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audit matter.

2. How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Major audit procedures we have conducted include:

(1) Understanding. evaluating and testing the design and operating effectiveness
of internal controls relating to revenue recognition;

(1) Using the work of experts to conduct IT audit to information system and
evaluating the authenticity and accuracy of business data which related to financial
statements.

(ii1) Obtaining and understanding accounting policies relating to revenue
recognition, and reviewing and evaluating whether the point in time of control right
transter, measurement of transaction price and accounting for special transactions are
complied with the accounting standards:

(1v) Selecting samples from current year’s transaction records. and tracing them
to supporting documents such as contract. tax invoice and goods dispatch note (if
applicable) and courier waybill (if applicable) ;

(v) In connection with audit of accounts receivable, selecting major customers and
confirming corresponding sales in current vear and vear-end balance:

(v1) Conducting cut-off test to revenue recognized before and after the balance
sheet date by selecting samples to check supporting documents such as contract. tax
invoice and goods dispatch note (if applicable) and courier waybill (if applicable) to
evaluate whether the revenue was recorded in appropriate accounting period.

Based on audit work conducted above, we believe that the Company’s revenue
recognition is in conformity to its revenue recognition policy.

IV.Other Information

The management of FTYTA.Ltd (the “*Management™) are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises all of the information included in the
Company’s annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion expressed on the financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to
read the Other Information and, in doing so. consider whether the Other Information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
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audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

V.Responsibilities of the Management and those Charged with

Governance for the Financial Statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a fair view in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises and for the design, implementation and maintenance of such
internal controls as the Management determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements. the Management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those who charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

VI.Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.
and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with China Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:
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1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists. we are required. according to China Standards on Auditing. to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or.
if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial
statements. including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within FIYTA Ltd to express an opinion on the
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction. supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters. the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings.
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

Independent Auditor's Report - Page 6



D.H.S.Z.[2023]000189

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
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Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2022
(Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RMB)

Closing Balance of

Assets Note V Closing Balance ) )
prior period

Current assets:

Manetary funds note 1 313,747 463 64 210,254,737 14

Financial assets held for trading

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable note 2 32,214,912.10 61,268,145 80

Accounts receivable nate 3 305,290,959.68 388,885,601.28

Accounts receivable financing

Prepayments note 4 8,039,794 97 7,946,750 81

Other receivables note & 56,918,019 48 61,553,267 82

Inventories note 8 2,141,320,373 67 2,050,148,750 89

Contract assets

Held-for-sale assets

Current portion of non-current assets

Other current assets note 7 56,339,505.32 72,698,692.72
Total current assets 292387102886 2,852,745,946 46
Non-current assets

Debt investments

Other debt investments

Long-term recevables

Long-term equity investments note & 58,182,086.90 55,155,605.31

Investment in other equity instruments note 9 85,000.00 85,000.00

Other non-current financial assets

Investment properties note 10 374,979,494.71 383,425,916 35

Fixed assets note 11 364 628 76517 349,495,316 85

Construction in progress

Productive biological assets

01l and gas assets

Right-of-use assets note 12 110,330,512.03 14793247542

Intangible assets note 13 33,200,218 63 34,036,330 43

Development expenditure

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses note 14 144 488 452 18 . 163,790,333 .44

Deferred tax assets note 15 65784 61194 81,233,274.65

Other non-current assets note 16 11,093,741.57 42,680,753.78

Total non-current assets

Total assets

1,193,272,883.13

1257 834 006.03

4,117,143,911.99

4,110,679,952 49

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative:

Finance Officer (CFQ):

Financial Manager:



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Lid. {Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RMB)

Closing Balance of

Liability and Equity Note V Closing Balance st bariod

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings note 17 290,237, 111.11 265,994,595 43

Financial habilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable note 18 2,000,600.00 21,22310

Accounts payable note 19 170,589,456 67 254 588,895 34

Payments received in advance note 20 18,960,128 83 11,025,664 72

Contract liabilities note 21 16,844 437 47 22,505,426 65

Employee benefits payable note 22 136,587 939.38 145,936,150.06

Tax payables note 23 60,770,168.30 67,769,880.01

Other payables note 24 165,060,122.58 167,808,759.95

Held-for-sale liabilities

Current portion of non-current liabilities note 25 71,546 316.16 86,949 906 35

Other current liabilities note 26 1,686,806.01 2,798,738.32
Total current liabilities 932,283,086 51 102539923693
Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings note 27

Bonds payable

Including: Preferred stock
Including: Perpetual debt

Lease habilities note 28 41,642 561.58 64,918,722.10

Long-term payables

Long-term employee benefits payable

Prowisions

Deferred income note 29 1,295,926 80 1,792,833.90

Deferred tax liabilities note 15 5,498 844 95 5,236,514.03

O[her non—curren{ hablllhea .............................................................................
Towlnohcumrentiiabiliess = 4 3.437,333.33 71 ,948,070,()3
Total liabilities 980.720.419.84 1,097,347.309.96
Equity

Share capital note 30 417 627 96000 426,051,015.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preferred stock
Including: Perpetual debt

Capital reserves note 31 1,007,086,643.48 1,040,908,194.13

Less Treasury stock note 32 50,759,806.16 60,585,678.92

Other comprehensive income note 33 5,739,589.89 -7,658,346 40

Special reserves note 34 2,012,064.91 1,062,731.13

Surplus reserve note 35 275,010,401.50 275,010,401.50

Retained earnings note 36 1,479,706,638.63 1,338,444 326.09

Equity attributable to parent company 3,136,423,492 15 3,013,232 642 53
Non-controlling interests

Total shareholders' equity 3,136,423 492.15 3,013,232 642.53
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 4117 .143,911.99 4.110,579,952 49

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative: Finance Officer (CFO): Financial Manager:

[~}



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

(Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RME)

ltems Note V Current Period Prior Penod
1. Operating revenue note 37 4,354 ,096,880.35 524373354093
Less: Operating costs note 37 2,738872791.11 3,285,656,229.13
Taxes and surcharges note 38 30.800,199.73 37.563,586.80
Selling expenses note 39 931,832,.830.40 1,049,898.22328
Administrative expenses note 40 219,014,508 52 26162676241
Research and development expenses note 41 61,088,585 .61 57,802.56917
Finance expenses note 42 2118874211 3467707385
Including: Interest expenses 16.846.749.14 23,159,963.74
Interest income 392399948 3,589,649.85
Add:- Otherincome note 43 18,648,210.06 21,328.673.21
Income from investments note 44 3.026.481.59 3,754938.3¢
Including: Investment income from associates and joint ventures 3,026,481.59 3,754,939.39
Derecognition of financial assets at amortized cost

Gains or losses from net exposure hedging

Gains or losses from changes in fair values
Credit impairment losses note 45 484537945 -11,075,001.77
Impairment losses note 48 -37.625,482 95 -25,861,384 58
Gans or losses from asset disposals note 47 9192506 730,134 87
2. Operating profit 340.185.736.08 505,386,447 83
Add: Non-operating income note 48 1.287.202.08 62743503
Less: Non-operating expensas note 49 2,351,266.31 3,686,166 55
3. Profit before tax 33912167185 502,327 .716.11
Less: Income tax note 50 7244022001 114,467 37588
4. Net profit 266,681.451.84 387,850,340 23

Including: Net profit realized before business combinations under common control

I. Net profit classified by going concern
Net profit from continuing operations (™" for net loss)
Net profit from discontinuing operations (™" for net loss)

II. Net profit classified by ownership
Net profit attributable to parent company
Net profit attributable to non-controlling interests

§. Other comprehensive income after tax
Other comprehensive income after tax attributable to parent company

I. tems of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit

. Changes in remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Qther comprehensive income that cannot be transferrad to profit or loss under

the equity method
ii. Changes in fair value of investments in equity instruments
Iv. Changes in fair value of the Company’s own credit risk
Il. tems of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or
loas

' equity method
Changes in fait value of other debt investments
iii. Amaount of financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive income
Iv. Provisions for credit impairment of other debt investments
v. The effective portion of gains or losses arising from cash fiow hedging
¥l Translation differences arising from financial statements in foreign currencies
Other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests after
tax
6. Total comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income attributable to parent company
Total comprehensive income atiributable to non-contraliing interests
7. Earnings per share
| Basic eamings per share
II. Diluted eamings per share

Other comprehensive income that can be transferrad to profit or loss under the

266,681.451.84

387.860.340.23

265681 45184 387.840.282.95
20.057.28

13.397.936.29 -8.835.217.81
13,397.936.29 -8.635.217 .81
13.397.936.29 -8,635,217.81
13,397,936.2¢ -8.635.217.81

280.079.388.13

379,225 12242

280,079,388.13

379.205.085.14

20.057.28
0.63¢8 0.9036
0.6398 0.9036

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative: Finance Officer (CFO):

©

Financial Manager:



Consolidated Cash Flows Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

(Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expreased in RMB)

ltems Note V Current Period Prior Period
1. Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sales and services 4910473741 41 5,857,726,359 18
Tax and surcharge refunds 7.793,409.24 1,466,381 60
Other cash receipts related to operating activities note 51 79,656,853 28 85,387 457 56
Total cash inflows from operating activities 199792400393 5944580,198 34
Cash paid for goods and services 3,266,497 299 47 3,862,745,653 01
Cash paid to and for employees 659,058,385.84 710,102,185 .80
Taxes and surcharges paid 272103882 56 346,383,502 98
Other cash payments related to operating activities note 51 324,035,659.54 478,099,748 10
Total cash outflows from operating activities 4521695227 41 5,397 331.089.89
Net cash flows from operating activities 476,228.776.52 547,249,108 45
2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from withdrawal of investments
Cash received from investment income
(rjtite[:rlgie;g? r:zrgsiits;posals of fixed assets, intangible assets and 138.721 29 59,657 53
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidianes and other business units
Other cash receipts related to investing activities
Total cash inflows from investing activities 138..7.'.27 29 59 657 63
Cash paid for fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 114,090,573 .97 204,422 787 81
Cash paid for iInvestments
Net cash paid for acquiring subsidianes and other business units
Other cash payments related to investing activities
Tolal cash outflows from investing actwites 11400057397 . 20442278781
Net cash flows from investing activities -113,951,852 68 -204,363,130 08
3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from investments by others 58,216,000 00
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries from non-controlling investors
Cash received from borrowings 845,155,704.29 1,155,724 41223
Cther cash receipts related to other financing activities
Total cash inflews from financing activities 845,155,704 29 1213940412 23
Cash repayments for debts 794,083.975.00 1,386,708,158 95
Cash paid for distribution of dividends and profit and for interest expenses 134,519.807.76 187,069.913.31
INCIUAING. LIVIGENAS OF Proill paid DY SUDSITIANES (0 NON-CONIroINg
invoetare
Other cash payments related to financing activities note 51 177 477 74046 124,710,350 68
Total cash outflows from financing activities 1,106,081,523 22 1,698,488 462 84
Net cash flows from financing activities -260,925,818.93 -484 548 050 61
4. Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash 213254759 1,140 476.33
5. N'et i'ncfease in cash and cash equivalents 103,483,652.50 -142 802 548 57
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 210,254,737.14 363,057,285 71
6. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents note 52 313,738,389 .64 210,254,737 14

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative: Finance Officer (CFO)

Financial Manager.
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Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Lid.

Assels

Parent Company's Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2022

(Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RMB)

Note XV Closing Balance

Closing Balance of prior perod

Current assets:
Monetary funds
Financial assets held for trading
Derivative financial assets
Notes receivable
Accounts recevable
Accounts recevable financing
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories
Contract assets
Held-for-sale assets
Current portion of non-current assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Long-term receivables
Long-term equity investments
Investment in other equity instruments
Other non-current financial assets
Investment properties
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Productive biological assets
Oil and gas assels
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Development expenditure
Goodwill
Long-term deferred expenses
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

274,691,023.16 171,022,392.92

note 1 603,216.03 129,880.48
note 2 839,782 54307 717,183,139.00
14,107,604 .63 13,389,835.13

1,129,184,386 89 901,725,247 53

note 3 1,662,310,486 50 1,542,067 94503
85,000.00 85,000 00
305,676,084 09 311,379,234 57
209 495,542 59 222,462,397 20
23522,355 93 23,910,597 39
8,240,653 62 9,966,739 10
1,904,597 73 167176128
S— il MBaNE
2,103,286.753 21 2112979475 50
3,232471,140.10 3.014,704.723 03

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements;)

Legal Representative:

Finance Officer (CFO):

Financial Manager:



Parent Company's Balance Sheet (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd. (Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RMB)

Liability and Equity Note XV Closing Balance Closing Balance of prior period

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 290237 4111 11 250,256,666.67
Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Accounts payable 1,048,201.41 1,232 967 42
Payments received in advance 16,960,128.83 11,025,664 72

Contract liabilities

Employee benefits payable 27,139,007 97 24,758,938 .89
Tax payables 778,299.01 2,676,682 58
Other payables 299 198,966 .56 230,594,166 .14
Held-for-sale liabilities
Current portion of non-current liabilities
Other Cu{rent ‘!Eib\lltles .................................................. e

Total current liabilities 635,361,714 89 520,545,086 42

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Bonds payable
Including: Preferred stock
Including: Perpetual debt
Lease habiliies
Long-term payables
Long-term employee benefits payable
Provisions
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current habilities

1,295,926.80

1,792,833.90

Total non-current liabilities 1,295926.80 1,792,833.90
Total liabilities 536,657 641 69 522,337 920.32
Equity

Share capttal 417 627 ,960.00 426,051,015.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preferred stock

Including: Perpetual debt

Capital reserves
Less: Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income
Special reserves
Surplus reserve

1,010,917,776.19
50,759,806.16

275,010,401.50

1,045,449 41067
60,585,678.92

275,010,401.50

Retained earnings 943,017,166.88 806,441 654 46
Total owners' equity 2595813 498 41 2,492,366,802.71
Total liabilities and owners' equity 3,232 471,140.10 3,014,704,723.03

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative

Finance Officer (CFQ):

Financial Manager.



Parent Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

(Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RMB)

Items Note Xv Current Period Prior Period
1. Operating revenue note 4 155,284 801.05 17945571271
Less. Operating costs note 4 41,765.441.70 38.852.252.32
Taxes and surcharges 598401716 7,760,628 42
Selling expenses 4,340,253 59 648352347
Administrative expenses 64,698 540.45 72.514.603.81
Research and development expenses 16,464,924 76 21.461.35¢ 36
Finance expenses -1,030.335.57 3,650,100.37
Including: Interest expenses 3,264,769.83 6.662.862.52
Interest income 3.699.364 22 3.158,156.74
Add: Other income 1,221.085.39 2,503,212.27
Income from investments note 5 243622178.29 283.873,435.85
Including: Investment income from associates and joint ventures 3.026.481.59 3.754,930.39
Derecognition of financial assets at amortized cost
Gains or losses from net exposure hedging
Gains or losses from changes in fair values
Credit impairment losses 108,040.61 192,081.60
Impairment losses
Gains or losses from asset disposals -14.615.44 -63.188.35
2. Operating profit 267.298 847.81 285138777 42
Add: Nen-operating income 191.981.02 41,001.98
Less' Non-operating expenses 21,262.34 216.805.57

3. Profit before tax
Less: Income tax
4. Net profit
Net profit from continuing operations "-" far net loss)
Net profit from discontinuing operations ("-" for net loss)
5. Other comprehensive income after tax

I. Items of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit

1. Changes in remeasurement of defined benefit plans

i
the equity method
i

Changes in fair value of investments in equity instruments
iv. Changes in fair value of the Company's own credit risk

II. items of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or

" the equity method

ii. Changes in fair value of other debt investments

ii. Amount of financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive income

iv. Provisions for credit impairment of other debt investments

v. The effective portion of gains or losses arising from cash flow hedging

=

6. Total comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income that cannot be transferred to profit or loss under

Other comprehensive income that can be transferred to profit or loss under

. Translation differences ansing from financial statements in foreign currencies

268,168,365 49 204,962.873.81

6,174,714 57 7.887.674.1¢

251.094,651.82 287,075,290.62
261,094 65182 287,075.298.62
261,994,651.82 287,075,299.62

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative: rinance Officer (CFO):

Financial Manager:



Parent Company's Cash Flows Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Prepared by: FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd. {Unless otherwise indicated, the currency is expressed in RME)

Items Note XV Current Period Prior Period

-

. Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sales and services
Tax and surcharge refunds
Other cash receipts related to operating activities
Total cash inflows from operating activities
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and for employees
Taxes and surcharges paid
Other cash payments related 1o operating activities
Total cash outfiows from operating activities
Net cash flows from operating activities
2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from withdrawal of investments

Cash received from investment income

Net procesds from disposals of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets

Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries and other business units
Other cash receipts related to investing activities
Total cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid for investments
Net cash paid for acquiring subsidianes and other business units
Other cash payments related to investing activities
Total cash outfiows from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from investments by others
Cash received from borrowings
Other cash receipts related to other financing activities
Total cash mflows from financing activities
Cash repayments for debts
Cash paid for distnbution of dividends and profit and for interest expenses
Other cash payments related to financing activities
Total cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities
4, Effect of chanéea in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents

8. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

166,402,067 64 183,608,762.33
7.647.58
4,309,971,160.78 5,194.227,138.68
4.476,380.875.98 5,377,835,902.01
59,513,788.17 68.672,5562.40
20.686,403.89 22,768,419 51
438387247245 5,350,975,023.49
4,464,072 664 51 545141596540
12.308,211.47 -73.580,093 3¢
240,595,696.70 259,918 495.56
3,873.887.69 5,740.00
244550 584,39 259924 236.56
5,810,205.37 21.039.730.26

5810.205.37

21.039.730.26

238,759.379.02 238,884,506.30
58,215.000.00

830,000.000.00 1.110.000.000.00
830,000,000.00 1,168,215,000.00
790,000.000.00 1,260,000,000.00
134.389.016.01 185.045.678.32
53.390.338.0¢ 9,178,101.51
977.779.354 10 1,454 22377983
-147.778.354.10 -286,007,779.83

380.393.85
103.668.630.24
171,022,392.92

-32¢.402.20
-121,032,776.82
202.055,169.74

274,691,023.15

171.022,322.82

(Attached notes to statements are part of the consolidated financial statements)

Legal Representative Finance Officer (CFO).

10

Financial Manager.
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FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022

I.  Company status

1. Registered place, organization and address of headquarters

FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Company™) was founded. under the approval of
Shen Fu Ban Fu (1992) 1239 issued by the General Office of Shenzhen Municipal Government.
through the restructuring of former Shenzhen FIYTA Time Industrial Company by the promoter of
China National Aero-Technology Import and Export Shenzhen Industry & Trade Center (name
changed to “China National Aero-Technology Shenzhen Co.. Ltd™ lately) on 25 December 1992.
On 3 June 1993, both the Company was listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The Company holds
business license with the Unified Social Credit Code of 91440300192189783K.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding shares issued by the Company was 417.628 million
shares and the registered capital was RMB417.628 million after a series of share dividend. right
offering. share capital conversion from retained earnings. and issuing of new shares. The
Company’s registered address is FIYTA Hi-Tech Building. Gao Xin Nan Yi Dao. Nanshan District,
Shenzhen. Guangdong Province, where the Company’s headquarters locates. The parent company
of the Company is CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited (CATIC Shenzhen) and the ultimate
controlling party of the Company is Aviation Industry Corporation of China. Ltd. (AVIC) .

2. Nature of the Company’s business and main operating activities

The business nature and main operating activities of the Company and its subsidiaries mainly
include: producing and selling of analogue indication mechanical watches, quartz wartches and its
movements. components, various timing devices, processing and wholesaling karat gold jewelry
watches. intelligent watches: domestic commercial and material supply and distributing business
(excluding goods under exclusive operational rights. special control and exclusive sales) : property
management and leasing: providing design service: research, design. production. sales and technical
support for precise watches and components: import and export business (according to Shen Mao
Guan Deng Zheng Zi No.2007-072) .

3. Scope of consolidation

There were 12 subsidiaries that are included in the Company’s scope of consolidation for year
2022. see Note VI for details. The scope of consolidation was the same as last year.

4. Authorization for issue

The financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors
on 16 March 2023.

Notes to the financial statements - Page 13



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

II. Basis of preparation

1. Basis of preparation

The financial statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and associated application guidance, illustrations to the
standards and related pronouncements (collectively known as “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises™ or “CAS”) . These financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements
of “Regulation on the Preparation of Information Disclosure of Companies Issuing Public Shares.
No. 15: General Requirements for Financial Reports™ (revised in 2014) issued by China Securities

Regulatory Commission (CSRC) .

2. Going concern

The Company assesses the going concern ability to the extent of 12 month after the balance
sheet date. No issues that would result in significant doubt about the Company’s going concern is
noted. As a result, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern

basis.

3. Basis and principles of accounting

Accrual basis 1s adopted for the Group’s accounting activity. Except for some financial
instruments. the financial statements are measured using historical cost. In case of impairment
occurred on assets, provisions for impairment are provided for in accordance with related

regulations.

III. Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

1. Highlight to specific accounting policies and estimates

(1) The Company make specific accounting policies and estimates according to its nature of
business. Accounting policies and estimates mainly includes: method of estimated credit loss
accrual (Note III. 12, Note III. 13 and Note III. 14) . measurement of inventory (Note IIL. 15) .
depreciation of investment property and fixed asset and amortization of intangible asset (Note III.
18, Note III. 19 and Note III. 23) . revenue (Note IIL. 31) etc.

(2) Based on historical experience and other factors including reasonable estimation to future
events. the Company continues to evaluate significant accounting estimates and key assumptions.
If material changes to following accounting estimate and Key assumption incurred, material impact
would happened to the carrying value of the Company’s assets and liabilities in coming accounting
year.

1) Measurement of Expected Credit Loss of accounts receivable and other receivables

The management estimates impairment loss provision to accounts receivable and other

recervables based on the judgments to estimated credit loss of accounts receivable and other

Notes to the financial statements - Page 14



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

receivables. If any events occurred that indicated the Company may not be able to recover the
balance amount, estimation is needed in provision accrual. If the expected number is different with
the estimated figure, the difference will affect the carrying value of accounts receivable and other
receivables and the impairment loss expenses in corresponding accounting period.

2) Impairment to inventory. The Company recognizes provision for obsolete inventories based
on the excess of the cost of inventory over its net realizable value. In determining the net realizable
value of inventories. the management uses significant judgments to estimate the selling price. cost
to finish manufacturing. and selling expenses and associated taxes. If the management revises
estimated selling price and cost to finish manufacturing and selling expenses. the NAV estimation
would be affected and the difference would have an effect to the inventory provision.

3) Estimation of long-term asset impairment. When evaluating whether there is impairment to
long-term asset. the management mainly considers the following: (a) whether the events affect the
asset impairment have already incurred: (b) whether the discounted cash flow from continue usage
of the asset or disposal is lower than its carrying amount: and (c) whether major assumption used in
estimating the future cash flow is appropriate.

Changes to related assumption adopted in determining impairment such as profitability.
discounting rate and growth rate may have material impact to the present value used in impairment
test and result in impairment to above mentioned long-term assets.

(a) Depreciation and amortization. The estimated residual value and useful life of investment
property. fixed asset and intangible asset that used by the Company are based on historical actual
useful life and actual residual value of assets with similar nature or functions. In the process of using
such assets, estimated useful life and residual value may varv depending on the economic
environment, technological environment and other environment that the assets located. If there is
difference berween the expectation and previous estimation. proper adjustments will be made by the
management.

(b) Share-based payments. The management makes best estimation based on up-to-date
number of employees who have exercisable shares and adjusting the number of exercisable equity
instrument on each balance sheet date in the vesting period. If there is difference between current
vear exercisable employee and previous estimation. proper adjustments will be made by the
management.

(¢) Deferred tax asset. Deferred tax asset of taxable losses shall be recognized to the extent that
there will have sufficient taxable income to offset. This involves significant judgments to estimate
the timing and amount of future taxable profit and taking into consideration of tax planning so as to
determine the amount of deferred tax asset.

(d) Corporate income tax. The final tax treatment of many transaction and events are with

uncertainty in the normal course of operation. Significant judgments involves in accrual of corporate

Notes to the financial statements - Page 15



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

income tax. If there is difference between the final discretion and the amount recorded in books, the
difference will affect the amount of tax in the period of final discretion.

2. Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. These financial statements present
truly and completely the financial position as at 31 December 2021, the results of operations and
the cash flows for the year then ended of the Company.

3. Accounting period

The accounting period of the Company is the calendar year. i.e. from 1 January to 31 December
of each year.

4. Operating cycle

The operating cycle refer to the period from purchasing assets for process to realizing cash or
cash equivalent. The Company’s operating cycle is 12 months which is also used as standard to
determine the liquidity of asset and liabilities.

5. Recording currency

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopt Renminbi (“RMB™) as the recording
currency. FIYTA (Hong Kong) Limited (“FIYTA Hong Kong™) . a subsidiary of the Company
outside mainland China. and Station 68 Limited (**Station 687) . a subsidiary of FIY TA Hong Kong.
use Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD™) as the recording currency according to the main economic
environment where the companies operated in. Montres Chouriet SA. a subsidiary of FIYTA Hong
Kong (“Swiss Company™) . uses Swiss Franc as the recording currency according to the main
economic environment where the Swiss Company operated in. The recording currencies mentioned
above will be translated to Renminbi when preparing financial statements. The currency used in
preparing the Group’s financial statements is Renminbi.

6. Accounting treatment for business combinations involving entities under common
control and not under common control

(1) If a business combination is achieved through multiple steps, of which the terms,

condition and economical effect is in line with one o1 more criteria as followed, the multiple
transactions shall be dealt with as one-basket transaction.

1) the transactions were entered into at the same time or by considering each other’s influence:

2) acomplete business result can only be achieved by combining all these transactions together:

3) the performing of one transaction is depended on at least one other transaction:

4) a transaction is not economical if it is considered stand along but it will become economical

if it is considered in combination with other transactions.

(2) Business combination invelving entities under common control
For a business combination involving enterprises under common control. the assets acquired

and liabilities assumed are measured based on their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
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statements of the ultimate controlling party at the combination date, except for adjustments due to
different accounting policies. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets acquired
and the consideration paid for the combination (or the total par value of shares issued) is adjusted
against share premium in the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.

If there is contingent consideration and provision or assets are required to be recognized. the
difference between the provision or assets and the contingent consideration shall adjust the capital
reserve, with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.

If business combinations involving entities under common control achieved in stages that
involves multiple transactions belongs to one-basket transaction. all transactions shall be dealt with
as one transaction. If not. the accounting treatment is as follows: Initial investment cost is the
acquirer’s share of the carrving amount of the net assets of the acquiree in the consolidated financial
statements of the ultimate controlling party at the combination date. The difference between the
initial investment cost and the sum of carrying amount of investment prior to combination date and
carrving amount of new considerations paid for the combination at the combination date is adjusted
to capital reserve (share premium) . If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference,
any excess is adjusted against retained earnings. he difference between the carrying amount of the
net assets acquired and the sum of carrving amount of investment prior to combination date and
carrying amount of new considerations paid for the combination at the combination date is adjusted
to capital reserve (share premium) . If the capital reserve is not sutficient to absorb the difference.
any excess is adjusted against retained earnings. The profit or loss. other comprehensive income and
changes in other owner’s equity recognized by the acquirer during the period from the later of initial
investment date and the date that the acquirer and acquiree both under common ultimate control to
the combination date are offset the opening retained earnings or profit for loss for the current period

in the comparative statements.

(3) Business combinations involving entities not under common control
The purchase date refers to the date that the Company actually acquired control over the acquire

i.e. the date when the control over the acquiree’s net assets or decision of business operation has
been transferred to the Company. If the Company fulfills the following conditions at the same time,
it is considered that the control has been transferred:

‘L the contract or agreement of business combination has been approved by internal power
department:

(2) related matters has been approved by state supervisory authorities. if needed:

o)

) procedures of asset transfer has been completed:

(4) the Company has been made majority of payments and has the ability and plan to make the

residual payments:
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) the Company is in substances acquired the business and operating policies and enjoyed

corresponding interests and undertaking risks of the acquire.

On the purchase date, assets transferred. liabilities incurred or assumed as the consideration
paid shall be measured at fair value. The difference between the fair value and carrying amount
shall be charged to current period profit or loss.

Where the combination cost exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. the difference is recognized as goodwill. and subsequently measured on the
basis of its cost less accumulated impairment provisions. Where the combination cost is less than
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. the difference is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period after reassessment.

If business combinations involving entities not under common control achieved in stages that
involves multiple transactions belong to one-basket transaction. all the transactions shall be treated
as one. Otherwise, it shall be treated as follows: In the separate financial statements, the initial
investment cost is the sum of the carrying amount of equity investment of the acquiree held prior to
the acquisition date and additional investment cost at the acquisition date. When the previously-
held equity investment which was accounted for under the e Accounting treatment for business
combinations involving entities under conunon control and not under common control equity
method before the acquisition date. any other comprehensive income previously recognized is not
adjusted on acquisition date. When the investment is disposed of in later date. the amount that was
recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized on the same basis as would be required if
the investee had disposed directly of the related assets or liabilities. The owners’ equity recognized
as the changes of the investee’s other owners’ equity except for net profit or loss. other
comprehensive income and profit distribution, are transferred to profit or loss for the current period
when disposing the investment. When the previously-held equity investment which was measured
at fair value before the acquisition date, the accumulated changes in fair value included in other
comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss for the current period upon conumencement of
the cost method.

(4) Transaction costs for business combination

The overhead for the business combination. including the expenses for audit. legal services,
valuation advisorv, and other administrative expenses, are recorded in profit or loss for the current
period when incurred. The transaction costs of equity or debt securities issued as the considerations
of business combination are included in the initial recognition amount of the equity or debt securities.

7. Consolidated financial statements

(1) Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control. All subsidiaries (including

standalone entity that controlled by the Company) are all included in the scope of consolidation.
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(2) Procedures of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by the Company based on the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and other relevant information. The whole enterprise
is considered as one accounting body when preparing consolidated financial statement and reflect
the whole group’s financial position, performance and cash flow according to unified accounting
policies based on accounting standards.

All subsidiaries that are included in the scope of consolidation adopt same accounting policies.
and accounting period. If there are differences. the subsidiaries shall adjust its policies and
accounting period accordingly.

When preparing consolidated financial statements. the accounting policies and accounting
periods of the subsidiaries should be consistent with those established by the Company. and all
significant intra-group balances and transactions are eliminated. If the treatment based on enterprise
group angle is different with the angle from subsidiaries’, it shall be treated based on enterprise
group angle.

The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to the parent is treated as non-
controlling interests and presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. The portion of net profit or loss of subsidiaries for the period attributable to non-controlling
interests is presented separately in the consolidated income statement below the “net profit™ line
item. When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to the non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’ share of the opening owners’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is still allocated against the non-controlling interests.

Where a subsidiary or business has been acquired through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control in the reporting period. the subsidiary or business is deemed to
be included in the consolidated financial statements from the date they are controlled by the ultimate
controlling party. Their operating results and cash flows are included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated cash flow statement respectively from the date they are controlled by
the ultimate controlling party.

Where a subsidiary or business has been acquired Ilﬁrough a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control in the reporting period, the financial statements of
subsidiaries shall be adjusted on the basis of fair value of identifiable net assets on purchase date.

1) Addition of subsidiaries or business operation

Where a subsidiary or business has been acquired through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control in the reporting period, the subsidiary or business is deemed to
be included in the consolidated financial statements from the date they are controlled by the ultimate
controlling party. Their operating results and cash flows are included in the consolidated income

statement and consolidated cash flow statement respectively from the date they are controlled by

Notes to the financial statements - Page 19



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

the ultimate controlling party.

If the Company can exert control over the investee under common control because of addition
of investment. adjustments shall be made as if all the combining party are at the current condition
in the angle of ultimate controlled party. Equity investment held before acquired control, profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and other net asset changes that have already recognized between
the later of acquiring original equity and the date under common control. and combination date shall
offset opening retained earnings or current period profit or loss respectively.

In the reporting period. if there is subsidiary or business addition involving entities not under
comumon control. no adjustments shall be made to the consolidated balance sheet. The revenue.
expenses and profit from the purchasing date to period end shall be included in consolidated income
statement. The cash flows from the purchasing date to period end shall be included in consolidated
cash flow statement.

Where a subsidiary or business has been acquired through a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control by means of investment addition in the reporting period,
equity held before the purchase date shall be re-measured at fair value. Difference between the fair
value and the carrving amount shall be charged to current period investment gain. Changes related
to equity method such as other comprehensive income and other equity changes beside net profit.
other comprehensive income and profit distribution shall be transferred to current period investment
gain.

2) Disposal subsidiary or business

a) General principal

In the reporting period. if the Company dispose of subsidiary or business. the subsidiary’s
revenue, expenses. profit and cash flows from the beginning of the period to the disposal date shall
be included in consolidated financial statements.

When the Company loses control over a subsidiary because of disposing part of equity
investment or other reasons. the remaining part of the equity investment is re-measured at fair value
at the date when the control is lost. A gain or loss is recognized in the current period and is calculated
by the aggfegate of consideration received in disposal and the fair value of remaining part of the
equity investment deducting the share of net assets in proportion to previous shareholding
percentage in the former subsidiary since acquisition date and the goodwill.

b) Disposal of subsidiary through multiple steps

In the event that the Company losses control over a subsidiary through multiple transactions,
if one or more conditions below are fulfilled. it shall be treated as one-basket transaction:

1) the transactions were entered info at the same time or by considering each other’s influence:

ii) a complete business result can only be achieved by combining all these transactions together:

1ii) the performing of one transaction is depended on at least one other transaction:
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1v) a transaction 1s not economical if it is considered stand along but it will become economical

if it is considered in combination with other transactions.

If the disposal was categorized as one-basket transaction. the Company dealt with all
transactions as one transaction that resulted in lost control over subsidiary. But, before losing control,
the difference between disposal consideration and the portion of net asset of the disposal part shall
be recognized in other comprehensive income each time of disposal and charged to income
statement in whole in the period loss control.

If the disposal does not belong to one-basket transaction, the accounting treatment before lost
control shall be in accordance with policies of disposal equity but not losing control. At the time
control lost, deal with as normal subsidiary disposal.

3) Acquiring non-controlling interests of subsidiary

Where the Company acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiary’s non-controlling
shareholders. the book value of shareholder’s equity attributed to the Company and to the non-
controlling interest is adjusted to reflect the change in the Company’s interest in the subsidiaries.
The difference between the proportion interests of the subsidiary’s net assets being acquired or
disposed and the amount of the consideration paid or received is adjusted to the capital reserve in
the consolidated balance sheet. with any excess adjusted to retained earnings.

4) Partially disposal subsidiary equity without losing control

The difference between the consideration received from partial disposal of the long-term equity
investment in the subsidiary without losing control and the share of net assets of the subsidiary that
1s continuously calculated from the purchase date or the merger date corresponding to the disposal
of the long-term equity investment . to adjust the share premium in the capital reserve in the
consolidated balance sheet. if the share premium in the capital reserve is insufficient to offset. adjust
the retained earnings.

8. Joint arrangement classification and accounting treatment for joint operation

(1) Classification

The Company classifies joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures based on
the structure. legal form. terms and conditions in the arrangement. and other related facts.

Joint operations means joint arrangement that does not realized through independent entity.
Joint arrangement that realized through independent entity is normally recognized as joint venture
but it also can be classified as joint operation if clear evidence showed that one of the following
condition is met:

1) The legal form of an joint arrangement showed that the joint parties enjoved rights over

related assets and undertake liability respectively:

2) The contract showed that the joint parties enjoved rights over related assets and undertake

liability respectively:
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3) Other facts and situation indicated that the joint parties enjoyed rights over related assets

and undertake liability respectively;

(2) Accounting treatment to joint operation

The Company recognizes the following items relating to its interest in a joint operation, and
account for them in accordance with relevant accounting standards:

1) its solely-held assets. and its share of any assets held jointly:

2) its solely-assumed liabilities. and its share of any liabilities assumed jointly:

3) its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation:

4) 1ts share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation: and

5) its solelv-incurred expenses, and its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Company contribute or disposal of assets (except that asset constitute business) . Before
these assets are sold to third party. the Company only recognizes the portion of profit or losses that
attributes to the other party. If the assets incurred impairment (meets the requirements of the
"Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 8 - Impairment of Assets”). the Company
recognizes losses in full.

For the assets purchased from joint operation (except that constitutes business) . before it is
sold to third party. only the portion that attributable to the other parties. If assets incurred impairment
(meets the requirements of the "Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. § - Impairment
of Assets"). the Company recognizes losses based on its share.

The Company does not enjov joint control to joint operation. If the Company enjoys joint
operation’s asset and undertaking related liabilities. the accounting treatment is the same. Otherwise.

it shall be accounted for based on accounting standards.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

When preparing cash flow statement. the Company recognizes cash in hand and bank deposit
thar available for pavment as cash. Cash equivalents include short-term (generally expires within
three months from the date of purchase).highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to

known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

10. Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign currency financial
statements

(1) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company. using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot

exchange rate at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences between the spot
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exchange rate on balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on initial recognition or on the
previous balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
at historical cost in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(2) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

When translating the foreign currency financial statements of overseas subsidiaries, assets and
liabilities of foreign operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items. excluding “retained earnings™. are translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rates at the transaction dates.

When disposing overseas operations. foreign translation difference that related to the overseas
business shall be charged to current period profit or losses from other comprehensive income. If
the disposal resulted in decrease in shareholding but still maintain control. the translation
difference will be included in non-controlling interest. If the disposal related to associate entity or
joint venture entities, the translation difference will be included in current period profit or loss.

11. Financial instruments

The Company recognizes financial assets or financial liabilities when the Company become a
party of the financial instruments.

Effective interest rate method refer to calculating the amortized cost of financial assets or
liabilities and amortizes interest income or expenses into corresponding accounting period
accordingly.

Effective interest rate refers to the interest that is used to discount the estimated future cash
flows of existing financial assets or financial liabilities to its amortized cost. When determining the
effective interest rate. the cash flow is estimated taking consideration of all contractual terms of
financial assets or financial liabilities but does not including estimated credit loss.

Amortized cost of financial assets or financial liabilities is the initial recognition amount deduct
principal and add or less accumulated amortization to the difference between initial recognition and
the amount at maturity and less accumulated loss provision (for financial assets only) .

(1) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are classified into the following three categories depends on the Company’s
business mode of managing financial assets and cash flow characteristics of financial assets

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition. But it is recognized using
trading price for accounts receivable or notes receivable arose from sale of goods or providing of
service that does not including material financing component or does not consider financing
component within one year.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. the related transaction costs are directly
recognized through profit or loss. and the related transaction costs of other types of financial assets
are included in the initial recognition amounts.

Only when the Company changes its business model of managing financial assets, all the
financial assets affected shall be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period after the
business model changes.

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company shall classify financial assets that meet the following conditions and are not
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as financial assets measured at
amortized cost: The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets is to collect
contractual cash flows: The terms of the financial asset contract stipulate that cash flows generated
on a specific date are only payments of principal and interest based on the amount of outstanding
principal. Financial assets measured at amortized cost of the Company includes cash and bank
balances. notes receivable. accounts receivables and other receivables.

After initial recognition. the effective interest rate method is used to measure the amortized
cost of such financial assets. Profits or losses arising from financial assets measured at amortized
costs and not part of any hedging relationship are included in current profit or loss when the
recognition is terminated, amortized or impaired according to the effective interest rate.

a) for financial assets that already impaired when it is acquired. the Company determines its
interest income using adjusted effective interest rate based on its amortized cost.

b) for financial assets that does not impaired when it is acquired but impaired latterly. the
Company determines its interest income using adjusted effective interest rate based on its amortized
cost. If there is no credit impairment in later period due to changes to risk factors. the Company uses
effective interest rate times of carrying amount of the financial asset to determine interest income.

2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company shall classify financial assets that meet the following conditions and are not
designated as financial assets measured at fair value and whose changes are recorded in current
profit or loss as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: The
Group’s business model for managing the financial assets is both to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets, and the terms of the financial asset contract stipulate that cash flows
generated on a specific date are only payments of principal and interest based on the amount of

outstanding principal.
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After initial recognition, financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest,
impairment losses or gains and exchange gains calculated by the effective interest rate method are
recognized in profit or loss, while other gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. When derecognized. the accumulated gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are transferred from other comprehensive income and recorded in current
profit or loss.

Notes receivable and accounts receivable measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are listed as receivables financing. and other such financial assets are listed as other debt
investments, of which: one year from the balance sheet date Other debt investments due within one
year are listed as non-current assets due within one year. and other debt investments with an original
maturity date within one vear are listed as other current assets.

3) Financial assets designated as fair value through other comprehensive income

At initial recognition. the Company may designate non-trading equity instrument investments
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, presented as other equity
instrument investment. and recognize dividend income when the conditions are met (the designation
cannot be revoked once it is made) .

The fair value changes of this kind of financial asset shall be included in other comprehensive
income and no impairment provision is needed. When de-recognizing the financial asset.
accumulated gain or loss in other comprehensive income shall be transferred out of other
comprehensive income and charged to retained earnings. During the investing period when the
Company holds equity instruments. the Company recognizes dividends in current period profit or
loss when the right of receiving dividends is confirmed and the associated economic benefit is
probable to flow into the Company and that the amount can be measured reliablv. The Company
treated this kind of financial instrument under other equity investment.

The designated equity instrument investment does not belong to the following: the purpose of
obtaining the financial asset is mainly for the recent sale: it is part of the identifiable financial asset
instrument combination under centralized management at initial recognition. and there is objective
evidence that the short-term gain actually exists in the near furure: it is a derivative (except for
derivatives that meet the definition of a financial guarantee contract and are designated as effective
hedging instruments) .

4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets other than financial assets measured at amortized cost and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

After initial recognition. the financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. and the

profits or losses generated from which are recognized in profit or loss.
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The Company present the financial assets as financial asset held for trade, other non-current
financial assets.

5) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss.

At initial recognition. if the accounting mismatch can be eliminated or significantly reduced,
the financial assets can be designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract includes one or more embedded derivatives and the main contract does
not belong to the above financial assets. the Company may designate the whole as a financial
instrument that is measured at fair value through profit or loss. except in the following cases:

a) Embedded derivatives do not materially change the cash flow of a hybrid contract

b) When it is first determined whether a similar hybrid contract requires a spin-off, there is
little need for analysis to make it clear that the embedded derivatives it contains should not be split.
If the prepavment right of the embedded loan allows the holder to repay the loan in advance with an
amount close to the amortized cost. the prepayment right does not need to be split.

After initial recognition. the financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, and the
profits or losses generated from which are recognized in profit or loss.

The Company present the financial assets as financial asset held for trade, other non-current

financial assets.

(2) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The Company categorizes financial liabilities into financial liabilities and equity instrument

based on the contract terms and economical nature rather than solelv on its legal form. Financial
habilities initially recognized as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. other
financial liabilities and derivative instrument designated as effective hedging instrument.

The financial liabilities of the Company are initially measured at fair value. The related
transaction costs of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are directly recognized in
profit or loss. The related transaction costs of other categories of financial liabilities are included in
the initial recognition amount.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on its category:

1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes financial liabilities held for trade (including derivatives that are
financial liabilities) and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

At initial recognition. in order to provide more relevant accounting information. the Company
classifies financial liabilities that meet one of the following conditions as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (the designation cannot be revoked once it is made) : the aim of
undertaking related financial liabilities is to sell or repurchase in the short run: it is part of
identifiable financial instruments and there is objective evidence indicated that the enterprise adopts
short-term profitability mode; belong to derivative instrument except for derivative instrument

designated as effective hedging instrument and financial guarantee contract. Financial liabilities
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held for trade are measured at fair value subsequently and all fair value changes except for hedging
accounting shall be included in current period profit or loss.

At initial recognition, in order to provide more relevant accounting information, the Company
classifies financial liabilities that meet one of the following conditions as financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (the designation cannot be revoked once it is made) :

a) accounting mismatches can be eliminated or significantly reduced.

b) management and performance evaluation of financial liability portfolios or combinations of
financial assets and financial liabilities based on fair value according to corporate risk management
or investment strategies as stated in formal written documents, and report to key management
personnel on this basis.

When the Company initially recognizes a financial liability and designates it at fair value
through profit or loss according to stipulations of standards. the changes in the fair value of the
financial liability arising from changes in the company’s own credit risk are included in other
comprehensive income. and other changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss for the period.
However, if the accounting causes or expands the accounting mismatch in profit or loss. the entire
gain or loss of the financial liability (including the affected amount from changes in the company’s
own credit risk) is included in the current profit or loss.

2) Other financial liabilities

Except for the following items. the Company classifies financial liabilities as financial
liabilities measured at amortized cost:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

b) The transfer of financial assets does not meet the conditions for derecognition or financial
liabilities arising from the continued involvement in the transferred financial assets.

¢) Financial guarantee contracts that are not in the first two categories of this article. and loan
commitments granted at a rate lower than market interest rates and that are not in the first category
of this article

Financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as financial liabilities measured ar fair
value through profit or loss are initiélly recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the subsequent measurement is determined according to the higher loss allowance of contingent
liabilities under expected credit loss model and the initial recognition amount deducting by the

accumulated amortization.

(3) Derecognition of financial instruments

1) If a financial asset meets one of the following conditions. it shall be derecognized:

a) The contractual right to receive the cash flow of the financial asset is terminated.

b) The financial asset has been transferred. and the transfer meets the requirements of the

“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 23 — Transfer of Financial Assets™ regarding
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derecognition of financial assets.

2) Conditions of derecognition of financial liabilities

If the current obligation of a financial liability (or a part thereof) has been discharged. the
financial liability (or such part of financial liability) is derecognized.

When the Company and the lender sign an agreement to replace the original financial liability
with a new financial liability. and the new financial liability is substantially different from the
original financial liability, the original financial liability is derecognized and a new financial liability
is recognized. The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration paid (including
the transferred non-cash assets or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss

If the Company repurchases part of the financial liabilities. the carrying amount of the financial
liabilities as a whole is allocated based on the proportion of the fair value of the continuing
recognition portion and the derecognition portion on the repurchase date. The difference between
the carrying amount assigned to the derecognition portion and the consideration paid (including the
transterred non-cash assets or liabilities assumed) shall be included in the current profit or loss.

(4) Recognition basis and measurement for transfer of financial assets

In the event of transfer of financial assets. the Company assesses the extent to which it retains
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets and treats them in the following cases:

1) If almost all risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets are transferred, the financial
assets are derecognized and the rights and obligations arising from or retained in the transfer are
separately recognized as assets or liabilities.

2) If almost all the risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets are retained. the financial
assets shall continue to be recognized

3) If there is neither transfer nor retention of almost all risks and rewards of ownership of
financial assets (i.e.. other than (1) and (2) of this article) . then depending on whether or not they
retain control over financial assets

a) If control over the financial asset is not retained. the financial asset shall be derecognized.
and the rights and obligations arising or retained during the transfer shall be separately recognized
as assets or liabilities.

b) If the control over the financial asset is retained. the relevant financial asset shall be
continuously recognized according to the degree of its continuous involvement in the transferred
financial asset. and the relevant liabilities shall be recognized accordingly. The degree of continued
involvement in the transferred financial assets refers to the degree to which the company bears the
risk or reward of the value change of the transferred financial assets

When judging whether the transfer of financial assets satisfies the conditions for derecognition
above, the principle of substance over form is adopted. The Company divides the transfer of

financial assets into the overall transfer and partial transfer of financial assets:
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1) If the overall transfer of financial assets meets the conditions for derecognition, the
difference between the following is included in the current profit or loss:

a) The carrying amount of the transferred financial assets on the date of derecognition.

b) The sum of the consideration received in respect of the transfer of financial assets and the
amount corresponding to the derecognized portion in the accumulated changes in the fair value
originally and directly recognized in other comprehensive income (the financial assets involved in
the transfer are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income)

If the transfer of a financial asset does not meet the conditions for derecognition. the financial
asset will continue to be recognized and the consideration received is recognized as a financial
liability

(5) Method for determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of tinancial assets or financial liabilities with active market is determined by
active market quotations: active market quotations include quotations that are readily and regularly
available from exchanges. dealers. brokers. industry groups, pricing agencies or regulatory
authorities for related assets or liabilities. and represent actual and frequently occurring market
transactions on a fair trade basis.

The fair value of financial assets initially acquired or derived or financial liabilities assumed
shall be determined on the basis of the market transaction price.

The fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities without active market is determined
using valuation techniques. In valuation, the Company adopts valuation techniques that are
applicable under current circumstances and that are supported by adequate available data and other
information. selects inputs with consistent asset or liabilitv characteristics considered by market
participants in trading related asset or liability, and uses relevant observable inputs where possible.
Unobservable inputs are used where the relevant observable inputs are not available or are

impracticable.

(6) Provision for impairment of financial assets

Based on the expected credit losses. the Company assesses the expected credit losses of the
financial assets measured at amortized cost and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables. contract assets. loan commitment and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. and financial guarantee contract etc.. and
makes impairment accounting and recognizes loss provisions.

The expected credit loss refers to the weighted average of the credit losses of financial
instruments that are weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers to the difference between all
contractual cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate and receivable from the

contract and all cash flows expected to be received by the Company. and the present value of all
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cash shortages. For financial assets that have been purchased or generated with credit impairment,
loss provision is recognized only for the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses after
the initial recognition on the balance sheet date.

For accounts receivable, contract assets, and lease receivables. the Company shall always
measure the loss allowance for them at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

For financial assets that have been purchased or generated with credit impairment, loss
provision is recognized only for the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses after the
initial recognition on the balance sheet date. On each balance sheet date. the amount of changes in
lifetime expected credit losses is included in profit or loss as an impairment loss or gain. Even if
the lifetime expected credit loss determined on the balance sheet date is less than the expected
credit loss reflected in the estimated cash flow at the initial recognition. the positive change in
expected credit loss is also recognized as an impairment gain

Except for the above-mentioned simplified measurement methods and purchased or originated
credit-impaired assets, the Company assesses whether the credit risk of the other financial assets has
increased significantly since the initial recognition on each balance sheet date. and separately
measures its loss provision. recognizes expected credit loss and its changes based on the following
circumstances:

a) If the credit risk of the financial instruments has not increased significantly since the initial
recognition, the loss provision is measured at the amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of
the financial instruments in the next 12 months. regardless of whether the basis the Company
assesses the credit loss is on individual financial instrument or the combination of financial
instruments. and the increase or reversal of the loss provision resulting therefrom shall be included
in the current profit or loss as an impairment loss or gain.

b) If the credit risk of the financial instruments has increased significantly since the initial
recognition but no impairment has occurred. the loss provision is measured at the amount equivalent
to the lifetime expected credit loss of the financial instruments. regardless of whether the basis the
Company assesses the credit losses is on individual financial instrument or a combination of
financial instruments, and the increase or reversal of the loss provision resulting therefrom should
be included in the current profit or loss as an impairment loss or gain.

¢) For financial insttuments in the third stage which the financial instrument has been impaired
since initial recognition, the Company measures loss provision on the basis of life-time expected
credit loss and calculating interest income according to their book balance minus the impairment
provision and the actual interest rate.

Incremental or reversal of credit loss provision shall be included in current profit or loss as

impairment loss or gain. Except for financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive

income. credit loss provision is to offset the carrying amount of financial assets. For financial assets
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at fair value through other comprehensive income. the credit loss provision is recognized in other
comprehensive income and will not offset the financial asset’s carrying amount in balance sheet.
If the Company recognized credit loss provision in prior accounting period in terms of life-
time credit loss. but on current period balance sheet date, the associated financial asset does not
belong to the situation of risk increased after the initial recognition, the Company shall accrue
credit loss provision for this financial asset based on the next 12 month expected credit loss.
Difference arose from above changes shall be included in current period profit or loss as

impairment gain.

1) Assessment of significant increase of credit risk

By comparing the default risk of financial instruments on balance sheet day with that on initial
recognition day. the Company determines the relative change of default risk of financial instruments
during the expected life of financial instruments. to evaluate whether the credit risk of financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition.

To determine whether credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition. factors

considered by the Company includes:

a) Whether there is serious deterioration of the debtor’s operating results that have occurred or

are expected to occur:

b) Changes in the existing or anticipated technological. market. economic or legal environment

will have a significant negative impact on the debtor’s repayment capacity.

¢) Serious deterioration of external or internal credit ratings (if any) of financial instruments

that have occurred or are expected to occur:

d) Whether the expected performance and repayment of debtor changes significantly.

e) Whether the Company changed the way of managing financial assets.

On the balance sheet date. if the Company assesses that the financial instrument only has lower
level of credit risk. the Company assumes that the credit risk associated with the financial
instrument does not increased after the initial recognition. If the default rate of a financial
wstrument is low and the debtor’s ability to fulfill its cash flow liability is strong. the financial
wstrument will be regarded with lower credit risk even if there will be adverse changed in
economic and operating environment in long-term which may not necessarily decrease the debtor’s
ability of fulfilling its cash flow liabilities.

2) Provision for impairment of financial assets

When one or more events that adversely affect the expected future cash flows of a financial
asset occur. the financial asset becomes a financial asset that has suffered credit impairment.
Evidence that credit impairment has occurred in a financial asset includes the following observable

information:
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a) significant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor:

b) the debtor breaches the contract, such as failure to pay or delay in the payment of interest or
principal;

¢) the creditor gives the debtor a concession which would not have been made under any other
circumstances for economic or contractual considerations relating to the financial difficulties of the
debtor;

d) the debtor is likely to go bankrupt or carry out other financial restructurings:

e) the financial difficulties of the issuer or the debtor cause the active market of the financial
asset to disappear:

f) purchase or source a financial asset at a substantial discount that reflects the fact that credit
losses have occurred.

The credit impairment of financial assets may be caused by the joint action of multiple events,
and may not be caused by separately identifiable event

3) Determining expected credit loss (ECL)

The Company evaluates ECL based on single or portfolio of financial instrument. When
evaluating ECL. the Company considers past events. current situation and future economic
condition.

The Company categorizes financial instrument into different portfolios based on common
credit risk characteristics. Common credit risk characteristics includes: tvpes of financial
instruments, aging portfolio. settlement period. debtor’s industries etc... Refer to accounting
policies of financial instruments for standard for single evaluation and credit risk characteristics.

The Company uses the following way to determine the ECL of financial instruments:

a) For financial assets, credit loss is the present value of difference between all contractual cash
flows receivable from the contract and all cash flows expected to be received by the Company.

b) For lease receivable. credit loss is the present value of difference between all contractual
cash flows receivable from the contract and all cash flows expected to be received by the Company.

¢) For financial guarantee contract, credit loss is the present value of expected payment amount
due to credit losses happened to the owner of the contract and less any amount that the Company
expected to receive from the contract owner. debtor or other parties.

d) For financial assets that already impaired on balance sheet date but not impaired when
purchasing, the credit loss is the difference of carrying amount and present value of future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate.

Factors that the Company measures ECL of financial instrument includes: assessing a series of
possible results and to determine a weighted average amount without bias: time value of money:
information of past event. current situation and future economic condition forecast that can be

obtained without paying extra cost or efforts on balance sheet date.
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4) Write off
If the Company no longer reasonably expects that the financial assets contract cash flow can
be recovered fully or partially, the financial assets book balance will be reduced directly. Such
reduction constitutes the derecognition of the financial assets.
(7) Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the balance sheet and are
not offset. However. if all of the following conditions are met. the net amount offset by each other
is presented in the balance sheet:
1) The Company has a statutory right to offset the recognized amount, and such legal right is
currently enforceable;
2) The Company plans to settle in net amount or to realize the financial assets and settle the

financial liabilities at the same time.

12. Bill receivables

Refer to Note XI. 6 Financial instrument impairment for details of ECL determination and
accounting method to bill receivable.

If the Company has sufficient evidence to evaluate the ECL of bill receivable on single basis.
it will be assessed on single basis.

If there is not sufficient evidence to evaluate the ECL on single basis. the Company will make
judgment based on historical loss experience, current situation and future economic situation, and

classifying the bill receivable into different portfolios. The basis for portfolios is determined as

follows:
Portfolio Basis method
Risk-free : ' . N . . T .
- i The issuer has higher level of credit rating and | Referencing historical impairment experience
- no default in past and has strong ability to | and taking into consideration of current
acceptance ; R, g e I .
o fulfil its contractual cash follow obligation situation and estimation of future conditions
e . : : e e
Bill receivables with same aging have similar . -
acceptance e e e = Based on aging analysis
- credit risk characteristics O Z

13. Accounts receivables

Refer to Note XI. 6 Financial instrument impairment for details of ECL determination and
accounting method to accounts receivable.

If the Company has sufficient evidence to evaluate the ECL of account receivable on single
basis. it will be assessed on single basis.

If there is not sufficient evidence to evaluate the ECL on single basis. the Company will make
judgment based on historical loss experience, current situation and future economic situation, and
classifying the account receivable into different portfolios. The basis for portfolios is determined

as follows:
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Portfolio Basis method
e T e , . Referencing historical impairment
Receivables for related = Account receivables for related parties in | Rel ESARINE S i
: : : e o "~ . i experience and taking into
parties in scope of @ scope of consolidation have similar credit g i ol .
consolidation | il dharanletics . consideration of current situation and
5 |t i

o _ . o | estimation of future conditions
Accounts  receivables = Account receivables with same aging have

i Based on aging analysis

from other parties similar credit risk characteristics

14. Other receivables
Refer to Note XI. 6 Financial instrument impairment for details of ECL determination and
accounting method to other receivables.
If the Company has sufficient evidence to evaluate the ECL of other receivables on single basis.
it will be assessed on single basis.
If there is not sufficient evidence to evaluate the ECL on single basis. the Company will make
judgment based on historical loss experience. current situation and future economic situation. and

classifying the other receivable into different portfolios. The basis for portfolios is determined as

follows:

Partfolio

Receivables of down pavment
and guarantee

Basis

The portfolio has similar

. credit risk characteristics

method

Based on aging and ECL rate

Petty cash for employees

Social security payment paid
on-behalf of employees

Receivables from related
parties  within  scope of
consolidation

Others

. The portfolio has similar
. credit risk characteristics

| The portfolio has similar

credit risk characteristics

The 'pénfo'lio ‘has similar |

credit risk characteristics

| and

Referencing historical impairment experience
and taking into consideration of current

_situation and estimation of future conditions

Referencing historical impairment experience
taking into consideration of current
simation and estimation of future conditions
Referencing historical impairment experience
and taking into consideration of current
situation and estimation of future conditions

The portfolio has similar

credit risk characteristics

Based on aging and ECL rare

15. Inventory

(1) Classification

Inventory refers to the finished products or commodities that the Company holds for sale in its
daily activities. semi-products in the production process, materials and consumables used in the
production process or the provision of labour services. Inventories include raw materials, work in
progress. and finished goods.

(2) Valuation method of inventory

When inventory is acquired. it is initially measured at cost. including procurement costs.
processing costs and other costs. When the inventory is issued. it is measured by the weighted
average method (except for branded watches) and specific identification method (for branded

watches) .
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(3) Basis for determining the net realizable value and method for provision for obsolete
inventories

After the inventory is thoroughly inspected at the end of the period. the provision shall be
provided or adjusted at the lower of the cost of the inventory and its net realizable value. The net
realizable value of inventory of goods directly used for sale. such as finished goods, stocked goods
and materials for sale in the normal production and operation process. is determined by the estimated
selling price of the inventory minus the estimated selling expenses and related taxes: net realizable
value of inventory of materials that need to be processed is determined based on the estimated selling
price of the finished products produced minus the estimated cost till completion. estimated selling
expenses and related taxes and fees in the normal production and operation process: the net
realizable value of the inventory held for the execution of a sales contract or labour contract is
calculated on the basis of the contract price. If the quantity of the inventory held exceeds the quantity
ordered by the sales contract, the net realizable value of the excess inventory is calculated based on
the general sales price.

The provision is accrued according to the individual inventory project at the end of the period:
but for a large number of inventories with lower unit price. the provision is accrued according to the
category of inventorv: for those related to the product series produced and sold in the same region,
have the same or similar end use or purpose and that are difficult to measure separately from other
projects. they are combined for provision for inventory depreciation

If the influencing factors of the write-down of inventory value have disappeared. the amount

of write down will be restored and will be reversed within the amount of the provision for decline
in value of the inventory that has been accrued. The amount of the reversal is included in the current
profit or loss

(4) Inventory count system

The Company maintains a perpetual inventory system.

(5) Amortization methods of low-value consumables and packaging materials

Low-value consumables and packaging materials are charged to profit or loss when they are
used. ‘

16. Contract assets

The Company has the right to receive the consideration for the transfer of goods to the

customers. If the right depends on factors other than the passage of time, it is recognized as a
contract asset. If the Company has the right (only depends on passage of time) to receive
consideration from client, accounts receivable shall be recognized.

Refer to Note XI 6 for impairment to contract asset.

17. Long-term Equity Investment

(1) Determination of investment cost
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1) For the long-term equity investment formed by business combination. the specific
accounting policies are detailed in the accounting treatment of business combination under common
control and not under common control as set out in this Note VL.

2) Long-term equity investment obtained by other means

The initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment obtained by cash payment is the
actual purchase price. The initial investment cost includes expenses directly related to the
acquisition of long-term equity investments, taxes and other necessary expenses

The initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment obtained by issuing equity
securities is the fair value of the issued equity securities; the transaction cost incurred in the
issuance or acquisition of its own equity instruments is deducted from equity if it is directly
attributable to equity transactions.

Under the premise that the non-monetary asset exchange has the commercial substance and the
fair value of the assets received or surrendered can be reliably measured. the initial investment cost
of the long-term equity investment exchanged for non-monetary assefs is determined based on the
fair value of the assets exchanged and relevant taxes payable. unless there is conclusive evidence
that the fair value of the assets transferred is more reliable: for the exchange of non-monetary asset
that does not meet the above premise. the initial investment cost of long-term equity investment is
the carrying amount of the assets exchanged and the related taxes and fees payable.

The initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment obtained through debt
restructuring includes the fair value of the waived debt. taxes that can be directly atiributable to
the asset and other costs

(2) Subsequent measurement and profit and loss recognition

1) Cost method

The long-term equity investment that the Company can control over the investee is accounted
for using the cost method. and the cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted by adding or
recovering the investment according to the initial investment cost. Except for the actual payment
or the cash dividends or profits included in the consideration that have been announced but not yet
paid at the time of acquiring the investment. the Company recognizes the current investment
income according to its share of cash dividends or profits declared to be distributed by the investee.

2) Equity method

The Company’s long-term equity investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method. and some of the equity investments in associates that are indirectly
held by venture capital institutions. mutual funds. trust companies or similar entities including
investment-linked insurance funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

When the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment is greater than the investment,

the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment shall not be adjusted by the difference
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between the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the investee: if the initial investment cost is
less than the investment, the difference between the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
investee should be included in the current profit or loss

After obtaining the long-term equity investment, the Company shall recognize the investment
income and other comprehensive income according to the share of net profit and loss and other
comprehensive income realized by the investee that is entitled or should be shared respectively.
and adjust the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment: and reduces the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment based on portion of the profit or cash dividend declared
to be distributed by the investee: and for other changes in the owners’ equity other than the net
profit or loss. other comprehensive income and profit distribution of the investee. the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment is adjusted and included in the owners’ equity.

When recognizing the share of the net profit or loss of the investee, the Company shall adjust
and recognize the net profit of the investee based on the fair value of the identifiable assets of the
investee at the time of obtaining the investment. The unrealized internal transaction gains and
losses between the Company and the associates and joint ventures shall be offset against the portion
attributable to the Company in accordance with the proportion to be enjoyed, on the basis of which
the investment gains and losses are recognized.

When the Company recognizes the losses incurred by the investee that it should bear. it shall
deal with it in the following order: Firstly. offset the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment. Secondly. if the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment is not enough to be
offset. the investment loss will continue to be recognized to the extent of carrying amount of other
long-term equity that virtually constitutes a net investment in the investee. and the carrying amount
of the long-term receivables is offset. Finally. after the above-mentioned treatment. if the enterprise
still bears additional obligations in accordance with the investment contract or agreement. the
projected liabilities are recognized according to the estimated obligations and included in the current
investment losses.

If the investee realizes profit in the future period. after deducting the unrecognized loss share,
and the reduction of book balance of the recognized projected liabilities and recovery of other long-
term equity that virtually constitutes a net investment in the investee and carrying amount of long-
term equity investment as opposite to the order above. the Company shall restore the investment
income.

(3) Conversion of accounting methods for long-term equity investment

1) Fair value measurement to equity method accounting

If the equity investment originally held by the Company that does not have control. joint control
or significant influence on the investee. which is accounted for according to the recognition and

measurement criteria of financial instruments. can exert significant influence on the investee or
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jointly control but does not constitute control over it due to additional investment and otherwise. its
initial investment cost shall be the sum of the fair value of the equity investment originally held in
accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments™ and new investment cost after being accounted for under
the equity method.

If the initial investment cost accounted for under the equity method is less than the fair value
share of the identifiable net assets of the investee on the additional investment date determined by
the new shareholding ratio after the additional investment. the carrying amount of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted and included in the current non-operating income.

2) Fair value measurement or equity method accounting to cost method accounting

If the equity investment originally held by the Company, that does not have control. joint
control or significant influence on the investee and which is accounted for in accordance with the
financial instrument recognition and measurement criteria, or the long-term equity investment
originally held in associates or joint venture. can exercise control over the investee not under
common control due to additional investment or otherwise. in the preparation of individual financial
statements. the sum of the carrying amount of the equity investment originally held plus the new
investment cost shall be regarded as the initial investment cost after being accounted for under the
cost method.

The other comprehensive income recognized by the equity method in respect of the equity
investment originally held before the purchase date is accounted for on the same basis as the investee
directly disposes of the relevant assets or liabilities when the investment is disposed of.

If the equity investment held before the purchase date is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Instruments™, the cumulative fair value changes originally included
in other comprehensive income are transferred to current profit or loss when the cost method is
adopted.

3) Equity method accounting to fair value measurement

If the Company loses joint control or significant influence on the investee due to the disposal
of part of the equity investment or otherwise, the remaining equity after disposal shall be accounted
for according to the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments”. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount on the date of losing joint control or significant impact is recognized in profit or loss.

The other comprehensive income recognized in respect of the original equity investment using
the equity method is accounted for on the same basis as the investee directly disposes of the relevant
asset

4) Cost method to equity method
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Where the Company loses control over the investee due to the disposal of part of the equity
investment, etc.. in the preparation of individual financial statements. if the remaining equity after
disposal can exercise joint control or significant influence on the investee, the equity method is
adopted for accounting, and the remaining equity is deemed to be adjusted under the equity method
when it is acquired.

3) Cost method to fair value measurement

Where the Company loses control over the investee due to the disposal of part of the equity
investment, etc., in the preparation of individual financial statements. if the remaining equity after
disposal cannot jointly control or exert significant influence on the investee, the relevant provisions
of the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments™ are adopted. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
on the date of loss of control is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

(4) Disposal of long-term equity investment

For the disposal of long-term equity investment, the difference between the carrying amount
and the actual purchase price shall be included in the current profit or loss. For the long-term equity
investment accounted for using the equity method. when the investment is disposed of. the part that
is originally included in the other comprehensive income is accounted for in the same proportion
based on the same basis as the investee directly disposes of the relevant assets or liabilities.

If the terms. conditions and economic impact of each transaction on disposal of the equity
investment in a subsidiary satisfy one or more of the following cases. the multiple transactions are
treated as a package transaction:

1) The transactions are made simultaneously or with consideration of each other’s influence:

2) The transactions as a whole can achieve a complete business outcome:

3) The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of at least one other transaction:

4) A transaction is uneconomic alone. but it is economic when considered together with other
transactions

Where the loss of control over the original subsidiary due to disposal of part of the equity
investment or otherwise which is not a package transaction. the individual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements shall be classified for relevant accounting treatment:

a) In the individual financial statements, the difference between the carrying amount of the
disposed equity and the actual purchase price is included in the current profit or loss. If the remaining
equity after disposal can exert joint control or significant influence on the investee. it shall be
accounted for under the equity method. and the residual equity shall be deemed to be adjusted by
equity method when it is acquired: if the remaining equity after disposal cannot exert joint control
or significant influence over the investee, it shall be accounted for by the relevant provisions of the

“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of
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Financial Instruments”, and the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount on the
date of loss of control is included in the current profit or loss.

b) In the consolidated financial statements, for each transaction before the loss of control over
the subsidiary, capital reserve (share premium) is adjusted for the difference between the disposal
price and the share of the net assets corresponding to the disposed long-term equity investment that
the subsidiary has continuously calculated from the date of purchase or the merger date: if the capital
reserve is insufficient to offset. the retained earnings will be adjusted: when the control of the
subsidiary is lost. the remaining equity shall be re-measured according to its fair value on the date
of loss of control. The sum of the consideration for the disposal of the equity and the fair value of
the remaining equity, less the share of the net assets that that the original subsidiary has continuously
calculated from the date of purchase calculated based on the original shareholding. is included in
the investment income for the period of loss of control, while reducing goodwill. Other
comprehensive income related to the original subsidiary’s equity investment will be converted into
current investment income when control is lost.

If each transaction on disposal of the equity investment in a subsidiary until the loss of control
is a package transaction, each transaction is accounted for as a transaction to dispose of the equity
investment in the subsidiary with loss of control. which is distinguished between individual financial
statements and consolidated financial statements:

a) In the individual financial statements. the difference between each disposal price and the
carrying amount of the long-term equity investment corresponding to the disposed equity before the
loss of control is recognized as other comprehensive income, and when the control is lost. it is
transferred to profit or loss for the period of the loss of control.

b) In the consolidated financial statements, the difference between each disposal price and the
disposal investment that has the share of the net assets of the subsidiary before the loss of control is
recognized as other comprehensive income, and transferred to profit or loss for the period of the
loss of control.

(5) Judging criteria for joint control and significant influence

If the Compan_v collectively controls an arrangement with other parties in accordance with the
relevant agreement. and the activity decision that has a significant impact on the return of the
arrangement needs to be unanimously agreed upon by the parties sharing the control. it is considered
that the Company and other parties jointly control an arrangement. which is a joint arrangement.

If the joint arrangement is reached through a separate entity and it determines that the Company
has rights to the net assets of the separate entity in accordance with the relevant agreement. the
separate entity is regarded as a joint venture and is accounted for using the equity method. If it is
judged according to the relevant agreement that the Company does not have rights to the net assets

of the separate entity, the separate entity acts as a joint operation, and the Company recognizes the
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items related to the share of the interests of the joint operation and conducts accounting treatment
in accordance with the relevant ASBEs.

Significant influence refers to the investor’s power to participate in the decision-making of the
financial and operating policies of the investee. but it cannot control or jointly control the
formulation of these policies with other parties. The Company has a significant influence on the
investee under one or more of the following situations and taking into account all facts and
circumstances: (1) it is represented on the board of directors or similar authorities of the investee:
(2) it involves in the formulation of financial and operating policy of the investee: (3) it has
important transactions with the investee: (4) it dispatches management personnel to the investee: (5)
it provides key technical information to the investee.

18. Investment Property

Investment property refers to property held for the purpose of earning rent or capital

appreciation. or both. including leased land use rights. land use rights held and prepared for transfer
after appreciation. and leased buildings. Besides. for empty constructions that the Company held
for rent lately but with the written resolution from the board stated that it will be used as operating
lease and that intention will not be changed in short-term. it can be treated as investment property.
The Company’s investment property is recorded at its cost, and the cost of purchased
investment property includes the purchase price. related taxes and other expenses directly
attributable to the asset: the cost of self-built investment property is composed of the necessary
expenses incurred before the asset is ready for expected use.

The Company adopts the cost model for subsequent measurement of investment property. and

depreciates or amortizes buildings and land use rights according to their estimated service life and

net residual value. Expected useful life. residual value and annual depreciation rate are as follows:

Estimated usetul life
B , (years) }
Property ‘ 20-35 | 5.00 4.80-2.70

Category Residual value rate % Depreciation rate %o

When the use of‘im'estmem property is changed to self-use. the Company converts the
investment property into fixed assets or intangible assets from the date of change. When the use of
self-use property changes to rental earning or capital appreciation. the Company converts fixed
assets or intangible assets into investment property from the date of change. When a conversion
occurs. the carrying amount before conversion is used as the converted value

The investment property is derecognized when the investment property is disposed of. or
permanently withdrawn from use and is not expected to obtain economic benefits from its disposal.
The amount of disposal income from the sale, transfer, retirement or damage of the investment
property after deducting its carrying amount and related taxes and expenses is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.

19. Fixed assets
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(1) Recognition conditions of fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to tangible assets held for the purpose of producing goods. providing labour
services. renting or operating management, and having a useful life of more than one fiscal year.
Fixed assets are recognized when they meet all of the following conditions:

1) the economic benefits associated with the fixed assets are likely to flow into the enterprise:

2) the cost of the fixed assets can be reliably measured.

(2) Initial measurement of fixed assets

The fixed assets of the Company are initially measured at cost.

1) The cost of outsourcing fixed assets includes the purchase price. import duties and other
related taxes and fees. as well as other expenses that can be directly attributed to the assets before
they reach their intended usable state.

2) The cost of self-built fixed assets is determined by the necessary expenditures incurred
before the assets reach their expected usable state.

3) For fixed assets invested by investors, the value agreed in the investment contract or
agreement is regarded as the book value, but the value agreed in the contract or agreement is not
accounted for at fair value.

4) If the payment for the purchase of fixed assets is delaved beyond the normal credit conditions.
and is of a financing nature in essence. the cost of fixed assets is determined on the basis of the
present value of the purchase price. The difference between the actual payment and the present value
of the purchase price is recorded in the current profit or loss during the credit period. except where
it should be capitalized.

(3) Subsequent measurement and disposal of fixed assets

1) Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation of fixed assets is accrued over the estimated useful life based on its recorded value
less the estimated net residual value. The fixed assets that have been provided for impairment
losses are depreciated in the future period based on the carrying amount after deducting the
impairment provision and the remaining useful life.

The Company determines the service life and estimated net residual value of fixed assets based
on the nature and use of fixed assets. At the end of the year. the service life. the estimated net
residual value and the depreciation method of the fixed assets are reviewed. If there is a difference
from the original estimate, corresponding adjustments will be made.

The depreciation method. depreciation period and annual depreciation rate of various fixed

assets are as follows.

1 : Estimated useful . ) 5
‘ y oo s Residual value ~ Depreciation
Class :Method of depreciation | life o : 5
— : rate % : rate %
: (years) ]
Property and plant Straight-line i 20-35 | 5.00 4.80-2.70
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‘Estimated useful

Class jMethod of depreciation life | Residual value | Dep recia?ion
(years) rate %. e rate %
téiiﬁ:ﬁ:ﬁ and | Stwightline 16 ” 5.00-1“0.0‘0"” 9.50-9.00
Electronic equipment Straight-line 5 T 19.00
\Iotox\ehlcles " Straight-line . T so0 P
6t11v;1‘5. ...... ] Straight-line 3 - 5.‘60 ] 19.06

2) Subsequent expenditures on fixed assets
Subsequent expenditures related to fixed assets that meet the conditions for recognition of fixed
assets are included in the cost of fixed assets: those that do not meet the conditions for recognition
of fixed assets are included in the current profit or loss when they occur.

3) Disposal of fixed assets

When a fixed asset is disposed of or no economic benefit is expected to result from its use or
disposal, the fixed asset is derecognized. The amount of disposal income from sale. transfer.
retirement or damage of the fixed asset after deducting its book value and related taxes is included
into the current profit or loss.

20. Construction in Progress

(1) Initial measurement of construction in progress

The self-built construction in progress of the Company is measured at the actual cost. which is
determined by the necessary expenses incurred before the construction of the asset reaches the
intended usable condition. including the cost of engineering materials. labour costs and relevant
taxes payable. capitalized borrowing costs and indirect costs that should be apportioned. The
Company’s construction in progress is classified into projects when in accounting

(2) Criteria for and time point of construction in progress to convert into fixed asset

The total expenditure incurred before the construction in progress project is constructed to
reach the intended usable condition shall be recorded as the book value of the fixed assets. For the
construction in progress built which has reached the intended usable condition. but has not yet
completed the final accounts. since the date of reaching expected use condition, according to the
project budget. cost or actual project costs, it shall be converted into fixed assets at the estimated
value. and fixed assets shall be depreciated in accordance with the depreciation policy of the
Company for fixed assets. After the completion of the final accounts, the original estimated value
shall be adjusted according to the actual cost. but the original depreciation amount shall not be
adjusted.

21. Borrowing Costs

(1) Recognition principle for capitalization of borrowing costs

If the borrowing costs of the Company can be directly attributable to the acquisition and

construction or production of assets eligible for capitalization, it shall start capitalization and be
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included in the cost of relevant assets in the case of eligible for capitalization: other borrowing
costs shall be recognized as expenses at the time of occurrence and shall be included in the current
profit or loss.

Assets that are eligible for capitalization are assets that require a long period of time to purchase
or produce activities to achieve fixed assets, investment property and inventory that are available
for intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs begin to capitalize when all of the following conditions are met:

1) Assets expenditure has occurred. including expenditure incurred in the form of cash payment.
transfer of non-cash assets or assuming of interest-bearing debt for the acquisition and construction
or production of assets eligible for capitalization:

2) Borrowing costs have already occurred:

3) The purchase and construction or production activities necessary for the assets to reach the
intended use or saleable status have started.

(2) Capitalization period of borrowing costs

The period of capitalization refers to the period from the point of time when the borrowing
costs are capitalized to the point of time where the capitalization is stopped. excluding the period
during which the borrowing costs are suspended from capitalization.

The borrowing costs shall cease 1o be capitalized when the assets acquired or produced that
meet the conditions for capitalization are ready for intended use or sale.

When a part of the assets purchased or produced that meet the capitalization conditions are
completed and can be used alone. such part of the assets shall stop capitalization of borrowing costs.

Where each part of the assets purchased or produced is completed separately. but must wait
until the whole is completed or can be sold externally. the capitalization of the borrowing costs shall
be stopped when the assets are completed as a whole.

(3) Suspension of capitalization period

If the assets that meet the capitalization conditions are interrupted abnormally during the
construction or production process and the interruption time lasts for more than 3 months. the
capitalization of borrowing costs shall be suspended: the bbrrou-‘ing costs shall continue to be
capitalized if the acquisition or production of assets eligible for capitalization is necessary to meet
the required usable status or the availability of sales. The borrowing costs incurred during the
interruption are recognized as profit or loss for the current period and the borrowing costs continue
to be capitalized until the acquisition or production of assets is resumed.

(4) Calculation for capitalization amount of borrowing costs

Interest charges on special borrowings (excluding interest income on unused borrowings
deposited in the bank. or investment income on temporary investment) and their ancillary expenses

shall be capitalized before the assets purchased or produced that meet the capitalization conditions
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are ready for intended use or sale.

The amount of capitalized interest on general borrowings is calculated by the weighted average
of the excess portion of the accumulative asset expenditures over the special borrowings multiplied
by the capitalization rate of general borrowings. The capitalization rate is determined based on the
weighted average interest rate of general borrowings.

Where there is a discount or premium in the borrowings, the interest amount shall be adjusted
in accordance with the effective interest rate method to determine the discount or premium amount
that shall be amortized during each accounting period.

22. Right-of-use Assets

The Company initially measures the right-to-use assets at cost. which includes:

(1) initial measurement amount of lease liabilities:

(2) lease pavments made before or at the beginning of the lease term. and deduction of the
relevant amount of rental incentives if any:

(3) initial direct expenses incurred by the Company:

(4) expected costs to be incurred by the Company for dismantling and removing leased assets.
restoring the site of leased assets or restoring leased assets to the state agreed in the lease terms
(excluding costs incurred for the production of inventory)

After the beginning of the lease term. the Company adopts the cost model for subsequent

measurement of the right-of-use assets

If it is reasonably certain to obtain the ownership of the leased assets at the expiration of the

lease term. the Company shall depreciate the leased assets within the remaining useful life of the
leased assets. If it 1s not reasonably certain to obtain the ownership of the leased assets at the
expiration of the lease term. the Company shall depreciate the leased assets within the shorter of
the lease term and the remaining useful life of the leased assets. For the right-of-use assets with
impairment provision, depreciation shall be calculated based on the book value after deduction of
impairment provision in according with the above principles in future periods.

23. Intangible Assets and Development Expenditure

Intangible assets refer to the identifiable non-monetary assets owned or controlled by the
Company which have no physical form, including land use rights. software and trademark use rights.

(1) Initial measurement of intangible assets

The cost of externally purchased intangible assets includes the purchase price, relevant taxation
and other expenses directly attributable to bringing the assets to expected usage. If payment for the
purchase price of intangible assets is delayed beyond normal credit conditions and is in fact
financing in nature, the cost of the intangible assets is determined based on the present value of the
purchase price.

For intangible asset obtained through debt restructuring for offsetting the debt of the debtor, its
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initial measurement cost includes the fair value of the waived creditor’s rights and taxes and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to expected usage. The difference between the fair
value of the waived creditor’s rights and the carrying amount shall be recognized in profit or loss
for the period.

The book value of intangible asset received in exchange for non-monetary asset is based on the
fair value of the asset surrendered and relevant taxes payable. provided that the exchange of
nonmonetary asset has a commercial substance and the fair value of both the asset received and the
asset surrendered can be reliably measured, except there is definite evidence that the fair value of
the asset received is more reliable; for exchange of non-monetary asset that cannot satisfy the above
conditions. the cost of the intangible asset received is based on the carrying amount of the asset
surrendered and relevant taxes payable, and no profit or loss is recognized.

For intangible asset obtained through business absorption or combination under common
control. its book value is determined by the carrving amount of the combined party: for intangible
asset obtained through business absorption or merger not under common control. its book value is
determined by the fair value of the intangible asset.

The cost of an internally developed intangible asset includes the materials consumed in
developing the intangible asset, labour costs, registration fees. amortization of other patented rights
and licensed rights used during the development process, interest expenses meeting capitalization
conditions. and other direct costs for bringing the intangible asset to expected usage.

(2) Subsequent measurement of intangible assefs

The Company determines the useful life of intangible assets on acquisition, which are classified
as intangible assets with limited useful life and indefinite useful life.

1) Intangible assets with a limited useful life

Intangible assets with a limited useful life are depreciated using straight line method over the
term during which they bring economic benefits to the Company. The estimated life and basis for

the intangible assets with a limited useful life are as follows:

Irem éEstimated useful life Amortization method
Land use right N \0 . St:.‘a.j;qh!—line
Software systems 1 s | Straight-line
Right to use thé trademark I 5-10 N Staight-line

The useful life and depreciation method of intangible assets with a limited useful life are
reassessed at the end of each period. If there is a difference from the original estimate, corresponding
adjustments will be made.

Upon re-assessment, there was no difference in the useful life and depreciation method of
intangible assets from the previous estimates at the end of the period.

(3) Specific basis for determining the research stage and development stage of internal
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research and development projects of the Company

Research stage: a stage of scheduled innovative investigations and research activities for the
acquisition and understanding of new scientific or technical knowledge.

Development stage: before the commercial production or use. the research results or other
knowledge will be applied to a plan or design to produce new or substantial improvements in
materials, devices, products and other activities.

The expenditure of the research stage of the internal research and development project is
included in the current profit or loss at the time of occurrence

(4) Specific standard for capitalization of expenditure in the development stage

The expenditure of an internal research and development project in the development stage is
recognized as an intangible asset when meeting all of the following conditions:

1) It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it can be used or sold:

2) With an intention to complete the intangible asset and to use or sell it:

3) The way the intangible asset generates economic benefits can prove the existence of a market
for the products produced using the intangible asset or a market for the intangible asset itself. and if
the intangible asset will be used internally. its usefulness can be proven:

4) Having sufficient technical. financial resources and other resource support to complete the
development of the intangible asset. and having the ability to use or sell the intangible asset:

5) Expenditure attributable to the development stage of the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.

Expenditures incurred in the development stage that do not meet the above conditions shall be
included in the current profit or loss at the time of occurrence. The development expenditures which
have been included in the profit or loss in the previous periods will not be recognized as an asset in
the future period. The capitalized expenditures in the development phase are shown in the balance
sheet as development expenditures and are converted into intangible assets from the date of the
project’s intended use.

24. Impairment on Long-term Assets

On the balance sheet date, the C bmpany determines whether there may be a sign of impairment
on long-term assets. If there is a sign of impairment on long-term assets. the recoverable amount is
estimated on the basis of a single asset. If it is difficult to estimate the recoverable amount of a single
asset, then determine the recoverable amount of the asset group on the basis of the asset group to
which the asset belongs.

The estimated recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less the cost of
disposal and the present value of the expected future cash flow of the asset.

The measurement results of recoverable amount show that when the recoverable amount of an

long-term asset is lower than its book value, the book value of the long-term asset is reduced to its
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recoverable amount. The reduced amount is recognized as an impairment loss on the asset and
included in the current profit or loss, at the same time. asset impairment provision will be made
accordingly. Asset impairment loss shall not be reversed during the subsequent accounting period
once recognized.

After the asset impairment loss is recognized. the depreciation or amortization expenses of the
impaired assets will be adjusted accordingly in the future period. so that the assets’ book value after
adjustment (deducting the estimated net residual value) will be systematically apportioned over the
remaining useful life of the assets.

No matter whether there is any sign of impairment or not, the impairment test is carried out
every year for goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life arising from an enterprise
merger.

In the impairment test of goodwill, the book value of goodwill would be apportioned to asset
group or portfolio of asset group expected to benefit from the synergy effect of an enterprise merger.
When taking an impairment test on the relevant asset group or portfolio of asset group containing
goodwill. if there is a sign of impairment on the asset group or portfolio of asset group related to the
goodwill, the Company first calculates the recoverable amount after testing the asset group or
portfolio of asset group which does not contain the goodwill for impairment. and then compares it
with the related book value to recognize the corresponding impairment loss. Next. the Company
conducts an impairment test on the asset group or portfolio of asset group which contains the
goodwill and compares the book value of the related asset group or portfolio of asset group (book
value includes the share of goodwill) with the recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount of the
related asset group or portfolio of asset group is lower than the book value, the Company will
recognize the impairment loss of goodwill.

25. Long-term Deferred Expenses

(1) Amortization method

Long-term deferred expenses refer to expenses that have already been spent by the Company.
but shall be apportioned in the current period and the future periods and the benefit period is over 1
vear. Long-term deferred expenses are amortized in benefit period

(2) Amortization period

Category Amortization period Note
Counter fabrication expenses N 2-3 -
DeCOl'.Z-I-ti;)-I..-l e\peuses : V 3-5
Others | _ 2-3 T |

26. Contract liabilities
The obligation to transfer goods to a customer for which consideration has been received or

receivable is recognized in part as a contract liability
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27. Employee Remuneration

Employee remuneration refers to the various forms of remuneration or compensation given by
the Company to obtain the services provided by the employees or to terminate the labour relationship.
Employee remuneration includes short-term remuneration. post-employment benefits. termination
benefits and other long-term employee benefits.

(1) Short-term remuneration

Short-term remuneration refers to the employee compensation other than post-employment
benefits and termination benefits required to be fully paid by the Company within 12 months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render relevant services. During the
accounting period in which the employees render services. the Company recognizes the short-term
remuneration payable as liabilities and includes the same in related asset costs or expenses according
to the object which benefits from the services rendered by employees.

(2) Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits refer to various forms of remuneration and benefits other than short-
term remuneration and termination benefits provided by the Company after the retirement of
employees or termination of labour relationship with the Company in exchange for the services
rendered by employees.

The Company’s post-employment benefits is defined contribution plan.

Defined contribution plan of the post-employment benefits mainly refers to the social basic
endowment insurance. unemployment insurance. etc. organized and implemented by local labour
and social security institutions: During the accounting period when employees render services to
the Company. amount payable calculated by the defined contribution plan is recognized as a liability
and included in the current profit or loss or related asset costs.

The Company will no longer have any other payment obligations after making the above-
mentioned payments on a regular basis in accordance with the standards and annuity plans
prescribed by the State.

(3) Termination benefits

Termination benefits refer to the compensation paid to an employee when the Company
terminates the employment relationship with the employee before the expiry of the employment
contract or provides compensation as an offer to encourage the employee to accept voluntary
redundancy. The Company recognizes the liabilities arising from the compensation paid to terminate
the employment relationship with employees and includes the same in the current profit or loss at
the earlier date of the following: 1) when the Company cannot reverse the termination benefits due
to the plan of cancelling the labour relationship or the termination benefits provided by the advice
of reducing staff: and 2) the Company recognizes the cost or expense relative to the payment of

termination benefits of restructuring into the current profit or loss.
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The Company provides internal retirement benefits to employees who accept internal
retirement arrangements. The internal retirement benefits refer to the remuneration and the social
insurance premiums paid to the employees who have not reached the retirement age set by the State,
and voluntarily withdrew from the job after approval of the Company’s management. The Company
pays internal retired benefits to an internal retired employee from the day when the internal
retirement arrangement begins till the employee reaches the normal retirement age. For internal
retirement benefits, the Company conducts accounting treatment in contrast to the termination
benefits. When the related recognition conditions of termination benefits are met. the Company will
recognize the remuneration and the social insurance premiums of the internal retired employee to
be paid during the period between the employee’s termination of service and normal retirement date
as liabilities and include the same in the current profit or loss in one time. Changes in actuarial
assumptions of internal retirement benefits and differences arising from the adjustment of welfare
standards are included in current profit or loss when incurred.

(4) Other long-term emplovee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits refer to all employee benefits except for short-term
remuneration, post-emploviment benefits, and termination benefits. For other long-term employee
benefits that meet the conditions of the defined contribution plan. during the accounting period in
which the emplovees provide services for the Company. the amount that should be paid is
recognized as a liability and is included in the current profit or loss or related asset costs. In addition
to the above situations. other long-term emplovee benefits are actuarially calculated by the
independent actuary using the expected cumulative welfare unit method on the balance sheet date.
and the welfare obligations arising from the defined benefit plans are attributed to the period during
which the employees provide services and are included in the current profit or loss or related asset
COsts.

28. Projected liabilities

(1) Basis for recognition of projected liabilities

The Company will recognize projected liabilities if the obligation relating to contingent matters
meets all of the following conditions:

This obligation is a present obligation assumed by the Company:

The fulfillment of this obligation will probably cause the outflow of economic benefits from
the Company:

The amount of this obligation can be measured reliably.

(2) Measurement method of projected liabilities

The initial measurement of projected liabilities of the Company is based on the best estimate
of the expenditure required for the performance of the related present obligations.

When determining the best estimate. the Company comprehensively considers the risks,
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uncertainties relating to the contingent matters and time value of currency. If the time value of
currency has a great influence, the Company determines the best estimate by discounting the related
future cash outflows.

The best estimate is determined in different situations as follow:

If there is a continuous range (or interval) of the required expenditure and the probability of
the occurrence of all the results in the range is the same, the best estimate is determined according
to the median value of the range. which is the average of the upper and lower limit.

Where there is not a continuous range (or interval) of the required expenditure. or there is a
continuous range. but the probability of the occurrence of all the results in the range is different. if
the contingencies involve a single project. the best estimate is determined by the amount which is
most likely to occur: if the contingencies involve a number of projects. the best estimate is
determined based on various possible results and related probability calculation.

If all or part of the expenses of the Company required to settle projected liabilities are expected
to be compensated by a third party and it is basically certain to receive the amount of compensation,
it is independently recognized as an asset. The amount of compensation recognized will not exceed
the book value of the projected liabilities.

29. Lease liabilities

The Company initially measures the lease liabilities according to the present value of the
unpaid lease payments at the beginning of the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease
payments. the Company adopts the interest rate implicit in the lease as the discount rate. If it is
impossible to determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. the incremental borrowing rate of the
Company shall be used as the discount rate. Lease payments include:

(1) Fixed payments and substantive fixed payments after deducting the relevant amount of
lease incentives:

(2) Variable lease payments depending on an index or rate:

(3) Where the Company reasonably determines that the option will be exercised, the amount
of the lease pavment includes the exercise price of purchase option:

(4) Where the lease term reflects that the Company will exercise the option 10 terminate the
lease. the amount of the lease payment includes the amount to be paid for the exercise of the
option to terminate the lease:

(5) Expected payments based on the guaranteed residual value provided by the Company.

The Company calculates the interest charges of the lease liabilities for each period of the
lease term at a fixed discount rate and includes the same in the profit or loss of the current period
or the related asset costs.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities shall be included

in the current profit or loss or the related asset costs when they actually occur.
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30. Share-based payment

(1) Category of share-based payment

The Company’s share-based payments include equity-settled share-based payments and cash
settled share-based payments.

(2) Recognition method of fair value of equity instrument

For options and other equity instruments granted by the Company with an active market. the
fair value is determined at the active market quotations. For options and other equity instruments
granted by the Company with no active market, option pricing model shall be used to estimate the
fair value of the equity instruments. Factors as follows shall be taken into account using option
pricing models: 1) the exercise price of the option, 2) the validity of the option. 3) the current price
of the target share. 4) the expected volatility of the share price. 5) predicted dividend of the share.
6) risk-free rate of the option within the validity period.

In determining the fair value of the equity instruments at the date of grant. the Company shall
consider the impact of market conditions in the vesting conditions and non-vesting conditions stated
in the share-based payment agreement. If there are no vesting conditions in the share-based
payments, as long as the employees or other parties satisfy the non-market conditions in all of the
vesting conditions (such as term of service) . the Company shall recognize the services rendered as

an expense accordingly.

(3) Recognition basis for the best estimate of exercisable equity instruments

On each balance sheet date within the vesting period. the estimated number of exercisable
equity instruments is amended based on the best estimate made by the Company according to the
latest available subsequent information as to changes in the number of employees with exercisable
rights. As at the exercise date. the final estimated number of exercisable equity instruments should
equal the actual number of exercisable equity instruments.

(4) Accounting treatment

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted to employees. For those exercisable immediately after the grant. they shall be included in
the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of equity instruments at the grant date with an increase
in capital reserve accordingly. For those exercisable only after provision of services or satistaction
of prescribed performance conditions within the vesting period. on each balance sheet date within
the vesting period, the Company will recognize the services received in the current period in related
costs or expenses and capital reserves at the fair value of equity instruments on the grant date based
on the best estimate of the number of exercisable equity instruments. After the vesting period.
relevant costs or expenses and total owners’ equity which have been recognized will not be adjusted.

Cash-settled share-based payments are calculated by the fair value of liabilities assumed in
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accordance with the Company’s shares or other equity instruments. For those exercisable
immediately after the grant, they shall be included in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value
of the liabilities assumed by the Company at the grant date with an increase in liabilities accordingly.
For cash-sertled share-based payments exercisable only after provision of services or satisfaction of
prescribed performance conditions within the vesting period. on each balance sheet date within the
vesting period. the Company will recognize the services received in the current period in costs or
expenses and corresponding liabilities at the amount of fair value of the liabilities assumed by the
Company based on the best estimate of the number of exercisable equity instruments. At each
balance sheet date and the settlement date prior to the settlement of relevant liabilities. the fair value
of the liabilities is re-measured through profit or loss.

During the vesting period. if the equity instruments granted are cancelled. the Company will
treat the cancelled equity instruments granted as accelerated vesting, and the amount within the
remaining period should be recognized immediately in profit or loss while recognizing the capital
reverse. If employees or other parties can meet non-vesting conditions but do not meet within the

vesting period, the Company will treat it as cancelled equity instruments granted.

31. Revenue

The Company’s revenue mainly come from:

1) Sales of watch

2) Precision manufacturing

3) Property leasing

(1) General principal of revenue recognition

The Group recognizes revenue when the contract performance obligations have been fulfilled
i.e. the customer has gained control over the relevant goods or services.

Performance obligations means the Company’s commitment to transfer identifiable goods or
service to clients.

Obtaining control of the relevant goods means that it is able to dominate the use of the goods
and derive almost all economic benefits therefrom.

The Company assesses contracts at the beginning date of a contract to identify each
performance obligations contained in a contract and to determine whether each performance
obligation is to be finished over a period of time or at a point of time. The Company satisfies a
performance obligation over fime if one of the following criteria is met: or otherwise. a
performance obligation is satisfied at a certain point in time: 1) the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company
performs: 2) the customer can control the goods under construction during the Company’s
performance: 3) the Company’s performance does not create goods with an alternative use to it

and the Company has a right to payment for performance completed to date throughout the contract
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term. Otherwise, the Company recognizes revenue at the point of time.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the Company recognizes revenue over time by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. When the
outcome of that performance obligation cannot be measured reasonably. but the Company expects
to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognizes
revenue only to the extent of the amount of costs incurred until it can reasonably measure the
outcome of the performance obligation

(2) Detailed method for revenue recognition
The Company has three main business sectors: sales of watch. precision manufacturing and
property leasing. Based on the Company’s business mode and terms of settlement. the Company set
detailed method of revenue recognition method as follows:

1) Sales of watch

Sale of watch belongs to fulfilling performance obligations at a point of time.

1 Online sales

Revenue shall be recognized at the point that the goods are dispatched and the customer

confirmed received the goods.

2) Offline sales

Revenue shall be recognized at the point when the goods are delivered and payment by

customer is collected.

3) Consignment sale

The Company recognizes revenue when the Company receives the detail of the sales list from

distributors and confirms that the control over goods ownership were transferred to the purchaser.

4) Sale of consigned goods from others

Under Sale of consigned goods from others, the Group recognizes revenue in net amount when

it delivered consigned sale goods to customer and confirms that control over the ownership of goods
were transferred to the purchaser.

2) Precision manufacturing

Precision manufacturing business belongs to fultilling performance obligations at a point of

time. Revenue from domestic sales shall be recognized when the goods are delivered and the
economic benefit associated with the goods is probable to flow into the Company. Revenue from
export shall be recognized when the following criteria is satisfied: The Company declared the good
at custom: obtained bill of lading: the right of collecting payment is obtained and its probable that
the economic benefit associated with the goods flows into the Company.

3) Property leasing

Refer to Note III 35. (4) for details.

(3) Revenue treatment principles for specific transactions
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1) Contracts with sales return provisions

When the customer obtains control of the relevant goods, revenue is recognized based on the
amount of consideration expected to be received due to the transfer of goods to the customers
(exclusive of the amount expected to be refunded due to the return of sales) . while liability is
recognized based on the amount expected to be refunded due to the return of sales.

The carrying amount of goods expected to be returned at sales of goods, after deduction of
costs expected to incur for recovery of such goods (including impairment of value of the returned
goods) . will be accounted for under the item of “Right of return assets™.

2) Contracts with quality assurance provisions

The Company assesses whether a separate service is rendered in respect of the quality
assurance besides guaranteeing the sales of goods to customers are in line with the designated
standards. When additional service is provided by the Company. it is considered as a single
performance obligation and under accounting treatment according to the standards on revenue:
otherwise. quality assurance obligations will be under accounting freatment according to the
accounting standards on contingent matters

32. Contract costs

(1) Contract performance cost

The Company recognizes the cost of contract performance as an asset for the cost of performing
the contract as meeting all of the following conditions:

1) The cost is directly related to a current or expected contract. including direct labour. direct
materials. manufacturing expenses (or similar expenses) , costs clearly to be borne by the customer.
and other costs incurred solelv for the contract:

2) This cost increases the resources that the company will use to fulfill its performance
obligations in the future.

3) The cost is expected to be recovered

The asset will be presented under inventory or other non-current assets based on the length of
its amortization period.

(2) Contract obtainment cost

If the incremental cost of the Company is expected to be recovered. the contract acquisition
cost is recognized as an asset. Incremental cost refers to the cost that the Company will not occur
without obtaining a contract. such as sales commission. For the amortization period not exceeding
one year, it is included in the current profit or loss when it occurs.

(3) Amortization of contract costs

The Company recognizes the contract performance cost and the contract acquisition cost on
the same basis as the commodity income related to the contract cost asset. and amortizes it at the

time when the performance obligation is performed or in accordance with the performance of the
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performance obligation. and is included in the current profit or loss.

(4) Contract cost impairment

For assets related to contract costs. if the book value is higher than the difference between the
remaining consideration expected to be received by the Company for transfer of the goods related
to the assets and the estimated cost of transferring the relevant goods. the excess should be
depreciated and confirmed as an asset impairment loss

If the factors caused impairment changed after impairment provision is accrued. impairment

provision shall be reversed and included in current period profit or loss but the carrying amount of
asset after the reversal shall not exceed the carrying amount at the reversal date as if there was no
impair.

33. Government Subsidies

(1) Classification

Government subsidies refer to monetary and non-monetary assets received from the
government without compensation. however excluding the capital invested by the government as a
corporate owner. According to the subsidy objects stipulated in the documents of relevant
government, government subsidies are divided into subsidies related to assets and subsidies related
to incotne.

Government subsidies related to assets are obtained by the Company for the purposes of
acquiring. constructing or otherwise forming long-term assets. Government subsidies related to
income refer to the government subsidies other than those related to assets

(2) Recognition of government subsidies

Where evidence shows that the Company complies with relevant conditions of policies for
financial supports and is expected to receive the financial support funds at the end of the period. the
amount receivable is recognized as government subsidies. Otherwise. the government subsidy is
recognized upon actual receipt.

Government subsidies in the form of monetary assets are stated at the amount received or
receivable. Government subsidies in the form of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value: if
fair value cannot be reliably obtained. a nominal amount (RMBI) is used. Government subsidies
that are measured at nominal amount shall be recognized in the current profit or loss directly.

(3) Accounting treatment

The Company determines whether a government subsidy shall use gross method or net method
based on its economical substance. In general. only one method is used for one category or similar
government subsidy and it shall be used in a consistent way.

Government subsidies related to assets are recognized as deferred income. and are recognized,
under reasonable and systematic approach, in profit and loss in each period over the useful life of

the constructed or purchased assets:
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Government subsidies related to income aiming at compensating for relevant expenses or
losses to be incurred by the enterprise in subsequent periods are recognized as deferred income. and
are recognized in current profit or loss when relevant expenses or losses are recognized. Government
subsidies aiming at compensating for relevant expenses or losses of the enterprise that are already
incurred are charged to current profit or loss once received.

Government subsidies related to daily activities of enterprises are included in other income:
government subsidies that are not related to daily activities of enterprises are included in non-
operating income and expense.

Government subsidies related to the discount interest received from policv-related preferential
loans offset the relevant borrowing costs; if the policy-based preferential interest rate loan provided
by the lending bank is obtained. the borrowing amount actually received shall be taken as the
recording value of the borrowings. and borrowing cost should be calculated using the preferential
interest rate according to the loan principal and the policy.

When it is required to return recognized government subsidy, if such subsidy is used to write
down the carrving value of relevant assets on initial recognition. the carrying value of the relevant
assets shall be adjusted: if there is balance of relevant deferred income, it shall be written down to
the book balance of relevant deferred income, and the excess is included in the current profit or loss:
where there is no relevant deferred income. it shall be directly included in the current profit or loss

34. Deferred Income Tax Assets and Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured and recognized
based on the difference (temporary difference) between the taxable base of assets and liabilities and
book value. On balance sheet date. the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
are measured at the applicable tax rate during the period when it is expected to recover such assets
or settle such liabilities.

(1) Criteria for recognition of deferred income tax assets

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets arising from deductible temporary
difference to the extent it is probably that future taxable amount will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. and deductible losses and taxes can be carried
forward to subsequent years. However. the deferred income tax assets arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction with the following features are not recognized: 1)
the transaction is not a business combination: 2) neither the accounting profit or the taxable income
or deductible losses will be affected when the transaction occurs.

For deductible temporarv difference in relation to investment in the associates, corresponding
deferred income tax assets are recognized in the following conditions: the temporary difference is
probably reversed in a foreseeable future and it is likely that taxable income is obtained for

deduction of the deductible temporary difference in the future.
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(2) Criteria for recognition of deferred income tax liabilities

The Company recognizes deferred income tax liabilities on the temporary difference between
the taxable but not yet paid taxation in the current and previous periods, excluding:

1) temporary difference arising from the initial recognition of goodwill;

2) a transaction or event arising from non-business combination, and neither the accounting
profit or the taxable income (or deductible losses) will be affected when the transaction or event
occurs:

3) for taxable temporary difference in relation to investment in subsidiaries or associates. the
time for reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and the temporary difference is
probably not reversed in a foreseeable future

(3) When all of the following conditions are satisfied, deferred income tax assets and

deferred income tax liabilities shall be presented on a net basis

1) An enterprise has the statutory right to settle the current income tax assets and current
income tax liabilities at their net amounts:

2) The deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities relate to income faxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities on a net
basis. or to realize the assets and seftle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled.

35. Lease

On the commencement date of the contract. the Company evaluates whether the contract is a
lease or contains a lease. If one party to a contract gives up the right to control the use of one or
more identifiable assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration. the contract is a lease or
contains a lease.

(1) Splitting a lease contract

When the contract contains a number of separate leases. the Company will split the contract
into separate leases for accounting individually.

When the contract contains both leasing and non-leasing parts. the C’ompauy' will split the
leasing and non-leasing parts. The leasing part shall be accounted for in accordance with the lease
standards. and the non-leasing part shall be accounted for in accordance with other applicable
accounting standards for business enterprises.

(2) Combination of lease contracts

When two or more lease-containing contracts concluded by the Company with the same trader
or its related parties at the same time or at a similar time meet one of the following conditions. the

Company shall merge them into one contract for accounting:
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1) Such two or more contracts are concluded for general commercial purposes and constitute a
package of transactions. If these are not considered as a whole, these overall comimercial purposes
cannot be recognized.

2) The amount of consideration for a contract in such two or more contracts depends on the
pricing or performance of other contracts.

3) The right-of-use assets transferred by such two or more contracts together constitute a
separate lease.

(3) Accounting treatment for the Company as a lessee

On the commencement date of lease term, the Company recognizes right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases. in addition to short-term leases and low-value asset leases with
simplified treatment.

1) Short-term lease and low value lease

Short-term lease refers to a lease that does not include purchase options and has a lease term
not exceeding 12 months. Low-value asset lease refers to the lease with lower value when a single
leased asset is a new asset.

The Company does not recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term lease
and low value lease. The pavment of such leases shall be charged to profit or loss using straight-
line method or other systematic method.

2) Refer to Note III. 22 and Note III. 29 for accounting policies for right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities.

(4) Accounting treatment for the Company as a lessor

1) Classification of leases

The Company divides leases into financial leases and operating leases on the start date of the
lease. Financial lease refers to a lease that essentially transfers almost all of the risks and rewards
related to the ownership of leased assets. Its ownership may or may not be transferred eventually.
Operating leases refer to leases other than financial leases.

If a lease has one or more of the following characteristics, the Company usually classifies it as
a financial lease: ‘

T) At the expiry of the lease term. the ownership of the leased assets is transferred to the lessee.
2) The lessee has the option to purchase the leased assets, and the purchase price set by the

lessee is low enough compared with the expected fair value of the leased assets when exercising the
option. Therefore, it can be reasonably determined on the lease start date that the lessee will exercise

the option.
@ Although the ownership of the assets is not transferred. the lease term accounts for the

majority of the life of the leased assets.
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(@) On the commencement date of the lease, the present value of the lease receipts is almost
equal to the fair value of the leased assets.

5) The nature of leased assets is special. If there is no major transformation. only the lessee
can use them.

If one or more of the following conditions exist in a lease, it may also be classified as a financial
lease:

(1) If the lessee stops the lease. the lessee shall bear the losses caused by the termination of the
lease to the lessor.

20 The profits or losses caused by the fluctuation of the fair value of the balance of assets
belong to the lessee.

3 The lessee can continue to lease far below the market level for the next period.

2) Accounting treatment for financial leases

On the commencement date of lease term. the Company recognizes the financial lease
receivable on the financial leases and derecognizes the financial lease assets.

When the initial measurement of the financial lease receivable is made. the book value of the
financial lease receivable is the sum of the unsecured balance and the present value of lease receipts
that have not vet been received at the beginning of the lease term discounted at the interest rate
implicit in the lease. The lease receipts include:

1 Fixed payments and substantive fixed pavments after deducting the relevant amount of lease
incentives:

2) Variable lease payments depending on an index or rate:

3) In the case of reasonably determining that the lessee will exercise the purchase option, the
lease receipts include the exercise price of purchase option:

1) If the lease term reflects that the lessee will exercise the option to terminate the lease. the
lease receipts include the amount to be paid by the lessee in exercising the option to terminate the
lease:

5) Guarantee residual value provided to the lessor by the lessee. the party concerned with the
lessee and an independent third party with financial capacity to fulfill the guarantee obligation.

The Company calculates and recognizes the interest income for each period of the lease term
based on the fixed interest rate implicit in the lease. and the variable lease payments which are
obtained and not included in the net rental investment amount are included in the profit or loss of
the period when they actually occur.

3) Accounting treatment for operating leases

The Company adopts the straight line method or other systematic and reasonable method to

recognize the lease receipts from operating leases as rental income during each period of the lease
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term. Capitalization of the initial direct expenses incurred in connection with operating leases shall
be apportioned on the same basis as the recognition of rental income during the lease term, and shall
be recorded in the profit or loss of the current period. Variable lease payments obtained in connection
with operating leases that are not incorporated in the lease receipts shall be incorporated in the profit
or loss of the period when they actually occur.

36. Termination of business

The Company recognizes components as termination of business components if one of the
following condition is met and that the component has already been disposed or classified as held-
for-sale assets and identifiable.

(1) The component represents a stand along major business or a stand along major area in

conducting business.

(2) The component is part of plan connecting to disposal of a stand along major business or
major area of conducting business.

(3) The component is a subsidiary that obtained specifically for resale.

Operating profit or loss such as the impairment loss and the amount of reversal shall be
presented in income statement as profit or loss from terminated business.

37. Re-purchase of shares

Before written-off or transfer. the shares that the Company re-purchased are dealt as treasury
shares. All expenses incurred for the re-purchase are charged in the cost of treasury shares.
Consideration and transaction expenses paid during the share re-purchase shall decrease
shareholder’s equity. No gain or losses shall be recognized during re-purchase. transfer or written-
off of the Company’s shares.

If the treasury shares is transferred. the difference between amount actually received and the
share’s carrying amount shall be charged to capital reserve, if the capital reserve is not sufficient to
offset, surplus reserve and retained earing shall be offset. If the treasury share is to written-off, the
share capital shall be decreased based on the face value of shares and the difference between the
carrying amount and its face value shall offset the capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not
sufficient to offset, deducting surplus reserve and retained e.arnings.

38. Safety production fee

The safety production fee is accrued by the Company in accordance with national regulations
and is included in the cost of related products or current profit or loss, and is also recorded in the
"specific reserve” item. When using the safety production fee. if it is an expense expenditure, it shall
be directly offset against the special reserve. If the fixed assets are formed. the expenses incurred
through the collection of "construction in progress” will be recognized as fixed assets when the
safety project is completed and reach the intended usable state: at the same time. the cost of forming

fixed assets will be offset against the special reserve, and recognize the accumulated depreciation
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of the same amount. The fixed assets will not be depreciated in the subsequent period.

39. Significant changes in accounting policies and estimates

(1) Changes in accounting policies

1) effect of adopting Interpretation of China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 15

The Company has adopted the regulations about “accounting for sales of products or by-
products produced by fixed assets before intended use or during the R&D process™ and “judgment
on onerous contract™ as stipulated the “Interpretation of China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 157 issued by the Ministry of Finance since January 1. 2022. Such change in
accounting policies has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2) effect of adopting Interpretation of China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 16

The Company has adopted the regulations about “accounting for deferred tax related 1o assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction to which the initial recognition exemption does not
apply” and “accounting for income tax consequences of dividends on a financial instrument
classified by the issuer as an equity instrument” in the “Interpretation of China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 167 issued by the Ministry of Finance since 2022. Such
change in accounting policies has no impact on the C ompany’s financial statements.

(2)Significant changes in accounting estimates

There was no significant changes in accounting estimates during the year.

IV. Taxes

1. Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

Tax tvpe 5 Basis ' Tax rate note
Domestic sales. providing manufacturing -
and repairing services
VAT | Property leas'mé 99
Frwrre— -
Simplified method 5%
C..Ollsunii)tiou tax Luxury \\'arciles 20%
S L : B p— e —
maintenance and  Turnover tax payable 7%. 5%
construction tax | i
Lorgorte lacons Taxable income See below table |

tax

© 70% or 80% of the original cost of property
Property tax | . L 1.2%. 12%
or rental income
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Corporate income tax of different entities:

Name of entities | CIT rate
" Shenzhen HARMONY World Watch Center Co., ' w] S
FIYTA Sales Co.. Ltd.(D) 25%
Shenzhen FIYTA Precision Technology Co., " 15%
Lid.(23) B
Shenzhen FIYTA Technology Development Co., 15%
Ld.(23) - )
HARMONY World Watch Center(Hainan) Co., 200
Ld(®) S o , N '
Shenzhen Xunhang Precision Technology Co.. Ltd. 20%
Emile Choureit Timing (Shenzhen) Ltd. E 25%
Liaoning Hengdarui Commercial & Trade Co.. Ltd. | 25%
EMPORAL (Shenzhen) Co.. Ltd. 25%
Shenzhen Harmony E-commerce Co.. Ltd.(€) ' 20%
FIYTA (Hong Kong) Ltd.(Z) 16.5%
Montres Chouriet SA(Z) | 30%

Note 1:According to the regulations stated in “Interim Administration Method for Levy of
Corporate Income Tax to Enterprise that Operates Cross-regionally™. the head office of the
Company and its branch offices. the head office of HARMONY Company and its branch offices.
and the head office of Sales Company and its branch offices adopt tax submission method of
“unified calculation. managing by classes, pre-paid in its registered place. settlement in total. and
adjustment by finance authorities™. Branch offices mentioned above share 50% of the enterprise
income tax and prepay locally: and 50% will be prepaid by the head offices mentioned above.

Note (2): According to “Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and Ministry of Science on Further Perfection of the Pre-tax Super Deduction Ratio of Research
and Development Expenses™ (Cai Shui (2021) No. 13) . if the research and development costs.
which were incurred for developing new technologies. new products. and new processes by the
Company. the Precision Technology Company and the Technology Company. are not capitalized
as intangible assets but charged to current profit or loss, all of these entities can enjoy a 100% super
deduction on top of the R&D expenses that allowed to deduct before income tax since 1 January
2022

Note (3):The Company enjoyed for “Reduction and Exemption in Corporate Income Tax Rate
for High and New Technology Enterprises that Require Key Support from the State™

Note (1): These companies are registered in Hong Kong and the income tax rate of Hong Kong
applicable is 16.50% this year.

Note (3): The comprehensive tax rate of 30% is applicable for Swiss Company as it registered

in Switzerland.
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Note (©): These companies are small and low-profit enterprises. which enjoy 20% tax rate.

2.  Preferential treatment and corresponding approval

According to “Proclamation of Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation in
Implementing Preferential Tax Rate to Small and Low Profit Enterprises and Sole-proprietors™ (Caishui
(2022) No.13) and “Notice of Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation on
Implementation of the Inclusive Income Tax Deduction and Exemption Policies for Small Low-Profit
Enterprises™ (Cai Shui (2021) No.12) . the portion of annual taxable income of small low-profit enterprise
that is below RMB1.000.000.00 will be included in taxable income at 12.5% and to be taxed at a rate of
20%: and for annual taxable income that is greater than RMB1.000.000.00 but not exceeding
RMB3.000.000.00. of which 25% will be included in taxable income and to be taxed at 20%.

According to “Notice of Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation in Extending
Expiration Period of Utilizing Losses for High-Tech Enterprises and Scientific Oriented Medium and
Small Enterprises™ (Cai Shui [2018] No. 76).  starting from January 1, 2018., unutilized losses incurred
in prior 5 years before obtaining the status of High and New Tech Enterprise can be carried forward and
utilized in future years. The longest period was extended from 5 years to 10 vears.

According to the "Notice of the Ministrv of Finance. the State Administration of Taxation. and the
Ministry of Science and Technology on Increasing Support for Pre-tax Deductions for Scientific and
Technological Innovation" (Cai Shui [2022] No. 28). high-tech enterprises will purchase new products
from October 1. 2022 to December 31. 2022. The equipment and utensils are allowed to be deducted in

one lump sum when calculating taxable income. and 100% addirional deduction is allowed before tax.

V. Notes to main items of the consolidated financial statements
(Unless otherwise indicated. the currency unit is Renminbi Yuan. the end of the period refers to
December 31.2022.the beginning of the period refers to January 1. 2022, and the end of the last period

refers to December 31. 2021)

Note 1. Monetary funds

Item i Closing balance . Opening balance
Cash on hand ] 17336868 | 108.61208
E‘ashr ét Bank - 312,433.893.29 188908798!0
C.)t.h.er mone.t.az}-' funds [ 114020167 : “ 21..’137.326.976”
Total 313.747.463.64 210.25-1.73';',{4‘“”

Including: Total overseas deposits 716.733.44 | 1,724,651.93

Including: deposit in finance

company 271,327,031.83 147.786.041.19

Deposit in finance company mainly deposited with AVIC Finance Co.. Ltd.

As of December 31, 2022. RMB 9.074.00 was frozen due to bank account that is being included
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in as long-term immobile bank account.

Cash with restricted usage is as follows

Item

Overseas deposit with restrictions remitting

back

Closing balance

716.733.44

Opening balance

1,724,651.93

Note 2. Bill receivable

1. Presented by category

Item

Bank acceptance bills
Commercial acceptance bills

Total

Closing balance

10.690,221.03

Opening balance

2.989.331.70

21.524.691.07
3221491210

58.268.814.10
61.258.145.80

2. Presented by ECL types

Type

Notes receivable that
provided expected credit
losses on single basis
Notes receivable that
provided expected credit
_losses on single basis

Including: Commercial
Aacceptance bills

Risk-free Bank

Carrying amount

I Pefc.'emaéé.?
Amount T
o A0e)
33.347.790.58 100.00
22,657.569.55  67.94

10.690.221.03 |

Closing balance

Provision i
Percentage
)

Amount

1.132.878.48

Book value

340 32.214.912.10

3206 |

1,132.878.48 |

500 21.524.691.07

10.690,221.03

acceptance bills i B o |

Total 33.347.790.58 | 100.00 1,132.878.48 340 32.214.912.10

Continued:
Opening balance
Type Carrying amount Provision
- Percentage: Percentage.  Book value
Amount _— Amount o L
{%0) (%0)

Notes receivable that
provided expected credit
losses on single basis
Notes receivable that
provided expected cradit 64.324.925.49 100.00 3.066,779.69 61.258.145.80
losses on single basis | - | -
Inclyding: Commescial 61.335.593.79 | 95.35 3,066,779.69 500 |  58.268.814.10

acceptance bills
Risk-free Bank
acceptance bills
Total

64.324,925.49

2.989.331.70 4.65

100.00 |

i

3,066.779.69 |

2.989,331.70

4.77 ¢  61.258.145.80
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3. Notes receivable with expected credit loss provided based on credit risk

characteristic portfolio

Closing balance

Portfolio @

Carrving amount - Provision Percentage (%)

Bank acceptance bills 22,657,569.55 1,132,878.48 | 5.00

Conunercial acceptance bills 10,690,221.03 :
Total 33.347.790.58 1,132,878.48 | 3.40
4. Bad debt movements in current period
Movements

Tv Opening S — R Closing
S balance Received or Other balance

Notes receivable
that provided
expected credit
losses on single

that provided
expected credit
losses on single
Including:
Commercial
acceptance bills
Risk-free
Bank acceptance
bills

| 3.066.779.69 |

3.066,779.69

Accrual Written-off
o reversal 7 . changes

1.933.901.21 1.132.878.48

1,132.878.48

Total

3.066.779.69

1.933.901.21 1.132.878.48

5. Bills have been endorsed but not yet due at the end of the period.

Item

Bank acceptance bills

Amount de-recognized Amount not de-recognized

30.350.443.25 |

Note 3. Accounts receivable

1. Presentation by aging

Aging

Closing balance

Opening balance

Within 1 vear
1-2 years

2-3 years

Over 3 vears
Subtotal
Less: provision for bad debt

Total

311.934,503.90

14,972,671.61

n

1

-
]
—
Ln
B
=]

8

411.327,173.23
4.211.418.24

7.582.641.50

16.

6.064,539.96 8,867,120.13
345,753,258.32 431,988.353.10

40.462,298.64 |

43,102.751.82

305,290,959.68

388.885.601.28
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2. Presentation by method of providing bad debt

Closing balance

Category Carrying amount Bad debt provision
| ; e -
Asfioutit ; Percentag P ECL rate

. (%) . (%)

Accounts receivable that : 3 :

provided expected credit = 34,982.967.68 10.12 ¢ 29.705,797.13 | 8492 5,277,170.55
losses on single basis l i :

Accounts receivable that ;

provided expected credit 310.770.290.64 89.88 10.756.501.51 346 300,013,789.13
losses on portfolio basis’ 3 |

Inclu@ng: Receivable from 310.770.290.64 | $9.58 10.756.501.51 3.46 300.013.789.13
other customers | | ] i i
Total 345.753,258.32 i 100.00 40.462.298.64 11.70 305.290.959.68
Continued:
Opening balance
Category Carrving amount Bad debt provision
= — A . B ¥ Book value
Amount Pﬂ: :?:ag € Amount E(tlgol)ate !

Accounts receivable that

provided expected credit 41,742,982.67 9.66 32.056.051.67 76.79 9.686.931.00
_losses on single basis

Accounts receivable that :

provided expected credit 390.245.370.43 90.34 11.046.700.15 2.83 379.198,670.28

losses on portfolio basis’

Inclu.duag: Receivable from 550 510 220 43 90.34 11.046.700.15 2.83 379.198.670.28
Toral 431.988.3353.10 100.00 43.102.751.82 998  388.885.601.28

3. Accounts receivable that provided expected credit losses on single basis included in

the closing balance

Closing balance

Name i : ! Bad debt " ECLrate |
Canrving amount | o i " Reasons
. : provisiton ¢ (%)

: .\;'1 ”VF.' "6 ﬂ - PR “hances of 1 C ;\‘ ’\"”is
Reoeible fions othet 34982967.68 |  29705.797.13 | 492 | Chancesofrecoven
CUSIOmers | remote

4. 1Inthe portfolio, accounts receivable with expected credit loss provided based on credit
risk characteristic portfolio

Portfolio of receivable from other customers

Closing balance

Aging R
Carrving amount Bad debt provision | ECL rate (%)
Within 1 vear 309.196.675.71 054797611 | 3.09
1-2 years - 251.098.70 25,109.87 | | | 10.00
-_2-3 vears " 244.533.54 105.432.84 45 12
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Closing balance

! Carrying amount Bad debt provision ECL rate (%)
Over 3 vears ! 1.077.982.69 1,077.982.69 100.00
Total 310.770,290.64 | 10,756.501.51 | 3.46
5. Movements of provision during the period
Movements during the period
Tv Opening , ’ s S Closing
¥pes balance Recovered or | Written- | Other balance
Accrual o ! ; |
reversed | off | movements |
Accounts ’
receivable that
S reskosnii 32.056.051.67 1.920.661.90  4.371.302.44 -100.386.00  29.705.797.13
expected credit
losses on single
Accounts
receivable that ‘
pragided 11.046.700.15  395.343.70 700,099.94 | -14.557.60 . 10.756.501.51
expected credit i :
losses on :
portfolio basis’
Including:
Receivable from 11.046.700.15 395,343.70 700.099.94 -14.557.60 10.756.501.51
other customers . A »
Tortal 43,102.751.82 | 2.316.005.60 5.071.402.38 | -114.943.60 40.462.298.64

Including: main recovery of bad debt provision in current period:

Name Amount Way of recovery Note
Shanghai Pudong Suning e-buy Business e
o = = * SHESs 1.827.135.74 Bank transfer
Management Co.. Ltd. T oo
Hefei Swan Lake Suning Department n
&L 763.751.84 Bank transfer

Store Co.. Ltd.

6. No actual write-off of accounts receivable during the current period

7. Top 5 receivable accounts

Name Closing balance

| Proportion in total

. closing balance of
accounts

receivable (%)

Bad debt provision

Top 5 receivables accounts in total

113.261.096.28 |

327 15,232,226.34

Note 4. Prepayments

1. Presentation of prepayments by aging

Closing balance
Aging

Opening balance

Amount | Pereentags | Amount P e
- (o). 8.
Within one year 8.039,794.97 | 100.00 7.946.750.81 100.00
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2. Top 5 prepayments

Name

Closing balance

Top 5 prepayments in total

Proportion in total closing
balance of prepaymeunts (%)

4.261.286.17

53.00

Note 5. Other receivable

1. Presentation of other receivables by aging

Aging

Closing balance

Within one vear

1 -2 years

2- 3 years

Over 3 vears

59.711.31491 |

Opening balance

Subtotal

Less: bad debt provision

Total

64,697.975.58

216.120.00 : 8'55-341":52'
777649.029.;0 484.750.6;“.
e — =
6.1.18”;'2.569.81 S 659"3"-4"1*

426455033 |

56.918.019.48

4.420.279.33

61.553.267.82

2. Presented by nature

Nature

Closing balance

Opening balance

Security deposit

Petty cash

Others

Subtotal

49.430.408.24 |

2.841.915.70

55.467.644.12

8.910.245.87

61.182.369.81

7.949.229.66

Less: bad debt provision

Total

4.264.550.33

36.,918,019.48

65.973,547.15
4.420.279.33

61.553,267.82

3. Presented according to three stages of financial assets impairment

Item Carrying
amount

First stage

59.703.389.91 |

Closing balance

Bad debt

2.850,206.43

provision

Carrying
Book value
amount

| 56.853.183.48

Second stage

.

Third stage

i 1.479.179.90

1.414.343.90

64.836.00

Total

| 61.182.569.81 |

4.264,550.33

64.508.342.25

Opening balance

Bad debt
. Book value
provision

3.055,122.43

61,453.219.82

1,465.204.90 | 1.365.156.90 100,048.00

56.918.019.48

65.973,547.15 |

4.420.279.33 | 61.553,267.82

4. Presented by bad debt provision method
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C am'mc amount

C losmz balauce

Bad debt ploxmon

Other receivables that provided
expected credit losses on single
_basis

Other receivables that pm\ ided |

expected credit losses on
_portfolio basis

Including: $ecmm deposu
_ portfolio

Book value

category ‘
i 2 1 Book value
] ‘
Amount [ PeL:Emaoe Amount ‘ E(?(I;ul)ate
* Other receivables that provided B ]
expected credit losses on single 1.479,179.90 | 2.42 141434390 | 9562 64.836.00
Other receivables that plO\ ided
expected credit losses on 59.703,389.91 97.58 2,850,206.43 4.77 56.853.183.48
_ portfolio basis ‘ 4
Inclidig: Secunty deposit 48.600.258.24 | 7943 | 2.476.810.04 510 | 46,123,448.20
. .polrfoho NG N, ; s
Petty C’\Sh pmrfoho 2 841 911’ "0 464 | 2.841.915.70
* Social security pavméﬁ{"m 5 o
o % 27 k 279,769.98
on-behalf portfolio H169. 98 0.4 : | o
Ponfoho ot othets 7 981 44\ 99 13.05 3”3 %96 39 4.68 | 7.608.049.60
Tot“«l 6l, 182.:69 81 | 100.00 | 4,264,550.33 6.97 36.918.019.48
Continued
Opemnc balance
Catecory C arrving amount B'ld debr pm\ ision

Petty cash pOleOllO

Social secmm' pa}-’menr
on-behalf portfolio

Portfolio of others

Total

Amount Pexcenme i Amount ECLnTe
o (%0) ; o (%)
1.465.204.90 | 2.22 1.365.156.90 93.17 100.048.00
64.508.342.25 97.7 3,055.,122.43 4.74 61.453,219.82
34.08 2.781.540.05 | 5.01 532.686.104.07
3.88 | 2.556.673.37
483.396.42 | 0.73 | 483.396.42
6.000.628.34 909 73.38 4.56 5.727,045.96
65.973,547.15 | 100 00 6.70 61.553,267.82

5. Other receivables that provided expected credit losses on single basis included in the

closing balance

Name

Receivable from others

Closing balance

Carrying amount

1.479.179.90

Bad debt ;
_provision

1.414.343.90

95.62

ECL rate
(%)

Reason

Chances of recovery is
remote

6. In the portfolio, other receivables with expected credit loss provided based on credit

risk characteristic portfolio

(1) Security deposit portfolio
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Closing balance

Aging

Within 1 year |

Carrying amount

48.560.208.24

Bad debt provision

ECL rate (%)

2.436.760.04 5.02
1 -2 vears
2- 3 years %
Over 3 years 40.050.00 40.050.00 100.00
Total 48.600.258.24 2.476.810.04 | 5.10
(2) Petty cash portfolio
Closing balance
Carrving amount Bad debt provision | ECL rate (%)
Within 1 vear 2.841,915.70
(3) Social security pavinent on-behalf portfolio
Closing balance
._)Lgmg = - U SRS ———e . . -
Carrying amount ECL rate (%)

Within | year

279.769.98

Bad debt provision

(4) Portfolio of others

Aging

Within | year

Carrving amount

7.981.445.99

Bad debt provision

Closing balance

ECL rate (%)

373.396.39

7. Provision for bad debts of other receivables

First stage

Expected credit
losses over the
next 12 months

Bad debt provision

Second stage

Lifetime expected
credit losses (no
credit impairment

occurred)

Third stage

Lifetime expected
credit losses (credit
impairment
occurrad)

Total

Opening balance 3,05

o

Opening balance

movements in current

peried
—Transfer into the |
second stage 3
—Transfer into the
third stage
—Reverse back to
the second stage
—Reverse back to
the first stage

|
13
T
L=}
»

]

I

12243 §

1.365.156.90

2,398.75

4.420.279.33

Accrual during the

period 35.‘"1‘ 7 7.11

65,388.25

1

n

L.

h

65.36

Reversed during the
period

289.046.82

18.600.00

307.646.82
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First stage
Expected credit
losses over the

Bad debt provision

Second stage

Third stage

Lifetime expected
credit losses (no
credit impairment

next 12 months y
. . I occurred)
Recovered during the
period i .
Written-off during the
period —
35246

Other movements

Lifetime expected
- credit losses (credit
i impairment
_occurred)

Total

352.46

Closing balance

2,850.206.43

141434390 |

4.264.550.33

8. No other receivables were written-off during the period.

9. Top 5 other receivable accounts

Name

Proportion to

1 : | Closing balance
. closing balance of | =

Closing balance otier recaivables of bad debts
z provision
21.733.290.84 35.52 1.086.664.54

Note 6.

1. Classification

Inventory

Closing balance

Opening balance

Ttem Carrving . . i
Provision Book value Carrying amount Provision Book value
amount
Raw
) 162,338,704 .65 17.241,512.65 145,067.192.00 181.764.220.90 17.693.135.85 164.071.085.05
material
WIP 7.204.695.11 7.204.699.11 20.,682.530.38 20.682,530.58
Stored
2.085,640.712.37 96.622.229 81 1,989.018.482.56 | 1,960,110,199.48 94.715.064.22 1.865,395,135.26
goods ;
Total 2.255184,116.13 113,863.742.46 2.141,320.375.67 2.162.556.95096 = 112.408.200.07 2.050,148,750.89
2. Provision for inventory
Increase in current T T——
fem Opening period rease in current peri Closing
balance ' i . ' balance
Accrual Other Reversed Realized Others ‘
= —— | - _ - R
¥ 17.693,135.85 164.122.95 1.621.613.03 154.260.44 -1.160,127.32 17.241.512.65
material i} ] ] o R R
Stored : !
9471506422 | 35.082.975.04 : 37.296.014.80 -120.207.35 | 9662222981
goods , I | . Wi i : b
Total 112.408.200.07 39.247.095.99 162161303 | 3745027524 -1.280334.67 113,863,742 46

Notes to provision for inventory

Item

Evidence of determine NRV and future selling

cost

Reason for reversal or realized
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. Estimated selling price less estimated cost to

Factors that caused impairment has been

Raw ; oo, . e -
rbacial . complete and selling and distribution expenses - disappeared and the NAV is higher than its

- and associated taxes carrying amount
Stored Estimated selling price less estimated selling and  Inventory that already provided for was sold
goods distributing expenses and associated taxes or used in current period.

Note 7. Other current assets

Item Closing balance

Opening balance

Input VAT 12.967,188.47 |

Input VAT not yet certified 39.454.283.19

Prepaid corporate income tax

3,419.026.38

Others 10.499.007.28

Total 66.339,505.32

20.468.630.65

41.895.970.19

2.459.142.75

7.874.949.13

72,698.692.72

Note 8. Long-term equity investment

Movements during the period

) Investment F\ e —— é £
Investee 25’1‘9“‘”‘3 Addition new gains and Ad e
alanee investment Withdrawn losses . seherisiv
recognized by < SOTPrEnSHsIve
. equity method tneoms
Associate
* Shanghai Watch Co., Ltd. . ] P |
- . S5 a8 z o ]
(Shanghai Watch) 55,155,605.31 3,026.481.59
Continued
Movements during the period Closing
G o - S P _ | kifaica st
Investee . i Cash i : i Closing balance | . 3l
Chzu.lges ll.ll‘ dividend I[ll[j)alfil.lEll Others | : unpaun‘.len
other equity el t provision : 't provision
Associate
Shanghai Watch 58.182.086.90 :
Note 9. Other equity instrument investments
Item Closing balance Opening balance
Xi'an Tangcheng Limited §5.000.00 85.000.00
Note 10. Investment property
1. Details of investment property
Item Property

1. Original cost
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Item Property

1. Opening balance 610.886.415.67

2. Addition 8.876.202.69

Purchase

Transferred from fixed assets 2.876.202.69

Other reasons

3. Decrease

Disposal

Qther reasons

4. Closing balance 619.762.618.36
IL Accumulated depreciation

L. Opening balance 227.460.499.32

2. Increased in current period 17,322,624.33
Accrual 15.436.537.44
Transferred from fixed assets i 1.886.086.89

Other reasons

3. Decreased in current period

Disposal

Other reasons

4. Closing balance 244.783.123.65

III. Impairment provision

1. Opening balance

2. Increased in current period

Accrual

Transferred from fixed assets

Other reasons

3. Decreased in current period

Disposal

Other reasons

4. Closing balance

IV. Book value

1. Carryving amount at end of the period 374.979.494.71

2. Carrying amount at opening of the period 383.425.916.35

2. Notes to investment property
During the reporting period. certain self-use property of the Company were changed to lease

out and they were transferred from fixed assets to investment properties measured at cost model.

Notes to the financial statements - Page 74



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Note 11. Fixed assets

1. Status of fixed assets

Item

1.0riginal cost

Property and

. buildings |

. Transportation

Machinery vehicles

Electronic

Other
equipment

Total

devices |

lOpenmg
balance

408.187,709.06 |

107.468,100.86 : 14.780.510.38

46.317.448.53

2. Increased in
_current period

Re-classification |

37.009.440.83

10.535,309.18

. 46,887.269.94

623.641,038.77

2.901.332.68

1.468.735.41

51.914.818.10

Purchased

Translation

_ difference
Other
increase

33.325.717.80 |

3.683.723.03

8.934,592.37

1.600.716.81

2.808.299.86

93,032.82

305.552.93

3. Decrease in
current period

$.876.202.69 |

450.600.66 308.000.00

1.163.182.48 | 46.231.

1.618.430.56 |

2,897.202.38

14.150.436.29

Disposal or
retired

450,600.66  308.000.00

1.618.430.56

2,897,202.38

5,274,233.60

Transferred to
investment
__propeity

$.876.202.69

8.876.202.69

Translation :

difference

Other
decrease

4. Closing

balance

II. Accumulated
_depreciation

436,320.947.20 ¢

L. Opening
Jbalance

2. Increased in

current period

122,149,

14.472.510.38
63.039.735.12 | 12.847.470.81

8.788.140.30 346.250.08

| 17.600.350.65

45.458.802.97

661.405.420.58

35.896.505.66

2.666.771.95

40.212.445.35

2212

28,951,810.04

Re-classification

Accrual

7.479.521.06 346.250.08

25.088.104.93

Translation
difference

1.308.619.24

241.049.68 |

3.863,705.11

Other
_increase

3. Decrease in

current period
Disposal or
retired
Transferred to
investment
property

1.886.086.89

292.600.00

292.600.00

Translation
_ difference

Other

decrease

4. Closing
balance

135.388.740.98

1L Iunpairméht
provision

1,396.127.01

| 1,396,127.01

[ £8 ]
L
[+ T
=
o
s
[
—
-1

1
(%)
| o0
s
i N
=
12
=
-

6.320,876.75
4.434.789.80

1.886.086.89

. — ==

71.466,324.74 | 12,901,120.89

37.167.150.60

39.853.318.20

296.776,655.41

1. Opening
balance

Notes to the financial statements - Page 75



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Property and

frem  buildings

Electronic
_devices

: | Transportation |
Machinery veﬂjcles

2. Increase in
_currentperiod

___equipment

Other Total

Re-classification |

Accrual

Translation
_ difference

Other
increase

3. Decrease in

_current period
Disposal or
retired
Transferred
into
investment
property
Translation
difference

Other
decrease

4. Closing
balance

IV. Book value

L. Carrving
amount at end of |
period :
2. Carrving
amount at
beginning of %
period 1

[
72}
(=)
o
L8]
17
—
B
L¥¥]
7}
oo

300932.206.22

46.086.484.04 1.571.389.49 | 10.433.200.05

4442836574  1.933.039.57 |

10,420.942.87 ‘

3,605.484.77 | 364.628.765.17

6.674.824.59 | 349.495316.65

2. Fixed assets that do not have certificate for property right

206,821.17 | Issues relating to property right

Reason for not having certificate for property rights

Irem Book value
Property
Property 33.318.636.37

i Not yet completed

Note 12. Right-of-use assets

Item

1. Original cost

Property

1. Opening balance

2. Increase in current period

1

o

78.633.64

LF ]
(5]

84.622.611.32

Re-classification

Lease

84.599.774.43

Translation difference

Other increase
3. Decrease in current period

Maturity of lease term

22.836.89

33.784.166.11

6.898.304.78
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Item Property
__-_Transiation difference
‘éth‘er decreage ol T — : rep—
4. Closing balance 362.417.078.85
1L Accumulla[éd depreciation
l Opening balance 7 ] 165.6—‘16.158}?
2. Increase in the period 7 1106676671\
Reclagéiﬁcariotl

Accrual

Translation difference

Other increase

3. Decrease in the period 24,227.258.55

Maturity of lease term ; 6.898.304.78

Translation difference

Other decrease 7.328.953.77
4. Closing balance 252.086.566.82

III. Impairment provision

1. Opening balance

-

2. Increase in the period

Reclassification

Accrual

Translation difference

Other increase

3. Decrease in the period

Marturity of lease term

Translation difference

Other decrease

4. Closing balance

IV. Book value

1. Carrying amount at end of period 110,330,512.03

[B5]

. Carrying amount at beginning of period 147,932,475.42

Note 13. Intangible asset

1. Status
. . ight to u
Item Land-use right Software system R_lg 1o ‘1:%e Total
T e Mgl trademarks B
L. Original cost
1. Opening 34.033.822.40 30,286.420.21 15.255.625.58 | 80.475.868.19
balance H
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Item Land-use right

Software system

Right to use

trademarks b

2. Increase in the
peried
Purchase

Internal R&D

Other source

3. Decreaseinthe =
period
Disposal

201127230

1,262,964.71 4,174,237.01

2.911.272.30 |

262.964.71 |

4,174,237.01

Other reasons

4. Closing balance

II. Accumulated
amortization

34.933.822.40

33,197,692.51

16,518.590.29 84.650.105.20

1. Opening
balance
2. Increase in the
period

15.782,368.73

i

22.778.471.88

3,125436.27 |

7.879.697.15 46,440,537.76

1.150,359.26 5.009.348.81

Accrual

Other reasons

3,125,436.27

1.150.359.26 5.000.348.81

3. Decrease in the
period
Disposal

Other reasons

4. Closing balance 16.515.922.01

25.903.908.15 |

51.449.886.57

III. Impa irment
provision

9.030.056.41

1. Opening
balance

2. Increase in the
period

Accrual

Other reasons

3. Decrease in the
‘period

Transfer

Other reasons

Other transfer

4. Closing balance

IV, Book value

1. Book value at
end of the period
2. Book value at
beginning of the
period

18.417.900.39

19.151.453.67

7,293,784.36

7.507.948.33

7.488.533.88 33.200.218.63

7,375,928.43 34,035,330.43

Note 14. Long-term deferred expenses
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Item Openmz balance Increase Amortized O‘?‘e" Closing balance
— P ———— e virnramy - — - — dec}' ease —— -
Counier tahcalog 2856317172 | 3047797780 3679407935 22,247,070.17
_expenses N | '
Reno‘. ation e\penses 120.695.905‘90 | 60,604.305.97 61 “69 SSS “6 116,030.323.61
Others 1-1 N31 255 S’ | \0 849 06 : 8, 171 0-16 4%‘ 6.211.058.40
Total 16% 790. 3%3 -H» 91 133 132.83 110 435.014. 09 144.488,452.18

Note 15. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

1. Detail of deferred tax assets before offsetting

Closing bal’mce

Item Dedu ctible tempor an
Deteued tax assets

differ ence

Deductible temporary

difference

Opening balance

Deferred tax assets

Impairment provision 143.503. “9“ 94 30.225.885.07

Unrealized profit for related

partv trapsactions 73,781,866.09

18.681.772.44|

148.079.831.14

96.716.186.61 |

31 56" 6"'

24,021.244.01

37.779.977.71

Deductible losses 7.75! 6" 781.216. 23 1* I.SS SS! ‘w6
Restricted shares 23.141.270.85 5.411.762.47 17.502, 1\“ 62| 4. 1"1 %"6 77
Advertisement expenses that | 515.068.99 128.767.25 ILSO34TLI2 221962249
allowed to deduct in furure years .
Lease liabilities 113.136.916.00: 28, “N.ZEQ.OO 147 SSS '\’S "'6 %6 9"" 144 57
Others 7 "9\ 0“6 80 1.823.981.30 9.993.2 fS lO 2 498 %19 ﬂ

Total 5"1 ‘14 f)*9 420 122,336,375 75741 494.464.714.08 116.384.166.43

2

Detail of deferred tax liabilities before offsetting

Closing balance

Opening balance

Hem taxable temporary | Deferred tax
: difference liabilities
Oue-‘off d?dxlctjox} of fixed —asset 20.877.344.91 4.480.851 74
before Corporate income tax L
Right-of-use asset 110.279.028.02 27.569.757.01

- Taxable remporary

difference

24.113.302.98

147.881.641.51]

 Deferred tax
liabilities
3.616.995.45

36.970.410. %b

Total 140,151,372.93  32.050.608.75,

171,994.944.49

40.587.405. S*

3. Net-off of deferred tax asset or liabilities

Amount off-set at

Irem .
current period

deferred tax asset

Closing balance of

deferred tax asset or
| liability after off-set |

95.7 461194

Amount off-set at
prior period

35.350.891.80

- Opening balance of
. deferred tax asset or
| liability after off-set

§1.233,274.65

deferred tax liabilities

5.844.9,

5

35.350.891.80¢

5.236.514.03

4. Details of deductible temporary difference and deductible losses that does not recognize

as deferred income tax asset
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Item Closing balance Opeuning balance
Impairment provision 1622007697 . 1521817977
]:l)ec.i.uct'lble losses ‘ | 50.7;61.9.15:00“ 54,139, 1.-;5.45
- Total . -”6.6..982.091,9? VE - -6;35?;25.227

Deductible losses of Montres Chouriet SA. which are sub-subsidiary of the Company. is not
recognized as deferred income tax asset as it’s uncertain that the companies can get sufficient taxable

income in future. FIYTA  (Hong Kong) Ltd. a subsidiary of the Company. does not need to recognize
the deferred income tax assets for impairment provision according to the local tax policy.

5. Deductible losses that are not recognized as deferred tax asset will due in the following

vears:
Year Closing balance | Opening balance Note
2022 ‘ h |
2023 149.750.18
2024 §.456.818.95 11.684.299.22
2025 18.449.678.50 18.449,678.50
2026 23,855,417.55 23,855.417.55
Total 50.761.915.00 54.139.145.45

Note 16. Other non-current assets

Closing balance Opening balance

Item Carrving
Provision Book value Carrying amount Provision Book value
amount
Prepayment for
construction and  11.593.741.57 11,593.741.57 42.680,753.78 42 680,753.78
equipment |
Note 17. Short-term loan
Irem ' Closing balance | Opening balance
Guaranteed loans 15.737.928.76
Credit loans 290,000,000.00 | 250,000.000.00
Accrued interest payable 237.111.11 256.666.67
Total 290,237.111.11 | 265.994.595.43
Note 18. Notes pavable
Types Closing balance Opening balance
Comimercial bills payable 2,000,600.00 | 21,223.10

Note 19. Account payables
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Item

C losma balance

Trade payables

Payables for mateual punhased

Payables for project
Total

i

i 048 201 41

L — — — = e

170 589.456. 67

149811781 06
19‘729.474.20 |

Opemnﬂ balance

232, 84.l 9%4 Sl"
| 20.513,993.11
123296742

254,588,895.34

Note 20. Advances from customer

Item

Rental received in advance

Clusmcr b'\l'mce

16.960.125.53

Opening balance

11.025.664.72

Note 21. Contract liabilities

Item C losmg balame Openma balance

Advances for goods receiv ed 16 8-1-1 4% 4 22 -'0\ 4’6 6\--“

Note 22. Emplovee remuneration payable

1. Status

Item Opening balance imlease Decrease Closing balance

Short-term employee benefm L .;:%4.696.286.4; [ *50 665.061.2 1. 601.971.744.25 ‘ 1“"‘.389.603.47
ggg‘n:g‘t’i‘;’l‘u‘ﬁltﬁf‘;ﬂi 9463STIY 47 055.374.87 4723655706 | 9.282.692.00
Termination benefirts 1.7'4 089.38 9.032.070.19 | 4.915.643.91

Tortal

145.936.150.06 6-1‘2 802.160.82

658.240.371.50 13

2

Short-term employvee

benefits

Item

Salaries. bonus. allowances

Staff welfare

Social insurances
Including: I Medical
insurance
2. Supplementary
medical insurance
3. Work-related injury
insurance

-l \IateL mn mstuance

Housme Fund

Labor union fees and
education fee

Total

Opening balance

Increase

Dec;ease Closing balance

133.818.692.76 | 527 003,225.07

'-"08.80 10.278.373.02 T
“0 6“0 66 "-1.55.%.18040“
20.620.66 22,974,776.23 |
20.383.00
847.053.99
| 710 96" 15 |
'““ 104 007 wm"‘O-lSQ lo-l 9"7.
829.160.27 7.341.117.82
1 3-1 696 "So 49 V ‘389(}6506123 1

~39 6\“ S"l 30 :

121.169.046.53

10.268 438.54

10.643.28
24.169.772.77 ' 404.028.29
22.591.368.60 404.028.29
20,383.00
847.053.99
710,967.18 ]
36.347. 147.92 o “169.172717.00
7,533,513.72 | 636.764.37

601.971,744.25 122,389.603.47

3. Defined contribution plans

Irem

Basm péllSlOll msurance

| Opening balance

d SESRI T

Increase

226.815.55 |

43,565.311.09 |

Demease Closing balance

-13 501.344. 69 290,781.95
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Unemployment insurance

Annuity

Total 9,463,874.19 |

1,225,920.84

9,237.058.64 |

581.68

2.264.142.94

47.055,374.87

2.500.873.21 |

47.236.557.06

8,991,328.37

9,282,692.00

Note 23. Taxes pavable

Item

VAT

Closing balance

Opening balance

46,711.341.16

Corporate income tax

Individual income tax

39.086.878.23

15.663,227.68

1.568.912.16

Urban maintenance and
construction tax

1:353;097.21 |

1,624,353.62

Educational surcharges

Others

966.809.02

1.540.639.03

Total

60.770.168.30 |

1,161,292.58
1.040,752.81
67.769.880.01

Note 24. Other pavables

Item

Dividends pavable
Other pavables

Toral

Closing balance

6.324,013.97
158,736,108.61

165.060,122.58

Opening balance
5.015.026.30
162.793,733.65

167.808,759.95

Note: Other payables in above table refers to other pavables excluding interest payable and

dividends payable.

1. Dividends pavable

Item

Dividends for ordinary shares

Closing balance

6.324.013.97

Opening balance

5.015.026.30

Reasons for not being
_paid

unlock

2. Other pavables
(1) Other pavables by nature

Nature
| S.ecurit}-' deposit
Shop activity fund
Decoration expenses

Repurchase liability for restricted shares

Closing balance

Opening balance

38.319.837.05

16.105.216.84 |

50.759,806.16 |

Other

Total

158,736.108.61

12.827.532.03 |

33.536.237.44
19.208.694.86

10.201.524.91

60,585,678.92

40,723.716.53

39.261,597.52

162,793,733.65

(2) Material other receivables with aging over 1 year
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Name | Closing balance i Reasons for not being paid
Company A B ;%;600.0(50.00 Undue
Coﬁipanyﬁ | - ”i.G'IIG.B.S?'.éO Undue
Company C n - 14432%27 Undue
(fompanyD | 13326*289 [ | Lndue
. ” l;ofal o 9,051.265.76 |

Note 25. Non-current liabilities due within one year

Long-term loan due within one year

Item

Lease liabilities due in one year

Total

Closing balance

Opening balance

3,924,900.00

71,546.3

71.546.3

16.16 | $3.025.006.33

16.16 $6.949.906.35

Note 26. Other current liabilities

Item

Output VAT nort vet realized

Closing balance

1.686.806.01

Opening balance

2.798.738.32

Note 27. Long-term loan

Category

Mortgage loans

Closing balance

Less: Long-term loan due within

JOHE yedk

Opening balance

3.924.900.00

Total

3.924.900.00

Note 28. Lease liabilities

Item

Closing balance

Buildings and Structures

Less: lease liabilities due in one

year

Total

113.188,877.74 |

71.546.316.16

41.642.561.58

Opening balance

147.943,728.45
§3.025.006.35

64.918.722.10

Interest expenses for lease liabilities recognized in current period was RMB7.115.049.25.

Note 29. Deferred income

Item
Assetrelated
government subsidy

i Opening
i balance

Increase  :  Decrease

Closing

Reason
balance

1.792.833.90

496.907.10 | 1,295.926.80 | See below table 1

1. Deferred income related to government subsidy
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| Include in | . |
\ non- | Includein = Offserti | Related to
Opening  Additi = operating | other gains ng = Closing |
Item bal : b . bal asset
alance on  incomein| incurrent & expense alance |
current | period or cost | income
; period | - |
Special fund for
Shenzhen ‘ Asset
industrial design = 390.123.15 75,583.79 31453936 | pelated
industuy [
development |
Funding project
for construction
i oy 631,980.39 293,147.06 338.833.33 | Asset related
Enterprise
Technology
Cemter .
Provincial
Specialized : !
Fund for 770.730.36 i 128.176.25 . 642.554.11 | Asset related
Industrial and | i ‘
Total 1.792.833.90 | 496.907.10 1.295.926.80 |
Note 30. Share capital
Movements: increase(+) . decrease(—)
Ttem Opeame Nawl Bonus | “oPialimtion : Closing balance
balance : of capital Others Subtoral
1ssued share
Total shares : 426.051.015 -8.423,053 -8.423.055 417,627,960

Notes to movements:

1. Pursuant to the resolution of “Proposal of repurchase and de-registration part of restricted
shares authorized under 2018 A-share Restricted Share Incentive Plan (First Phase) ™. and the
resolution of “““Proposal of repurchase and de-registration part of restricted shares authorized under
2018 A-share Restricted Share Incentive Plan (Second Phase) ™. the Company repurchased and de-
registered. in 2022, 435.838 A-share restricted shares that had been authorized but still under
restriction period. Those shares were owned by 6 former incentive object that are resigned.

2. Pursuant to “The Resolution of Plan of Re-purchase B Shares™ which was approved on the
2nd meeting of the 10th Board of Directors and the 5th extraordinary shareholder’s meeting of
2021. the Company was authorized to repurchase B Shares. using the Company’s fund. to reduce
the registered capital. On 15 December 2022, confirmed by China Securities Depository and

Clearing Co.. Ltd Shenzhen Branch, the Company de-registered 7,987.217 B-shares.

Note 31. Capital reserve

Notes to the financial statements - Page 84



FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Item i Item Upening Increase Decrease
Share premium 1.010,108,533.81 | 423103140 | 4467383685  969.665,728.36
Other capital reserve 30,799.660.32 10,852,286.20 | 423103140  37.420915.12

Total { 1.040.908.194.13 15.083,317.60 48.904.868.25 = 1.007.086.643.48

Notes to capital reserve

1. Pursuant to the resolution of “Proposal of granting part of restricted shares authorized under
2018 A-share Restricted Share Incentive Plan (First Phase) ”, and the resolution of ““Proposal of
granting part of restricted shares authorized under 2018 A-share Restricted Share Incentive Plan
(Second Phase) ™. In 2022. the Company charged RMB9.870.150.33 into cost or expenses in
change of incentive personnel’s service and increased the capital reserve by the same amount
accordingly.

2. Pursuant to “The Resolution of Plan of Re-purchase B Shares™ which was approved on the
2nd meeting of the 10th Board of Directors on 25th October 2021 and the Sth extraordinary
shareholder’s meeting of 2021 on 30th November 2021. the Company was authorized to
repurchase B Shares. using the Company’s fund. to reduce the registered capital. On 15th
December 2022, confirmed by China Securities Depositorv and Clearing Co.. Ltd Shenzhen
Branch. the Company de-registered 7.987.217 B-shares. which in turn decreased the capital reserve
bv RMB42.265.614.88

3. Pursuant to “The Resolution of Plan of Re-purchase B Shares™ which was approved on the
2nd meeting of the 10th Board of Directors and the 5th extraordinary shareholder’s meeting of
2021. the Company incurred transaction cost of RMB15.043.17 for the repurchase in 2022.  The
expenses of RMB15.043.17 was deducted from capital reserve.

4. Pursuant to the resolution of “Proposal of repurchase and de-registration part of restricted
shares authorized under 2018 A-share Restricted Share Incentive Plan (First Phase) ™. and the
resolution of ““Proposal of repurchase and de-registration part of restricted shares authorized under
2018 A-share Restricted Share Incentive Plan (Second Phase) ™. the Company repurchased and de-
registered. in 2022. 435.838 A-share restricted shares that had been authorized but still under
restriction period. Those shares were owned by 6 former incentive object that are resigned. Capital
reserve of RMB2.393.178.80 was deducted accordingly.

5. Differences, caused by fair value different when unlock the restricted shares. between CIT
deducted amount and cost or expenses recognized in vesting period increased the capital reserve
by RMB982.135.87.

Note 32. Treasury shares

Increase Decrease Closing balance

Item : Opening balance

Share repurchase 50,252,831.88 50.252,831.88
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Item Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Share based payment | 60.585.678.92 | . 982587276 50.759.806.16
Total 60.585.678.92 | 50,252.831.88 60,078.704.64 50.759.806.16

Il

Notes to treasury shares:

1. In 2022, the Company re-purchased B-share of 7.987.217 shares through the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Consideration paid was HKD61.438,781.55 (excluding trading fee) . equivalent to
RMB30.252,831.88. The treasury share increased by 50.252.831.88.

2. As described in Note V. 31. 2, the treasury shares decreased by RMB350.252.831.88 due to
re-purchase of B-share.

3. As described in Note V. 31. 4, the treasury shares decreased by RMB2.829.016.80 due to re-
purchase of restricted shares. And cash dividend to the remaining restricted shares decreased
treasury shares by RMB2.528.447 .40.

4. On 28 December 2021. Pursuant to the “Resolution of Fulfilling Unlocking Condition for
the 2018 A-Share Restricted Share Incentive Plan (First Phase) ™ passed on the 4th meeting of the
10th Board. the first unlocking condition was met. Based on the authorization of the General
Meeting. the Board lifted restriction for 114 incentive individuals. The corresponding shares can
be traded on 7th February 2022. of which the cash dividend decreased treasury shares by
RMB4.468.408.56.
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Note 34. Specific reserve

Item Opening balance Increase Decrease ' Closing balance
Safen ploduc‘non fee 1.062,731.13 1.246,390.69 . 297.056.91 2,012.06491
Note 35. Surplus reserve
Item Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Statutory surplus reserve 213.025.507.50 213,025,507.50

Discretionary surplus

. ) 61.984.894.00 |
___1eser\e |

61.984.894.00

Total | 27501040150 |

275 010 -101 q0

Notes to surplus reserve:

Note: According to the Company Law and Articles of Association. the Company draws

statutory surplus reserve at 10% of net profit. If the statutory surplus reserve is over 30% of the

Company’s registered capital. drawing of statutory surplus reserve will be stopped.

The Company can draw discretionary surplus reserve after drawing statutory surplus reserve.

It approved. discretionary surplus reserve can be used to make up for losses in previous years or

increase share capital.

Note 36. Undistributed profit

Item Current period

Undistributed profit at the end of prior year before

Puc>1 peuod

adjustments 1.338.444,326.09 | 1.164.490.911.51
Adjustments to undistribured profit at the

beginning of year (=" for increase and **-* for -11.188,268.01
decrease) _

L:}dlsmbured profit at the beginning of vear after 1.338.444.326.09 | 153.302.643.50
adjustment :

Plus: Net profit attributable to the owner of the
parent company for the year

Less: statutory surplus reserve drawn

Dividends payable to ordinary shares

266.681.451.84

1"'<419 139.40 |

387.840,282.95
’S -1 3 ‘\1-1 62

-!. 220, 06\ 13

Undistributed profit at the end of year

147 9"066%8 53

1. 3%8 444, ‘“6 09

Note 37. Operating income and operating cost

1. Operating income and operating cost

Amount in current period

Item £ :
i Revenue Cost

\Iam busuless 4, %%6 \86 473, 74

2,738, 100 D29 ’3

Amount in prior period
Reveuue : Cost

ﬂ.224 836 %S-l 30 3,283,434.432.96

Olllﬂ business 17.510.406. 6“ ? 872.261. SS

18.897.156.63 | 2.221.796.17

2. Revenue generated by contract
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Types of contract | Amount in current period Amount in prior period
1. Types of goods |
7, |
yaieh i 4,044,205.847.75 | 14.023.280.724.48
decision: | 163,114,009.23 | 150.094.,350.20
. manufacturing | e
Other business 17.510,406.62 18.897.156.63

II. Categorized
based on timing
of goods
transfer

At a point of
_time

During a

period of time

Note: revenue generated by contract does not include lease income of RMB129.266.616.76

5.078.899.659.72

4,212,548,175.21 |

12,282.088.39 13,372.571:39

which is regulated under “CAS No.21 —Lease™.

Note 38. Tax and surcharges

Item Amount in current period Amount in prior period
Consumption tax 10.509.059.81 13.898.225.16
Urban maintenance and

. 4.483.205.18 5.907.693.68
construction tax 7 _

Educational surcharge

Property tax

Stamp duty " S.Sl-‘;.ll-t.l'? !

b | C aus09s250
- Total N 30.800.199.73 - 37.563.586.80

Note 39. Selling and distribution expenses

Item Amount in current period Amount in prior period
Salan 7 - - | 300.723.066.47 | 453.505.67547.”1“3
Department store”expénse and rental 1~49"’2~6h 139 748,898.49
Market prbmorion expenses ] 11455048813 | 161.383.740.:0
Depfeciation and amo.rtizat.i.on. | ‘m210.324.656.£.1" . i91ﬂS’9123~
Packaging expenses 821042475 573931916
Utilities and property management expenses - .2.:.11l5.070.?9 * | 22‘\887"726
Shipping fees 5.928.120.89 $,530,775.41
Office expenses ."' 5.617.?13.?6” - .7..446..624..”76
7%1‘&\'61 expenses 4,533.814.79 7279*00%9
‘Entertainment expenses | 3,081,324.66 4,046,655.86
wOIht’.‘rs ‘ 11,761.893.82 14‘834.965.2;-
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Item

Total

Amount in current period |

031,832.830.40

Amount in prior period

1,049.898,223.28

Note 40. Administrative expenses

Item
Salary

Depreciation and amortization

Amount in current period

169.,831.180.19

23.584.581.61

Amount in prior period
202,675,218.51

24.544.056.69

Travel expenses

Office expenses

1,651.207.39

3.967.189.58

Agents fees

Rental and utilities

1.764.355.96 |

941.300.03

3.980.000.38
5.390.287.09

3.342.562.00

852,555.31

Entertainment expenses

Vehicle and transportation expenses

764.414.05 |

1,528,304.66

Telecommunication expenses

Others

Total

§25,712.63 |

14.156.262.42

219.014.508.52

1.494.58é: 1?3 ”

1.718.083.11
98391006
16.645.501.14

261.626,762.41

Note 41. R&D expenses

Item

Salary

Sample and material expenses

Molding expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Technical cooperation fee

Others

Tortal

Amount in current period

47.534.889.46

1.964.204.63

$53.056.11 |

485232

n

A8

Amount in prior period
40,498.,469.51
1,557.455.4

744.578.81

IR

6.048.741.96

217.203.80

5,666.906.43

61.088,585.61

2.480.127.69
6.473.195.77

57.802,569.17

Note 42. Financial expenses

Item

Amount in current period

Amount in prior period

Interest expenses

Less: Interest income
Exchange gain or losses
Bank charges

Total

16.846.749.14 |

3.923.999.48

-3.053.760.78

11,319.75

[7%]

21.,188.742.11

23 |

23.159.963.74
3.589.649.85
634.406.96
14.472.352.éb

34.677,073.65

Note 43. Other incoine

1. Details

Sources of other income

Government subsidy

Amount in current period

Amount in prior period

18.645.210.06 |

21,328,673.21
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2. Government subsidy included in other income

Amount in current Amount in prior Asset or
Item . i i
B period period __income related
SubSJdv to promote consmnpnon 7 9’0 q00 00 420.000.00 mcome re!ated
Trade and Distribution Industry Fundmc Prcgect; 579.700.00 Income xelated
; e : s 7 T (S
Quam} an Blaudmg Promotion Iulnphcatmn 1.180.000.00 1.960.000.00 | Tncome related
_Subsidy
Relief Pohcv 'Subs;d\ l .058.150.00 Income related
Shenzhen Specml Fund for Technoloev Research 1.000.000.00 Income related
) Tlammc subsidy ) 1953.220.00 322.500.00 : Income related
|
Subsidy for stabilizing job posmon ‘ 8 19._833.38 833.013.44 Income related
Subudv to Foster H1g11 and New Technology ~00.000.00 L ———.
Enterprise B i
Comumission on IIT payment 3 O S 11 S-l 502.644.31  Income related
Othex subsxdws 6"4 891 74 711,026.01 = Income related
Shenzhen Sraudaxd Specxal Fund 550.694.00 836.705.00 = Income related
Shenzhen E—counnerce I.mm\ zmc.?n a1_1d 330.000.00 Thdniias rapied
Development Support Program Subsidy B o B
g ional. Specialize,Uni New" SM 3
Pxofess:oual SpecE_alxze Unique and New" SME 200.000.00 Income related
Development Subsidy _ o
State certified R&D center 293,147.06 203.147.06 Asset 1e1ared
Provincial industry and information special 128.176.25 {30:551.50 | sasetmetated
Csubsidy L e !
Special fund for Sheuzheu mdustnal desmnmo ' 75.583.79 161.185.89  Asset related
2019 Headquarters Economic Contribution -496.500.00 rcenerabitss
~ Award - - -
N 3
Special fund of Nanshan district to support self 2.013:000:00 | Tisome iolated
innovation industry development
Subsidy to assist high quality development of
. 37 el
fashion industry 3.730.000.00 . Income related
Subsidy to support sales promouon | 3.500.000.00 Income related
Economic development special fund of _
G_uangn?n.l'g Risti: o o ppr ulte} lecmla! 1.090.000.00 - Income related
property right. standardization certification
project S 3
Corpmate Reseaxch and DE\ elopmenr Fuudmg - 756.000.00 Income related
Sheuzhen pobt-doctoral subsidy i SﬁO 000. 00 Income related
R&D project subsidy 378.000.00 = Income related
Guangming Dl_smct specific subsidy for online 200.000.00 ' Income related
market expanding j
Government subsidy for R&D project 200.000.00 | Income related
H_ig_h precision watch technology innovation -166:000.00 | ‘Insoime related
_project S | — | !
Total | 18.648,210.06 21,328,673.21

Note 44. Investment gain
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Item ~ Amount in current period Amount in prior period

Gain from long-term equity investments
accounted for using equity method

3,026,481.59 3,754.939.39

Note 45. Credit impairment loss

Item Amount in current period | Amount in prior period
Bad debt loss 4.845.379.45 : -11,075,001.77
Note 46. Asset impairment loss
Item Amount in current period ' Amount in prior period
Inventory decline in value -37.625.482.96 | -25.861.394.56
Note 47. Gains from assets disposal
Item Amount in current period Amount in prior period
Gains (losses) from assets disposal -203.932.45 -134.543.49
Gains (losses) from right-of-use :
) 205857.51 | 864.678.36
assets disposal !
Toral 91.925.06 730,134.87
Note 48. Non-operating income
, Amount included in
Amount in current o " Sl
Item s Amount in prior period non-recurring gains ot
: P _ ; o losses in current period
Payvables cannot be paid 305.066.79 383,893.25 305.066.79
Compensation $60.904.01 | 113.138.61 $60.904.01
Others 1 121,231.28 | 130,403.17 121,231.28
Total 1,287.202.08 | 627,435.03 1.287.202.08
Note 49. Non-operating expense
Amount included in
— Amount in current Amount in prior | non-recurring gains or
period : period ! losses in current
[ — o] | period
Donation 78.860.00 300.000.00 | 78.860.00
Fine and penalty for late pavment [ 403.084.07 698.864.04 403,084.07
Payment for breach of agreement 1,412,548.66 2.507.649.06 1.412.548.66
Others 456.773.58 179.653.45 456,773.58
Total 2.351,266.31 3,686,166.55 2,351.266.31
Note 50. CIT expenses
1. Details
Irem Amount in current period Amount in prior period
Current tax expense for the year 86.356.685.06 112.084.704.70

based on tax law and regulations
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Item ? Amount in current period

Changes in deferred tax
assets liabilities

Total ‘ 7244022001 |

-13,916,465.05

Amoum in pum peuod

2.382,671.18

114,467.375.88

2. Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit is as follows:

Item

Ploﬂts before tax

Amount in current period

339 1"1 671.85

Income tax calculared based on statutoyy tax rate

8-1 780.417. 96

Others

Effecr or d1ffe1ent tax rates apphed b\ subsxdlmles -6.456.358.40

—\dmstmeur to income tax of previous vears -1.354.677_99

Effeu of non- ta\able income "\6 6"0 19

Effect of non-deducnbie costs. expenses and losses 2.294 ]“ 1-1

Effect of using the deductible temporary differences or deductible losses 334.619.68

for which no deferred tax asset was recognized in prior period e

Effect of deductible temporary differences or deductible losses for which

no deferred tax asset was recognized this vear o

Effect of research and development expenses super deduction -5.842.096.63
Income tax expenses 72.440.220.01

Note 51. Notes to cash flow statement

1. Cash received from other operating activities

Item ‘ Amount in current period Amount in  pri ior penod
Security deposit S i% 956.047. 7 13.:86 247. <9
Government subsidy H | 18,151.302 96"'3 22,985,857.32
Promotion expenses L 12.201.925.26 | 1358265181
| Iulere;t“ income - “ 3.923.999.48 _;."'89 649. b\m
Return of petty cash | : - | 8.030.966.63 7.070.953.20
Others 2130261171 25.872,097.79
Total . 79.656.853.28 85.387.457.56

2. Cash paid for other operating activities

Amount in prior period

27 7 ’4 098 01

Item Amount in current period i
Security deposit 24, 008 32315
Petty cash advanced to employee 11,049.894.11

ll "\3" 694.33

Current period expenses 288.360,173.00 4%6 157.747. S“
Others 617.269.28 2 6%« "'0 9-1
Total 324,035.659.54 | 475.000,748.10

3. Cash paid for other financing activities
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Item - Amount in current penod

Lease pa\ ment

(& ash pald fcu re- purchase ot shares

l"4 037 —10" 37

Amount in prior period

53, 390 338. 09 \

113 332.289 07

Total

177.477,740.46

124.710,390.58

9, 1:8 101 '\l

Note 52. Supplement information to cash flow statement

1. Supplement to cash flow statement

Item

1. Reconciliation of net pi‘oﬁt loss to cash flows from

operating activities:

Net profit

Amount in current
N

266.681.451.84

Amount in prior period

387.860.340. "3

Add: Credit impairment loss

Impairment for assets

Depreciation of fixed assets. oil and gas assets and
productive biological assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

-4.845.379.45

37 6"'\ 48’ 96

40.524.642.37

110.464.700.15

11.015.001.77
25.861,394.56
42.404,375.44

100.275414. 3

Intangible asset amortization

Amortization of long-term deferred expenses

5.009.348.81 ;

llO 43\ 014.09

Loss on disposal of fixed assets. intangible assets. and

other long-term assets (“*-** for gain)

-91.925.06

6,162.432.21

-730,134.87

103,932.868.69

Loss on scrap of fixed assets (- for gain)

Loss on changes of fair value (*-** for gain)

Financial expenses (- for income)

16 846 "49 14 !

23.159.963.74

Investment loss (- for gain) -3 0“ 481.59 -3.754.939.39
Decrease in deferred tax assets (“-* for increase) -14.:’-51 337 _9“. | -319.474.30
Increase in deferred tax liabilities (*-** for decrease) ’6“. 13é 92 | 2 168.679.48
Decrease in iu'.\'é.:;‘trorjes (- for increase) ~9“ 6" 16\ 17 -133 0\1.3?“ 4_

Decrease in operating receivables (*- for increase)

l“l 164.7 "49 63

59.770.087.01

Increase in operating payables (- for decrease)

Others

-117.643,404.85 |

-77.565.523.41

Net cash flows from operaumz activities

476.228.776.52

" Slgmﬂcau[ m\ estment or ﬁ.uaucmcr acm ities not
involving cash:

Debts converted o mpnal

547.249.108.45

Convertible debts :mm:e within one vear

Added right-of-use assets in the current peuod

3. I\et chanaes in cash and casil equiv alenrs

Cash at eud of\em
Less cash at beqmmng ofxeas

Plus: Cash equivalents at end of year

313,738.389.64

210.254.737.14

210,2 \473714
353.05 ._S..l
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Item

Less: cash equivalents at beginning of vear

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

. peried

Amount in current

Amount in prior period

103.483,652.50

-142.802.548.57

2. Total cash outflows related to lease

Total cash outflows related to lease amounted to RMB124,087.402.37. ( Prior period:

RMB115,532,289.07)

3. Cash and cash equivalents

Item

Closing balance

Opening balance

1. Cash

Incl. Cash on hand

Bank deposit available for immediate payment

Other monetary funds available for immediate

payment

II. Cash equivalents

Including Bond investment due in three months

ITI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of vear

Including Restricted cash and cash equivalents for the

Company and its subsidiaries

313.738.389.64

173.368.68 |

210.254.737.14
108.612.08

L131,127.67 |

313.738.389.64

312.433.893.29

188.908.798.10

21,237,326.96

716.733.44

1.724.651.93

As of December 31. 2022. the company has been frozen at RMB 9.074.00 due to being included

in a long-term immobile bank account.

Note 53. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency

1. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency

Balance denominated in

Balance translated in

Irem foreign currency as at 31 Exchange rate
‘ RMB as at 31 Dec 2022
Dec 2022 B
_\Ionemz}:‘ fund 24.163.612.98
USD O 2osatessl 6.9646 20.578.758.4
EL’R - 55?.653.94 7.4229 2.506,148.74
HKD 5017’0726 08932 - -148.1607.0-71”
cwF $3603.65 75432 |  e30545.72
Accounts receivable | - 4,753,372.10
USD 46&356.15 6.9646 3.252.71762.80”
EUR 73,533.12 7.4229 | 545 82.9.(.)6.
HKD 67466315 0.8932 602.656..;;.
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Balance denominated in )
Balance translated in
Item foreign currency as at 31 Exchange rate
RMB as at 31 Dec 2022
Dec 2022 _
CHF 46.760.52 7.5432 352,723.95
Other receivables 104,397.30
HKD 116.870.93 | 0.8932 104,397.30
Accounts payvable 473.247.09
HKD 0.8932 215.302.84
CHF 7.5432 I 257.944.25
Other pavables 168.702.98
UsDh 5.588.86 38.924.17
EUR 490.28 3.639.30
HKD 11.588.20 10.351.39
CHF 15.350.00 115.788.12

2. Overseas operational entity

For main business location and recording currency of important overseas operaring entities, refer to

Note III. 5.

Note 54. Government subsidy

1. Status

Types of government subsidy

Subsidy included in deferred income

Subsidy included in other income

Amount in current
period

Less: subsidy rerurned

Total

18,151.302.96

18.647.802.96

Amount included in

loss

current period profit or

note

1496.907.10 Note V 29

1

496.300.00

18.648.210.06

18,647.802.96 Note V 43

496.500.00 Note 2 below

2. Subsidy returned

Item

Type

Amount in

i Amount in prior
i current period

period

Reasons for return

Over disbursement of subsidy and its

interest

Income related

496.500.00

Not qualified

VI. Interests in other enftities

1. Equity in subsidiary

(1) Composition of enterprise group
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© Shareholding ratio |
R Place of | Plgce O.f Nature of (% e -
Name = | registratio . A7) | Ways acquired
operation | = business . -
n | Indirect
Shenzhen Harmony World | _, | . ‘ " incorporated or
“Walgh Ceterco, Lad, | SIOReN | Sheashen | Commers | 1000 investment
- incorporated or
FIYTA Sales Co., Ltd. Shenzhen | Shenzhen Commerce 100.00 .01_p e/ e
o . R | R ... tovestment
Shenzhen FIYTA Precisiorn ; " incorporated or
% ARD . Shenzhen | Shenzhen | Manufacturing = 99.00 1.00 | 111(‘201.})
Technology Co.. Ltd. _ i B ) | investment
Shenzhen FIVIA E incorporated or
Technology Development Shenzhen | Shenzhen : Manufacturing = 100.00 : p
: = : . = investment
Harmony World Watch incorporated or
B J : i & g 0.0 .
Center (Hainan) Co Lnd. | S™¥8 | Sawa | Commewe | 100 . investment
Shenzhen Xunhang : i incorporated or
Precision Technology Co.. Shenzhen = Shenzhen | Manufacturing = 100.00 ; p
Ltd = = investment
" Emile Choureit Timi . ] " incorporated or
5?‘“ HEE RS Shenzhen Shenzhen | Comunerce 100.00 : C.m_pora o
(Shenzhen) Ltd. | AR——— s i L. opvestment
Liaoning Hengdaui cjz?l:ili:rsiin
Commercial & Trade Co., Shenvang =~ Shenvang Comunerce 100.00 )
e iy | under comumon
Ltd. | |
N ...control
TEMPOR! en ! i incorporated or
: ORAL ( S i Shenzhen @ Shenzhen Comumerce 100.00 . [P N i
Co..Ltd. : | ik ‘ . lnvestment
Shenzh;?n Harmony E- | Shenzhen | Shenzhen = Comumerce 100.00 in(:Ol'-p arated ot
comunerce Co.. Ltd. ! | : investment
- Hong Hong ' ) incorporated or
FIVTA (Hong Kong) Ltd. Kong Kong .Cnom.mexce 100.00 * iovestment
Business
combination
Montres Chouriet SA Swiss Swiss Manufacturing 100.00 not under
common
control
2. Equity in joint arrangement or associates
(1) Significant associates
Bl e Shareholding ratio
. Place of : . Nature of (%) Accounting
Name : . registrat . s ; i
operation | T business . { . treatment
o | Direct | Indirect
. : ; er - ;
Shanghai Watch Co.. Ltd. Shanghai  Shanghai Cogn;? ! 25% Equity method

(2) Principal financial information of significant associate company

Item

Cutrent assets

Closing balance/Amount in
current period

175.890.077.66

Non-current assets

Total assets

Opening balance/Amount in
_ prior period

143.367.298.98

21,637.323.67

197.527.401.33

17.537.419.20

160.904.718.18

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

44.595.566.75

5.885,583.05

24,124,925.22

1.839.467.79

Total liabilities

50.481,149.80 |

25.964,393.01
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Closing balance/Amountin | Opening balance/Amount in

Item : g S
__current peric prior period

Non controlhnz mterest

Equity atmbutabie to parem compam 147.046.251.53 134,940.325.17
Portion of net asset calculated based on 36.761.562.88 33.735.081.29
_Shareholding B _
Adjustment matters i 21.420,524.02 21,420,524.02

- Goodwill 21.420,524.02 21,420.524.02

- Unrealized profit or losses from
internal transaction

- Othe;s

Carrving value of investment to associates 58.182.086.90

“h
ll
e
tn
N
(= 0
o
N
w
—

Fair value of eqtut}' investment that has
public quotation

Operating iucome : 141. 3"9 2"6 3“ 150,929.452.87

\et ploﬂt 12,105.926.36 15.019.757.54

Net profit n om dlscontmued opemuon

Other comp;ehens;ve income

Toml c.ompxehensn ¢ income 12,105.926.36

Dividends received from associated
company during the vear |

VII. Risk disclosure related to financial instrument

The major financial instruments of the Company primarily include cash at bank and on hand.
equity investments. borrowings. accounts receivable. accounts payables and bond pavables. The
Company is exposed to risks from various financial instruments in day-to-day operation, mainly
including credit risk. liquidity risk and market risk. The risks in connection with such financial
instruments and the risk management policies adopted by the Company to mitigate such risks are
summarized as follows:

The board of directors is responsible for planning and establishing the risk management
structure for the Company. developing risk management policies and the related guidelines across
the Company. and supervising the performance of risk management measures. The Company has
developed risk management policies to identify and analyse risks exposed by the C'oinpany. These
risk management policies have clear regulations over specific risks, covering various aspects of
market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk management. The Company will evaluate the market
environment and changes of the Company’s operating activities on a regular basis to decide whether
to update the risk management policies and systems. Risk management of the Company is carried
out by the Risk Management Committee based on the policies as approved by the board of directors.
Risk Management Committee identifies. evaluates and mitigates related risks by working closely
with other business divisions of the Company. Internal Audit Department of the Company will

review the risk management control and process regularly. and submit the review results to Audit
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Committee of the Company. The Company spreads the risks of financial instruments through
appropriate diversified investment and business portfolio. and mitigates the risk of focusing on any
single industry. specific regions or counterparties by way of formulating the corresponding policies
for risk management.

1. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial losses to the Company as a result of the failure of
performance of contractual obligations by the counterparties. The management has developed
proper credit policies and continuously monitors credit risk exposures.

The Company has adopted the policy of transacting with creditworthy counterparties only. In
addition, the Company evaluates the credit qualification of customers and sets up corresponding
credit term based on the financial status of customers, the possibility of obtaining guarantees from
third parties. credit records and other factors such as current market conditions. The Company
monitors the balances and recovery of bills and accounts receivable. and contract assets on a
continual basis. As for bad credit customers. the Company will use the written reminders. shorten
the credit term or cancel the credit term to ensure that the Company is free from material credit
losses. In addition. the Company reviews the recovery of financial assets on each balance sheet date
to ensure adequate expected credit loss provision is made for relevant financial assets.

The Company’s other financial assets include currency funds and other receivables. The credit
risk relating to these financial assets arises from the default of counterparties. but the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrving amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. The
Company does not provide any other guarantee that may expose the Company to credit risk.

The monetary funds held by the Company are mainly deposited with financial institutions such
as state-owned banks and other large and medium-sized commercial banks. The management
believes that these commercial banks have a higher reputation and assets. so there is no major credit
risk and the Company would not have any significant losses caused by the default by these
institutions. The Company’s policy is to control the amount deposited with these famous financial
institutions based on their market reputation, operating size and financial background. to limit the
credit risk amount of any single financial institution.

As a part of its credit risk asset management, the Company assesses the credit loss of
receivables using aging. The Company’s receivable and other receivables involve large amount of
customers. Aging information can reflect the ability to repay and risk of bad debt of these customers.
The Company determined expected loss rate by calculating historical bad debt rate for receivables
with different aging based on historical data and also taking forecast of future economic condition
into consideration such as GDP growth rate, state currency policy etc... For long-term receivables,
the Company assesses expected credit loss reasonably by considering settlement period. contracted

payment terms, debtor’s financial situation and the economic situation of the debtor’s industry.
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As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of related assets and corresponding ECL is as

follows:
Aging ' Carrying amount A Provision
Bill :’ecei\'abié N 33.347.7;90.58 ‘ ....... o 113287848
Arcou;ts receivable 345,753,258.32 -10-1622986-1
Other receivable 61.182.5—69..‘51 | | 4.26.4.550.3.3
 Tom T aoasselsTl| 4585972745

As the Company’s customer base is large. no material credit concentration risk.
As at 31 December 2022. the balance of top 5 receivable accounts accounted for 32.76% of

total accounts receivables (2021: 35.48%) .

2. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of short of funds when the company performs its obligation of
cash payment or settlement by other financial assets. The Company’s subordinate member
companies are responsible for their respective cash flow projections. Based on the results thereof.
the subordinate financial management department continually monitors its short-term and long-term
capital needs at the company level to ensure adequate cash reserves: in the meantime. continually
monitors the compliance with loan agreements and secures undertakings for sufficient reserve funds
from major financial institutions. to address its short-term and long-term capital needs. Besides. the
Company mainly signs financing agreements with banks that have business transactions to provide
support to fulfill commercial bill obligation. As at 31 December 2022. the Company has financing
facilities from several banks amounting to RMB2.127.16 million. Amongst. RMB467.16 million
has alreadv been used.

As at 31 December 2022. the discounted contractual cash flows for financial liabilities and off-

balance sheet guarantee that presented in maturity are as follows:

Closing balance in ten thousands yuan

Item o ] ! var 3 =
Within 1 year | 1-2years . 2-3years Dl f Total
oy S i o, : . _ years i
Short term loan 2933384 : 29.333.84
Bills payable 200.06 200.06
Accounts payable 17.038.95 | © 1709895
Other payvables 13.873.61 231.76 200.79 199.83 16,506.01
Total 62.486.46 23176 20079 | 19985 | 6311886

3. Market risk

(1) Exchange rate risk
Except that the Company’s subsidiary in Hong Kong uses HKD as settlement currency and

sub-subsidiary in Swiss used CHF as settlement currency. the principal places of operations of the
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Company are located in China and the major businesses are settled in RMB. However, the
Company’s recognized foreign currency assets and liabilities as well as the foreign currency
transactions in the future (the functional currencies of foreign assets and liabilities as well as the
transactions are mainly HKD and CHF) remain exposed to exchange rate risk

As at 31 December 2022, the RMB equivalent of financial assets and financial liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

Closing balance

Item T " t
HKD USD EUR CHF Total
Financial asse - ‘ '
denominated in
foreign currency: : E— i
Monetary fund 448.160.04 20.578.758.48 | 2.506.148.74 630.545.72 24.163,612.98
Accounts receivable 602.636.35 ¢ 3.252,162.80 545.829.00 352,723,095 4,753,372.10
Other receivables 104.397.30 104,397.30
Subtotal 1.155.213.69 983.269.67  29.021.382.38
" Financial liabilities | ' ‘
denominated in
 foreign currency: ! | S— ! E I
Accounts payables 215.302.84 ! 257.944.25 473.247.09
Other pavables 10.351.39 38, 3.639.30 115,788.12 168.702.98
Total 225,654.23 3.639.20 373.732.37 ‘ 641.950.07

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2022, for financial assets and financial liabilities that denominated in foreign
currency. if Renminbi appreciate or depreciate of 3% to foreign currency and other factors remain
unchanged. the net profit will decrease or increase about RMB 1.419 million(31 Dec 2021:RMB

485.000) .

(2) Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Company mainly associates with bank borrowings. bonds payable.
etc. Floating rate financial liabilities expose the Company to cash-flow interest rate risk. while fixed
rate financial liabilities expose the Company to fair-value interest rate risk. The Company
determines the comparative proportion of fixed rate contracts and floating rate contracts based on
the then market conditions.

The interest rate risk of the Company mainly associates with bank borrowings, bonds payable.
etc. Floating rate financial liabilities expose the Company to cash-flow interest rate risk. while fixed
rate financial liabilities expose the Company to fair-value interest rate risk. The Company
determines the comparative proportion of fixed rate contracts and floating rate contracts based on

the latest market conditions.
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Sensitivity analysis:

As at 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general increase or decrease 50 basis points in
the borrowings with floating interest rates. with all other variables held constant, the Company’s net
profit and shareholder’s equity for the year will decrease or increase by approximately
RMB1.200.000.00 (2021: RMB 1.000.000.00) .

The above sensitivity analysis assumes that interest rate changed on the balance sheet date and

applicable to all loans with floating interest rate terms.

VIILFair value

1. Financial instruments measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2022, the Company does not have financial instruments measured at fair
value.

2. Status of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value include: accounts receivable,
short-term loans. accounts pavable. long-term loans due within one year. and equity instrument
investment that does not have public quotation in an active market and its fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

The difference between fair value and carrving amount of the above financial assets and

liabilities that not measured at fair value is insignificant.

IX. Related party and related transaction

1. The parent company of the Company

. Shareholdin : Ratio of vote
Registered 2 ;
i : i gratioof | rightof
| Registration 5 capiral harent | arent
1 €g i - " ; : H I
Name i i Type of business (in ten F P
place ' thousand | €ompany to company to
RMB) the the
porpsBum s e e Company %o, Company®o
CATIC Shenzhen Shenzhen  Comumercial 116.616.20 39.02 39.02

(1) Notes to the parent company
CATIC Shenzhen is a subsidiary that 100% held. indirectly, by AVIC International. and AVIC directly

holds 91.14% of the equity of AVIC International.
(2) The ultimate controlling party of the Company is AVIC.
2. Refer to Note VL 1 for information about the Company’s subsidiaries
3. Refer to Note VL. 2 for information about the Company’s material associates

4. Other related parties
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Name of other related parties

Relationship

Shenzhen CATIC Propem Management Limited ( CATIC Propem’ \ianagemem)

'Associate company of the
:controlling shareholder

‘Associate company of the
Shenzhen CATIC Bmidmz Eqmpmeut Co., Ltd. (CATIC Buﬂ(tmg Compan})  controlling shareholder
| / of th
Shenzhen CATIC Nanguang Elevator Engineering Co., Ltd. (CATIC Nanguang) Aol SOy B ¢
.controlling shareholder
China Merchants Propeny Operauon & Service Co., Ltd (China Merchants PlOpElTV Associate  company of the
0s) controlling shareholder
7 of
Shenzhen CATIC City Investment Co.. Ltd (CATIC City Investment) ;Assocm.te comp_ any of the
.controlling shareholder
Associate company of the

Ganzhou CATIC 9 Square Trading Co, Ltd (Gan:dxou 9 Square Company)

controlling shareholder

CATIC City Estate (Kunshan) Co. Ltd (Kunshan Company)

Shenzhen AVIC Security Service Co.., Ltd (AVIC Security Service)

Tiujiang 9 Square Business Management Co., Ltd (Jiujiang 9 Square Business
Management)

Rambo“ Digital Scxence C 0., Ltd. and its absomated compames 1Ramb0\\ Company

‘Associate company of the
icontrolling shareholder

!Associate company

of the

.controlling shareholder
Associate company of the
.controlling shareholder

Controlled by

the same party

Sheunan Cuuurs Co.. LId and its assomated companies (Shennan Circuits)

A\'IC Lutong Co Ltd.( WIC Lutotm

%C‘ontrolled by

Controlled by

the same party

the same party

s\\’IC luteunnonal Aero-Dev elopment Corporation( -Y\'IC Int 1 Aero Dev elopmem)

AVIC Huadonﬂ Photoelecuu. Co., Ltd.(AVIC Huadong Photoelectric)

Controlled by

Controlled by

the same party

the same party

AVIC Xi‘an Flight Automatic Control Research Insmute{ AVIC Xi'an Flight Instxtute) Contmiled by

Shenzhen Grand Skvlight Hotel Management Co.. Ltd (Grand Skylight Hotel
Management Company)

AVIC Securities Co.. Ltd. (AVIC Securities Comp'ln\)

Controlled by

Controlled by

the same party
the same party

the same party

AVIC Training Center

AVIC Finance Co.. Ltd. (AVIC Finance Company)

:_C ontrolled by

Controlled by

the same party

the same party

Gonggingcheng CATIC Culture Investment Co.. Ltd {Gongqingcheng CATIC
Culture Investument Company)

é(‘onn‘olled by

the same pam

China National Aero- Teclmolom Shenzhen Co.. I.td

Beu ing Hangtou Real-Estate Co., Ltd. (Beijing Hangtou)

Controlled by

Controlled by

the same pam'

the same party

Avic Jonhon Optronic Teclmolo:z\ Co., Ltd.(AVIC Jonhon)

China Aviation International Simulation Technology Services Co.. Ltd. (China
Aviation International Simulation ) -

A\'IC Intemanonal Holdmzs (Zhuhau Co Ltd tA\'IC Zhuhan

C hma \auonal Aeio-technolocv Import & E\porr Ccuporauon (C -\TIC )

C hina Aviation Indllsm Gene;al Aircraft Co.. Ltd.(CAIGA)

C ontrolled by

Controlled by

Controlled by

‘Controlled by

Controlled by

the same party
the same party
the Sﬁl‘;\; pam
the same party

the same party

AVIC Capital C 0. Ltd. (AVIC Capital)

Gluzhou HLA\ ANG Elecn onics Co.. Ltd.

EComrolled by

Controlled by

the same party

the same party

Zhuhm P1lot Composne Material Technology Co., Ltd.

Guangdoua International Mansion Industrial Co., Ltd. (Gﬁahgdong International

Mansion)

‘Shenzhen Zhonghang Technology Checking & Measuring Institute (Shenzhen

ZHTCMI)

C ontrolled by

Controlled by

Controlled by

Company directors, managers, CFO and secretary of rhe board

hev management 111embe1

the same party

the same party

the same pany
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5. Related party transactions

(1) Related transaction between subsidiaries and between parent company and

subsidiaries which are in the scope of consolidation have already been offset.

(2) Purchase good and receiving service

Related parties

Related transaction
content

Amount in current
peri

Amount in prior
__period

CATIC Property Management

Rainbow Company

- Property management

Department store

expenses’ Commodity
purchase

11,539.094.22

4,184.883.88

10.672.790.93

4.964.647.21

AVIC Training Center Training fee 147.652.13
Ganzhou 9 Square Company D-ep arument store 74.815.04 178.484.53
expense . I
C. ATIC City Estate {Kunshan) i D_epamnent store 63.779 35 64.060.50
Company - expense o
Jiufang Business Management i Df-:p ArERS SOk 90.606.52 86.305.01
cxpense — e
CATIC Building Company Renovation 19.200.60 : 82,276.21
AVIC Nanguang Company Elevator maintenance 46.660.32 | 463.226.05
AVIC Jonhon . Purchase of goods 238.755.07 76.667.61
Gongqulgche‘ng CATIC Culrure Departmental store 25.733.73 | 31.544.56
Investment Company | expense ‘
Grand:Skylight Huiel . Purchase of goods 3,855.65
Management Company s -
Guangdong International i -
= & Propertv management 18,157.7
Shenzhen ZHTCM Accept labour 6.590.00
AVIC Xi‘an Flight Automatic - N
Control Research Institute( AVIC Accept labour 179.245.28
_ Xi'an Flight Institute)
Total 16,491.377.37 16.767.655.04

Notes: All amount listed above exclude tax

(3) Sale of goods and providing services

Nature of in curr . in prior
fislated party a ! Amount m current —\mouut._m prior
B ’ transaction period period
Beijing Hangtou Sale of product 3,504.42
Ganzhou 9 Square Product and service 16,327.43 23,850.44
Gonggingeheng CATIC Culture | o0 o nroduct 310.404.70 461.064.03
Investment Company :
9 Square Business Management Sale of product 45,548.67 2.648.00
Shennan Circuit faleiof matazial and 335.070.20 2,179.951.09
o providing service S
- e N .
gmnd SLT_\ light Hotel Management Sale of product 17.610.62
ompany ; ; PO
Others 2,453.10 2,180.53

AVIC Training Center

Rainbow Company

Product and service

53.197.052.19 |

79.467,519.77
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AVIC International Sale of product 28,237.17
7:&-’1(“ Tonhon ' Sale of product i 12'3’094*6 383..989.41
Sinulaon | Saleof produet L ...

AVIC Zhuhai ' Sale of product 8.800.00 | 31.831.86
_ .L_“;.TIC‘ Sale of product 105.955.;(;

CAIGA . Sale of product 1,319.881.42

AVIC Capital Sale of product 8.681.42

CATIC Property Management Share of Utilities 3.236.626.25 3,372,087.78

Guizhou HUAYANG Electronics
Co..Ltd.

AVIC Huadong
PHOTOELECTRIC

. and managementfee | "7

Sale of product

Zhuhai Pilot Composite Material
Technology Co., Ltd.

- Sale of product

Sale of product

87.263.71
21.238.94

1.805,929.20 |

Total

60.318.768.95 |

§7.469.498.13

Notes: All amount listed above exclude tax

(4) Related party lease

1) The Company as lessor

Lessee

. Type of leased assets

Recognized rental
income in current vear

Recognized rental income
in prior vear

7.876.636.32

CATIC Property Management Property 4.040.909.78

AVIC Securities Company Property 1.411.885.68 | 1,377.399.99
” Vkrernrinbow Company Property 437.897.82 9%19%092 ”

AVIC Security Service Property 906.404.52 799.448.76

Total

6.797,097.80 |

10.985.424.99

2) The Company as lessee

Variable lease payments

that Brehot meladedin Rental payment Interest payment of lease Addition of right-of-use
| habilities asset
Lessor Type | . lease liabiliies - g :
‘r Current Prior Current Prior period Current Prior Current Prior
| period period period e period period period perod
Guangdong |
International ; |
Mansion Property | 40,527 84 357258 51.030.81
Industrial Co..
é””ShE’T . Property 94,595 41 10575665 | 551580 | 826643 | 13870890 | 12353402
ompany : ! oo
Zﬁ‘;g‘;:‘, : Property 417,258.91 59453247 | 1437880 @ 3109302 | 24750555 | 62270860
Ganzhou9  : T
Square { Property 396,395.26 © 95134860 897433 4313168 |
Company . |
Jiufang E
Business . Property 5051353 | 26033433 32048510 @~ 508577.07 14,747 54 14.547.95 | |
Management i i i ) i | . S
Total ‘ 60.513.53 | 260,384.38 1,269,273 51 2.160,217.79 47,289.05 97.039.98 | 43724528 | 74624262

(5) Related party fund lending and borrowing
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1) Borrowings from related parties

Related Party

Amount

AVIC Finance Company
AVIC Finance Company

Total

100.000.000.00
100,000,000.00 | 18 February 2022
200,000,000.00

starting date

Expiring date

Note

14 January 2022

25 February 2022

Note:

The Company paid interest to AVIC Finance Company amounted to RMB324.444.44 during

the year.

(6) Remuneration to key management

Item

Amount in current period

Remuneration to key management

Amount in prior period

15.148.600.00

18.610.600.00

(7) Other related transactions

The year-end balance of the Company’s cash that is deposited with AVIC Finance Company is
RMB271,327.031.83. Interests received from the deposit during the year were RMB425.324.08.

(8) Receivables from and pavables to related parties

1) Receivables from related parties

Irem Related party

Monetary

fund

AVIC Finance Company

Closing balance

Accounts
receivable

i Ganzhou 9 Square

' Gongqingcheng CATIC
Culture Investment

L Company

i Shennan Circuit

Rainbow Company

- CAIGA

AVIC Jonhon

i CATIC Property
| Management

“ . Guizhou HUAYANG
| Dlectmmiesfo. I, .
Zhuhai Pilot Composite

Material Technology Co..

| Ltd. _ _
AVIC Training Center

Opening balance

Bad debt

Carrying Bad debt Carrying
amount provision | amount provision
271.327.031.83 147.786.041.19
§ 6.000.00 300.00
27,297.28 1.364.88 10,536.96 303.21
725514 54414 :
219.873.20

3.808.470.31

649.797.16 48.734.79 |

55.910.00 2,795.50
59.528.00 4.464.60

1.412,045.00 105.903.38

2,772.00 207.90 |
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Closing balance Opening balance
Item Related party Carrying Bad debt Carrying ' Baddebt
amount provision amount provision
] f;ﬁ:gei‘;fﬂ‘ess 45.762.00 2.288.10
receivable
Shennan Circuit 308.698.46 15,434.92
AVIC Jonhon 262,429.22 187.,090.69 9.354.53
i e ene) - . :
receivables
Ganzhou 9 Square Company . 192,064.00 9.603.20
~ Gongqingcheng CATIC | ‘ ' -
Culture Investment 6.500.00 325.00 5.500.00 275.00
. Company i
Jiufang Business

50.000.00 2.500.00 50.000.00 |  2,500.00
Management |

Rainbow Companyv 1,055,557.43 1.051.020.00 52,551.00
| Kunshan Company 73.000.00 56.000.00 | 2.800.00
AVIC 4032 2.47 4032 | 247

2) Payables to related parties

Item Related party Closing balance Opening balance
Accounts | :
payable _ :
CATIC Building Company | 32.992.3;:7 41.283.S§;
. AVIC Jonhon 19.411.27
oher E
payables: :
éPéiubo\\‘ Company 108.186.52 198.661.82
AVIC International 3.600.00
CATIC Property Management 2,375,070.47 . 2,307,322.31
AVIC Securities Company 247.080.00 247.080.00
CATIC Nanguang 2343243 34.430.13

CATIC Building Company 31.270.67

AVIC Secusity Service CIsse0s0 22660344
Ad‘ame — I : T
received

Rainbow Company 165.324.03 i 165_;;‘/'}(;

- AVIC Securities Company 123.540.00

Notes to the financial statements - Page 107



FIY'TA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

X. Share-based pavments

1.General information about share-based payments

Total equity instrument granted during |
current period TR N
Total equity instrument exercised
during current period i
Total equity instruments voided in !
current period. .
Scope of outstanding share option |
exercise price and remaining Not applicable
contract term 7
Scope of outstanding other equity
instrument  exercise price and |
remaining contract term., '

1.244,421.00

2.Equity settled share-based payment

Method of determining fair value of equity

X Close price of share on grant date
instrument on grant date

Evidence to determine the number of - Term of employee service. status of target completion.
_exercisable equity strument . and personal performance assessment

Reasons for significant difference berween :

current period estimation and prior period : Nil
_estimation :

Accumulated amount charged to capital reserve

for equity seftled share-based payment

Total expenses for equity settled share-based
payment recognized in current period

31.988.282.05

9.870.150.33

XI. Commitment and contingencies

1. Significant commitments

(1) Lease confract that already signed or prepared to fulfil and its financial effect
Refer to Note XIII for details.

2.Contingencies on balance sheet date

The Company does not have material contingent events that need to be disclosed

XII. Post balance sheet date events

1. Profit distribution

‘Cash dividend of RMB2.50 (tax inclusive) for

Profit distributions or dividends proposed ey 10 shares el

2.0ther events after the balance sheet date
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(1) Financing and guarantee after the balance sheet date

1) On 16 March 2023, pursuant to approval by the 110 meeting of the 10 Board of directors. the
Company proposed to apply for financing facility of no more than RMB 1,200 million by means of credit,
pledge and mortgage in 2023, The resolution is pending for approval by the shareholder’s meeting.

2) On 16 March 2023. pursuant to approval by the 11% meeting of the 10® Board of directors. the
Company proposed to provide guarantee for the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary to borrow from
banks of no more than RMB 600 million in 2023. The credit line is included in the actual usage limit of

RMB1.200 million mentioned above. The resolution is waiting approval from the shareholder’s meeting.

(2) Others
As at 16 March 2023, the Company does not have other post-balance sheet events that need to

be disclosed.

XIII. Disclosure regarding lease

The Company as a lessor:

1. Lease activities

All lease of the Company is property lease. including short-term lease and other leased that

recognized right-of-use asset and lease liabilities.

2. Short-term lease

Short-term leases are treated using simplified method. Short-term leases include lease term that
is shorter than 12 month and no renew options attached, and leases that will be matured in 12 month
after first adoption of CAS 21 — Lease. Short-term lease expenses charged to profit or loss was
RMB407.454.71.

3.Future potential cash outflows that does not included in lease liabilities

(1) Variable lease pavment -

The lessee leased a lot of retail shops which contains variable lease payment terms in
connection with sales.

Many of the Company’s property lease contain variable lease payment terms in connection
with sales. In most circumstances. the Company uses these terms to matches lease payment to shops
that can generate more cash flows lease payment. For standalone shops. variable can reach 100% of
all lease payment at most and that the scope of percentage of sales used is quite large. In some
circumstances, variable payment terms include annual bottom payment and upper limit.

In 2022. the variable lease payment included in the current profit and loss is RMB
85.618.040.29.
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(2) Option to renew
Many lease contracts entered by the Company has option to renew. The Company has already

estimated the option to renew reasonably when determining lease terms in measuring lease liabilities.

(3) Option to discontinue lease
Some of the lease contract entered by the Company has option to discontinue. The Company
has already estimated the option to discontinue reasonably when determining lease terms in

measuring lease liabilities.

(4) Residual value guarantee

The Company’s lease does not involve residual value guarantee.

(5) Lease that the lessee has already made commitment but not yet started

The Company does not have lease that has already made commitment but not vet started.

Disclosure as a lessor:

1. Lease activities

The Company’s leases are all properties.

2. Risk management strategy of retaining rights over lease assets
To reduce risks of lease. the Company normally asks lessee to pay rental in advance and

collects 1-3 months rental as deposit.

XIV. Other material information

1. Segments

Operating segments of the Company are identified on the basis of internal organization
structure. management requirements and internal reporting system. An operating segment represents
a component of the Company that satisfied the following criteria simultaneously:

(1) Its business activities are engaged to earn revenue and incur expenses:

(2) Its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s management to make
decisions on resources allocation and performance assessment:

(3) Its financial conditions. operating results, cash flow and related accounting information are
available to the Company.

The Company determines the reporting segment based on the operating segment. and the
operating segment that meets any of the following conditions is determined as the reporting segment:

(1) The segment income of the operating segment accounts for 10.00% or more of total income

of all segments:
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(2) The absolute amount of profits (losses) of the segment account for 10.00% or more of the
higher of the absolute amount of total profits of the profiting segment and the absolute amount of
total losses of the unprofitable segment.

The Company’s business is simple. The business mainly involves manufacturing and sales of
watch. The management considers the business as a whole in implementing management and
assessing its performance. As a result, no segment information is disclosed in this financial
statement.

2 Other material events

As at 31 December 2022, the Company does not have other significant matters that require to

disclose.

XV. Notes to the parent company’s financial statement
Note 1. Accounts receivables

1. Presented by aging

Aging Closing balance | Opening balance
sl '53'5'_'1733_'1'('5 | S— 13:9309:
M(';\«er y— Stk A R ,.,3;94,2-90 !
Subtotal 635.15.3..1.6 | | 136,923.82
Less:bad debt provision | 31916.13 704334
5 ; - s g 602: Lﬁ_o_g 139.380_45 s

2. Presentation by method of providing bad debt

Closing balance

Category Carrying amount Bad debt provision
; e Sei s Bookvalue

Amount
(%0)

Amount
Accounts receivable that |
provided expected credit
losses on single basis
Accounts receivable that |
provided expected credit 635.132.16 100.00 31.916.13 5.03 603.216.03
losses on portfolio basis™ | :
Including: Receivable from
other customers

63513216 100.00 3191613 | 5.03 603,216.03

Continued
Opening balance
Category Carrying amount Bad debt provision
' | Percentage | | ECL rate Book value
Amount | = Amount

. . , o) | I ) -
Accounts receivable that ‘ ; ‘ '
provided expected credit
losses on single basis i o B
Aeconntsieceivable that 13692382 | 100.00 | 704334 5.4 129.880.48

provided expected credit
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Opening balance

Category Carrying amount | Bad debt provision .
l [Percentage| ['ECLrate | BoOk value
Amount = Amount |
S| CN—— %) | 7 RO
losses on portfolio basis’ i i
Including: Receivable from 136.:993.53 L - —— s 12 ] 150.550.45

other customers

3. In the portfolio, accounts receivable with expected credit loss provided based on credit
risk characteristic portfolio
(1) Portfolio of receivable from other customer

Closing balance
Aging [ e i
Carrying amount Bad debt provision | ECL rate (%)

Within 1 year i 635,132.16 31.916.13 | 5.03

4. Movements of provision during the period

Movements during the period

- Opening | y - . Closing
S balance Accrual Recomveyet Written-off Qtl}ex balance
: orreversed | . TROVEMELS |
Accounts
receivable that
provided expected
credit losses on
single basis
Accounts
receivable that
provided expected | 7,043.34 24,872.79 31.916.13
credit losses on ‘
portfolio basis’
Including: 3
Receivable from 7.043.34 24.872.79 31.916.13
other customers
5. No actual write-off of accounts receivable during the current period.
6. Top 5 receivable accounts
Proportion in
. total closing
Name j Closing balance i balance of Bad debt provision
j accounts
e Teceivable (%)
Top 5 receivables accounts in total 571.032.93 | 89.91 28.551.65
Note 2. Other receivables
1. Presentation of other receivables by aging
Aging : Closing balance : Opening balance
Within 1 year 839.808,164.17 717,341,673.50
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Aging Closing balance Opening balance
- {.;;ars _ - . g I e W
2-3 yéars
Over 3 years 40.050.00 | 40.050.00
| Sl.lbtotal ' 839,848.214.17 i 71 7.38”1 723::’;;}
© Less bad debtprovision C 6seTLI0 19858450
o 1."o.tal V : 839..782..5.-1;.(.).?.: o 71 77.183.139;007
2. Presented by nature
Nature ‘ Closing balance Opening balance
”_ ?;l}asgeﬁid;;?fgl in scope of 839‘174.09.6“.?7 713.813.300.99
Security deposit 537.615.90 3.117.526.90
Others 11195852 45089561
Toral 839_S4é.i14.l? | "1”331"2350
Less: bad debt .pm\'ision 656'110 | liQS.SS-&.:’-O
Total 539"82<430’ 71'-'_18_;‘:_139_00
3. Presented according to three stages of financial assets impairment
Closing balance Opening balance
Irem Carrying : Bad debt T I Bad debt .
. Book value Carrying amount o Book value
amount provision provision

Firststage  830,848214.17 | 65.671.10 839,782,543
Second stage |
Third stage

839.848.214.17

Total

.07 717.381.723.50 ' 198,584.50  717.183.139.00

65.671.10 | 839,782.543.07 = 717.381.723.50  198.584.50  717.183.139.00

4. Presented by bad debt provision method

Category

Amount

Carrying amount

Closing balance

Percentage |
(%)

Other receivables that provided expected
credit losses on single basis

Othe.r receivables Ihi!T 1_31'0\'1dled expected $39.848.014.17
_credit losses on portfolio basis _ _

Including: Security deposit portfolio

537,615.90

Petty cash portfolio

Social security payméﬂrrdn-beha!f :

o ipe <
portfolio 97,102.57

24,542 .88 ]

¢ Bad debt provision
A e

Amount

65.671.10

64,928.30

Book value

(%)
0.0l 839.782,543.07
12,08 472.687.60
24.542.88
97.102.57
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C losmg balance

Bad debr plO\ ision

Category C arrying amount i . Book value
Amount Pes centa ee Amount ECLaate
BN S | A (.. : ey ol o
Receivables from related parties 830.174.096.87 | 99, 9, 839.174.006.87
_ within scope of consolidation el — L
Portfolio of others 14.855.95 0 00 :-1" S(] 5.00; l-i 1[3 15
Total 839.848.214.17 100 00 65 6"1 10 0.01 @ 839.782.543.07
Continued
Opening balance
Category C ary ulsz amount Bad debt p10\ ision
' Pexcen[aee N i ECL ;atemé Book value
Amount © Amount :
e (%) (%o)
Other receivables that provided expected
_credit losses on single basis . o 1 i
Other receivables that provided expected - 753 o il
3 3 717
credit losses on portfolio basis o 717,381,723.50 . 10000 | 198.584.50 0.03 17.183.139.00
[ncludma S‘ecuur\ deposu ponfoho 3.117.526.90 044 193.92385 | 6.22 2.923.603.05
Pem C’lSh ponfoho |
Social security pa\mem alf 357.682.66 0.05 357 637 66
_ portfolio AR TN, S —
o Receivables from related parties 713.813.300.09 99,50 ~13.813.300.99
_Wwithin scope of consolidation ! L -
Portfolio of others 9% ’1 2.95 0.01 4 660 65 | 5.00 SS 352 30
Total ¢ 717.381,723.50 ¢ 100.00 198.584.50 0.03 : 717.183.139.00

5. In the portfolio, other receivables with expected credit loss provided based on credit

risk characteristic portfolio

(1) Security deposit portfolio

Closing balance

Aging e - s
Carrving amount Bad debr provision ECL rate (%)
| ;‘;-'iﬂlin 1 year 497.565.90 24.878.30 | 500
e T ‘
2- 3 vears
; O‘ N 3 o 400‘()00 40 0\0 00 F—— 100 00.‘.‘
Total 537.,615.90 _ ‘ 12 OS”“

64.928.30 |

(2) Petty cash portfolio

Aging

Within | year

Carrying amount

Closing balance

Bad debt provision

ECL rate (%)

24.542.88

(3) Social security payment on-behalf portfolio
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Closing balance

Agiug — A e NS N
Carrying amount ¢ Bad debt provision ECL rate (%)

Within | year 97,102.57

(4) Receivables from related parties within scope of consolidation

Closing balance
Aging .

Carrving amount Bad debt provision ECL rate (%)

Within | vear 839.174.096.87

(5) Portfolio of others

Closing balance
Aging

Carryving amount Bad debt provision ECL rate (%)

Within 1 vear 14.855.95 742.80 5.00

6. Bad debt provision status

First stage Second stage Third stage

Lifetime expected = Lifetime expected
credit losses (ne  credit losses (credit

credit impairment impairment
__occured) occurred)

Bad debt provision Expected credit Total
losses over the

next 12 months

Opening balance 198.584.50 i i 198.584.50
Opening balance — - - ' -
movements in current
_peried
—Transfer into the
second stage
—Transfer into the
third stage
—Reverse back to
the second stage
—Reverse back to
the first stage
Accrual during the
period S
Reversed during the
period
Recovered during the

during the |

Other movements

Closing balance 65.671.10 | 65.671.10

7. No other receivables were written-off during the period.

8. Top 5 other receivable accounts
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Name

Top 5 other receivables in total

i Proportion to
it i closing balance of | Bad debt provision
Closing balance ; et .
| other receivable Closing balance
. TS \.C) I
$39,174.096.87 | 99.92

Note 3. Long-term equity investment

Narture i

Investment in

Closing balance

Carrving amount | Provision| Book value |

Opening balance
Carrying amount | Provision.  Book value
|

11.494.128.399.60

o 1.494.128.399.60 | 1.486.912.339.72 1.486.912.339.72
subsidiaries ;
Tavestment:in §8.182.086.90 58.182.086.90  55.155.605.31 55.155.605.31
assoclates i - | ST | N ] I
Total 1‘552.310.486.5& 1.552.310.486.50; 1.542.067.945.03 1.542.067.945.03
1. Investment in subsidiaries
: dditi Provision | Closing
fivestes Opening o _mou ne“; Withdr | Closing accrued in | baiancei) ,
balance nyestment . awn balance current o L.
; " i provision
period . *TC T

Shenzhen Harmot
Watch Center Co.
Shenzhen Harmonsy
_commerce Co.. Ltd.
Shenzhen FIYTA Precision
_Technology Co.. Ltd.
Shenzhen FIYTA Technology

60768451215 |
11,684.48439 |

101,249.207.88 |

2,669.885.19 |

102,482.06%.76

3122497408

50,775,222.76
Development Co., Ltd. ) - B
FIYTA (Hong Kong) Ltd. 137,737.520.00 | 137,737.520.00 |

TEMPORAL (Shenzhen) Co.. |
JLd B
FIYTA Sales Co.. Ltd.

3.000.000.00

3.000,000.00

438,083,251.89

Liaoning Hengdarui

Commercial & Trade Co.. 36,867.843.96 36,867.842.06
Emile Choureit Timing = a |

5 §0,121,976.26 571,881.02 |
(Shenzhen) ILtd. o i : !

Total

| 1.486.912,339.

()

7.216,039.88 1,494,128,399.60

2. Investment in associates

Investee : Opening balance
Associates :
Shanghai Watch 55.155.605.31

Movements in current period

: Investment
Addition/new gain .
investment Withdrawn recognized Adﬂlg?leﬂt to
under equity
method

3.026,481.59

Continued
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Movements in current period

= Closing
Cash dividends ; i
Investee Other equity declared or ImPalfﬂ_leﬂT C losing balance = balance of
movements - distribution of provision Others i prestion
! profit accrual .
Assocmtes
Shaneh'n W arch 58.182.086.90 |
Note 4. Operating income and operating cost
Amount in current period Amount in prior period
Revenue | Cost Revenue Cost
Main business 148.557.095.50 41.765.441.70 ] 5 936. -H[ 09 %8 852,252.32
Other business T2F. 7055 3 519,281. 6’

Note 5. Investment gain

Amount in current

Item

Amount in prior period

period
g-ferm equity inv accou 3 i
(Ja_m ﬂon_] long-term equity investments accounted for 3.026.481 50 3.754.030 30
using equity method |
qu from long-term equity investments accounted for 240.595.696.70 259.918.496.56
using cost method - - il ) o
Total 243.622.178.29 263.673.435.95

XVI. Supplementary information

L. Details of non-recurring gain or loss for the vear

Item

Disposal gain or loss of non-current assets

Overridden approval. or without official approval document, or incidental
tax return or exemprion

Government grants included in current profit or loss (except for the fixed
or quantitative govermment grants, enjoyed in a consecutive way. which
closely related to the enterprise businesses and according to nation
policies)

A['HOH nt

Note

91.925. 06

i

18.648.210.06|

Charges for the possessions of funds collected from non-monetary
enterprises N
Gain from investment in subsidiaries. joint venture and coopelam e
enterprises when cost of investment is less than the profit incurred in
identifiable net asset fair value of invested unit when investment

Profit and loss of non-monetary assets exchange

Profit and loss from entrusting others to invest or manage assets

Asset impairment provision accrued due to force majeure such as natural
disasters

Profit and loss of debt restructuring

Enterprise restructuring expenses, such as expenses for arranging
employees, integrating cost

Profit and loss over fair value parr accrued in transactions of unr ea:ouable
transaction price |
Current net profit and loss of subsidiaries from business combination
under conunon control from the opening period to combination date

Profit and loss incurred contingent matters unrelated to normal operating
business
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Item

Amount

Note

Except for effective hedging business related to normal operating

business. profit and loss from changes in fair value incurred in financial
assets and financial liabilities, and the investment gain from disposal of
financial assets, financial liabilities and available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment provision reversal of accounts receivable under standalone
impairment test

Profit and loss obtained in exter ual entrusting loans

4,389.902.44

Profit and loss incurred in fair value chmqe of investment property
subsequently measured in fair value mode

Influence on current ploﬁt and loss caused by one-off adjusuuem
according to requirements of laws and regulations about taxation and
accounting

Income from trustee fee obtained by trusting operation

Other non-operating income and expenses other than the above items

-1,064.064.23

Profit and loss items p{u'suam to the definition of non-recurring profit and
loss '

Less: Effect of income tax of non-recurring profit or loss

Effect of non-recurring profit or losses attributable to minority
shareholders (after tax)

Total

5,175.977.22

+

16.889.996.11

2. Return on Equity (ROE) and Earnings per share (EPS)

EPS

Profit of the reporting period ¢ Weighted average ROE %o

Nert profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company

Net profit attributable to ordinary |
shareholders of the Company after 8.13)
deducting non-recurring profit or loss |

Basic EPS

Diluted EPS

0.6398

0.5989

FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd.
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